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Resolution 2009 – 1212 


 


Resolution for Ogle County Courthouse Furniture Bid 


 


WHEREAS, Ogle County solicited bids to re-furnish the newly renovated Ogle County 
Courthouse; and 


WHEREAS, dealers were required to provide bids for Teknion, Allsteel, or Hayworth 
manufactured products; and 


WHEREAS, selecting the dealer providing the best product with preferred functionality, 
features, durability, and life time warranties is very important to the County; and 


WHEREAS, all submitted bids have come significantly under the approved courthouse 
renovation furniture budgeted allowance, 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board selects Business Office 
Systems carrying Hayworth manufactured products for a purchase price of $249,546.62. 


Presented and Adopted at the December 15, 2009 Ogle County Board Meeting. 


 


 


_______________________________________ 


      W. Ed Rice, Chairman 


 


 


Attest: 


 


_________________________________ 


Rebecca Huntley, County Clerk 


     


 







Ogle County Courthouse Renovation  
Furniture Bids Results   


Dec-09     
      


A. OM Workspace - Teknion Product  
     
 Totals $218,401.33   


  
(omitted certain furniture 
requirements) 


     
B. Hendrickson - Allsteel Product  


     
 Totals $239,000.41   
     


C. Business Office Systems - Hayworth Product 
     
 Totals $249,546.62   
     


D. Kayhan International - Hayworth Product 
     
 Totals $274,794.21   
 


         








Resolution 2009-1213 


Hiring Freeze for 2010 Budget Year  


 


WHEREAS, the Ogle County Personnel Committee wishes to adopt policies that help lower 
2010 County Budget expenses; and 


WHEREAS, the Ogle County Personnel Committee appreciates the cooperation of all 
department heads in reducing 2010 expenditures wherever possible; and 


WHEREAS, the Ogle County Personnel Committee encourages all departments to consider 
whether filling positions is absolutely necessary in the 2010 budget year when staff turnover or 
attrition is encountered,  


THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Ogle County Board is adopting a hiring freeze for 
the 2010 budget year such that no new positions will be created. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if an employee leaves for any reason, the County Board 
requests that the department heads and the administrator to work together to determine if that 
position needs to be filled.      


 


Presented and Adopted at the December 15, 2009 Ogle County Board Meeting. 


 


 


____________________________________________ 


      W. Ed Rice, Chairman 


 


Attest: 


 


______________________________________________ 


Rebecca Huntley, County Clerk  








RESOLUTION 2009-1202 
and 


CERTIFICATE OF  APPOINTMENT 
 
 WHEREAS, the appointment to the Ogle County Housing Authority by 


the Ogle County Board, AND WHEREAS, the name of  


Kimberly L. Suslek 


168 Century Hills Dr 


Oregon, IL 61061 


who is an elector of said district, is presented to the Ogle County Board for 


approval of appointment,  


BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, the appointment is for a term that ends 


October 31, 2011. 


 


Voted upon and passed by the Ogle County Board this 


15th day of December, 2009. 


 


    ________________________________________ 
     W. Ed Rice, Chairman 
     Ogle County Board 
 
 
 
 (COUNTY SEAL) 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk 












Resolution 2009-1211 
Resolution to Authorize Long Range Planning Invoices     


 
WHEREAS, on December 1, 2009 the Ogle County Executive Committee reviewed a summary of 


proposed Long Range Planning expenses and, 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Ogle County Board authorizes payment of Long 


Range invoices totaling $758,197.71 for the following: 
 
SUPPLIER NAME DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT  


Old Limestone, LLC Watts Bldg. - January Rent  $        5,800.00 


      


Holabird & Root, LLC Professional Services for Oct. 2009 -  & Reimbursable Expenses  $        6,849.61 


      


Ringland-Johnson Inc. Courthouse Remodel Application #5  $    574,831.00 


  Plumbing Dispute  $    (14,022.41) 


      


City of Oregon New Water meter - Old Courthouse  $        1,867.10 


      


TC Communications Fiber Network - Auto Failover    Devices (Reimb. Sheriff's Dept.)  $        7,700.00 


        


Historics Surfaces LLC Courtroom Restoration Mock-up - Courthouse - Final Payment  $        5,650.00 


        


NITT 2009 Capital Contribution  $    152,000.00 


      


MDES Professional Services for 10/2009  $        3,500.00 


      


Ogle County Circuit Clerk Case #2009 CH 245 - Plumbing Dispute  $      14,022.41 


      


  TOTAL:  $    758,197.71 


 
Presented and Approved at the December 15, 2009 Ogle County Board Meeting. 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
Rebecca Huntley, County Clerk 
                                                                                         ______________________ 
                                                                                          W. Ed Rice, Chairman 








 
 
 
 
 


RESOLUTION  2009-1201 
 
 
 


 
 
Whereas, the Ogle Board Chairman has received a notice of resignation 
from Brian Kunce, a member of the 9-1-1 ETS Board; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Ogle County Board 
does officially accept said resignation. 
 
 
 
 
Accepted by the Ogle County Board on December 15, 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________    ______________________ 
W. Ed Rice                                                      Rebecca Huntley 
Ogle County Board Chairman                         Ogle County Clerk 
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Resolution 2009-1210 


Stillman Valley High School 2009 Football State Championship Recognition 


 


WHEREAS, the Ogle County Board recognizes Meridian Community Unit School District as 
one of Ogle County’s fine school districts; and 


WHEREAS, the Stillman Valley High School football team’s 2009 state championship 
represents their 4th state championship in 10 years; and 


WHEREAS, we, the County Board, feel the recognition for their accomplishment should be 
celebrated; 


THEREFORE, we hereby recognize Stillman Valley Superintendent Bob Prusator, Head 
Football coach Mike Lalor, and the entire Stillman Valley football team for its 2009 State 
Championship,  


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that we extend congratulations to the Meridian Community Unit 
School District and all their athletic and scholastic programs for their accomplishments.   


 


Presented and Adopted at the December 15, 2009 Ogle County Board Meeting. 


 


     
 ____________________________________________ 


      W. Ed Rice, Chairman 


 


Attest: 


 


______________________________________________ 


Rebecca Huntley, County Clerk  


 


 


 








Resolution 2009 – 1207 


 


Ogle County Supports Federal Purchase of Thomson Correctional Center 


 


WHEREAS, the Thomson Correctional Center was built and completed in 2001 as maximum 
security correctional facility to be operated by the State of Illinois; and 


WHEREAS, the expected opening and full operation of the Thomson Correctional Center by the 
State of Illinois was to provide jobs and economic development to the area; and 


WHEREAS, the Ogle County Board recognizes that our area is in need of economic growth and 
development and the opening and full operation of the Thomson Correctional Center would help 
to stimulate economic growth and create jobs within the area; and 


WHEREAS, the State of Illinois, due to budgetary constraints and lack of adequate funding, has 
been unable since 2001 to appropriate ample funds for the full operation of the Thomson 
Correctional Center; and 


WHEREAS, the United States Federal Bureau of Prisons has expressed an interest in purchasing 
the Thomason Correctional Center to fully operate a federal prison at said location, thus creating 
jobs for the area and stimulating economic growth for the area, 


THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Ogle County Board supports the United States 
Federal Bureau of Prisons purchasing the Thomson Correctional Center to operate a federal 
prison at said location. 


 


Presented and Adopted at the December 15, 2009 Ogle County Board Meeting. 


 


_______________________________________ 


      W. Ed Rice, Chairman 


Attest: 


 


_________________________________ 


Rebecca Huntley, County Clerk     








Resolution 2009 – 1208 


Resolution for Vendor Prequalification for Ogle County Construction Projects 
(Excluding County Highway projects) 


 
WHEREAS, for future construction projects, Ogle County desires to select vendors it 
determines to qualify as the lowest responsible bidders for work being contemplated; and 


WHEREAS, the lowest responsible bidders on construction projects will be those that, in 
the sole discretion of the County, are capable of performing work most professionally, 
effectively, efficiently, flexibly, and in the best interest of Ogle County and its citizens; 
and 


WHERE AS, the lowest responsible bidders will be the most cost-effective, although 
total cost should be only one factor that will be considered by the County in choosing 
lowest responsible bidders; and 


WHEREAS, the County desires to pre-qualify vendors prior to soliciting bid responses 
according to the unique needs of future individual projects;  


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Ogle County Board requires all 
construction projects costing one million dollars ($1,000,000) or more to be subject to a 
prequalification process whereby specific bidder prequalification requirements for such 
projects are clearly identified in advance of the bid notice, and 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that potential construction vendors must comply with the 
prequalification standards set forth for such projects prior to being accepted to bid on 
such projects, and 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all County highway, road and bridge projects are 
exempt from this resolution. 


Presented and Adopted at the December 15, 2009 Ogle County Board Meeting 


_______________________________________ 


      W. Ed Rice, Chairman 


 


Attest: 


_________________________________ 


Rebecca Huntley, County Clerk       








R E S O L U T I O N


WHEREAS, the County of Ogle has entered into an agreement with the Illinois
Department of Transportation for participation in the County Engineer Salary Program.


THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County of Ogle hereby authorizes the transfer
of $   53,204            from their Federal Surface Transportation Rural Funds to the Illinois
Department of Transportation for the use of the Illinois Department of Transportation, and 


WHEREAS, the Illinois Department of Transportation, under the terms of the County
Engineer Salary Program agreement, will deposit $    53,204               of State funds into the
Ogle County Motor Fuel Tax account, upon receipt of this resolution, for the purpose of payment
of the County Engineer’s salary.


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that an appropriation of one hundred six thousand four
hundred eight dollars be made by the County Board of Ogle County from the Motor Fuel Tax
Funds allotted to said county to pay the salary of the County Engineer for the period 
January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2010, Section 10-00000-00-CS.


STATE OF ILLINOIS  )
              )  SS
COUNTY OF OGLE   )


I, Rebecca Huntley, County Clerk in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, and keeper of
the records and files thereof, as provided by Statute, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a
true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the County Board of Ogle County,
at its Special meeting held at Oregon on    December 15                 , 2009.


IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 


seal of said County at my office in Oregon, in said County,


this   15th        day of     December                  A.D. 2009.


                                                                                          
County Clerk


(SEAL)


RESOLUTION 2009-1204












Fund: 200 - County Highway
Department: 17 - Highway


Account: 4212 - Electricity
1156 - COMED COMHWY1109a CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 73789 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 839.45


Account Total: Electricity 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $839.45


Account: 4214 - Gas (Heating)
1898 - NICOR NICHWY1109 CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 73796 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 148.84


Account Total: Gas (Heating) 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $148.84


Account: 4216.10 - Telephone
1265 - VERIZON VERHWY1109b CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 73813 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 184.49
1265 - VERIZON VERHWY1109a CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 73814 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 68.68
1773 - MCI MCIHWY1209 CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 73943 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 53.79


Account Total: Telephone 3 Invoice Transaction(s) $306.96


Account: 4316.10 - Engineering Services
1968 - WENDLER ENGINEERING 
SERVICES, INC.


31085 CH fund - engr services/Pines Road Paid by Check # 73954 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 332.50


Account Total: Engineering Services 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $332.50


Account: 4412 - Official Publications
1502 - OGLE COUNTY LIFE 264148 CH fund - legal notices Paid by Check # 73798 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 28.05
1502 - OGLE COUNTY LIFE 264150 CH fund - legal notices Paid by Check # 73798 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 28.05
1502 - OGLE COUNTY LIFE 265349 CH fund - legal notices Paid by Check # 73798 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 28.05
1502 - OGLE COUNTY LIFE 265352 CH fund - legal notices Paid by Check # 73798 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 28.05


Account Total: Official Publications 4 Invoice Transaction(s) $112.20


Account: 4422 - Travel Expenses, Dues & Seminars
1500 - OGLE COUNTY HIGHWAY 
DEPARTMENT


HWY1109 CH fund - reimburse for various mtg 
expenses


Paid by Check # 73797 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 205.07


1846 - BUSINESS CARD BUSHWY1109 CH fund - mtg expenses Paid by Check # 73783 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 316.67


Account Total: Travel Expenses, Dues & Seminars 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $521.74


Account: 4474 - Deer Expense
1876 - ROCHELLE WASTE 
DISPOSAL, LLC


191202 CH fund - deer expense Paid by Check # 73803 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 45.00


1876 - ROCHELLE WASTE 
DISPOSAL, LLC


191763 CH fund - deer expense Paid by Check # 73803 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 90.00


Account Total: Deer Expense 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $135.00


Account: 4510 - Office Supplies
1246 - FISCHER'S 0631003-001 CH fund - office supplies Paid by Check # 73941 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 7.46


Account Total: Office Supplies 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $7.46


Account: 4540 - Repairs & Maint - Facilities
3983 - MOSER PLUMBING, 
ELECTRIC, HEATING & AC, LLC


2813 CH fund - put in new underground 
line


Paid by Check # 73794 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 12,417.19


2542 - T.D. KURTZ GLASS COMPANY 2124-000 CH fund - replace all exterior doors Paid by Check # 73810 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 11,388.00
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@ Ogle Co. Hwy bulidng
3983 - MOSER PLUMBING, 
ELECTRIC, HEATING & AC, LLC


2815 CH fund - services Paid by Check # 73944 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 1,329.81


Account Total: Repairs & Maint - Facilities 3 Invoice Transaction(s) $25,135.00


Account: 4545.10 - Petroleum Products -
1896 - SHELL FLEET PLUS SHEHWY1209 CH fund - gas Paid by Check # 73951 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 13.50


Account Total: Petroleum Products - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $13.50


Account: 4610.10 - Maint of Roads & Bridges -
2020 - SHEELY AGGREGATES 9460 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 73807 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 784.56
1606 - ROGERS READY MIX 89058 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 73805 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 706.65
1606 - ROGERS READY MIX 90133 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 73805 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 1,423.80
1606 - ROGERS READY MIX 89158 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 73805 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 400.83
1606 - ROGERS READY MIX 90049 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 73805 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 1,853.55
1657 - STEVE BENESH & SONS 
QUARRIES


9187 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 73808 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 1,751.98


2647 - MARTIN & COMPANY 
EXCAVATING


19164 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 73792 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 1,841.11


2275 - EAGLE CREEK QUARRIES EGHWY1109 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 73791 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 3,881.26
1606 - ROGERS READY MIX 89258 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 73805 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 109.95
1606 - ROGERS READY MIX 89619 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 73805 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 1,571.52


Account Total: Maint of Roads & Bridges - 10 Invoice Transaction(s) $14,325.21


Account: 4610.90 - Maint of Roads & Bridges
2503 - ADESTA, LLC 60010841 CH fund - julie locates Paid by Check # 73935 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 379.98


Account Total: Maint of Roads & Bridges 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $379.98


Account: 4610.99 - Maint of Roads & Bridges -
2307 - BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY 09111325 CH fund - Flag Center/yearly lease Paid by Check # 73782 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 125.00
1606 - ROGERS READY MIX 000113 CH fund - sand Paid by Check # 73950 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 20.74


Account Total: Maint of Roads & Bridges - 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $145.74


Account: 4620.10 - Repair Parts -
3932 - TRACTOR SUPPLY CO. TRAHWY1109 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73811 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 47.85
2877 - CHICAGO INTERNATIONAL 
TRUCK


114044980 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 73788 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 489.38


2027 - TRANSAM TRUCK & TRAILER 
PARTS, INC.


564123 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 73812 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 171.36


2027 - TRANSAM TRUCK & TRAILER 
PARTS, INC.


564432 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 73812 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 265.26


2230 - PATTEN INDUSTRIES, INC. P52C0096478 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73800 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 65.11
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-488303 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73795 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 9.39
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-488564 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73795 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 39.28
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-488663 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73795 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 18.32
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-489400 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73795 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 537.38
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-490435 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73795 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 110.31
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-490464 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73795 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 4.92
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1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-490505 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73795 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 21.14
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-490628 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73795 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 8.29
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-490633 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73795 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 2.79
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-491126 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73795 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 7.26
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-491328 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73795 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 107.38
2049 - IDEAL METAL FAB., INC. IDEHWY1209 CH fund - truck repairs Paid by Check # 73942 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 99.52
2877 - CHICAGO INTERNATIONAL 
TRUCK


416945 CH fund - truck repairs Paid by Check # 73940 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 338.51


2877 - CHICAGO INTERNATIONAL 
TRUCK


114045539 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 73940 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 141.82


2877 - CHICAGO INTERNATIONAL 
TRUCK


114045226 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 73940 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 216.08


1100 - BONNELL INDUSTRIES 0122522-IN CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 73938 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 47.28
1100 - BONNELL INDUSTRIES 0122519-IN CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 73938 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 293.10
1535 - PETERS GMC 20480 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73947 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 109.20
1535 - PETERS GMC 20488 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73947 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 24.20
1535 - PETERS GMC 20496 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73947 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 24.20
1535 - PETERS GMC 20502 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 73947 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 36.40
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-491622 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73945 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 8.45
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-493441 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73945 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 30.35
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-493472 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73945 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 55.75
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS 464-494388 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73945 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 95.76
1463 - NAPA AUTO PARTS NAPHWY1209 CH fund - credit Paid by Check # 73945 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 (3.82)
2877 - CHICAGO INTERNATIONAL 
TRUCK


114043929 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 73940 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 382.30


Account Total: Repair Parts - 32 Invoice Transaction(s) $3,804.52


Account: 4620.20 - Repair Parts -
1862 - MILLER-BRADFORD & 
RISBERG, INC.


IK88709 CH fund - heavy equipment part Paid by Check # 73793 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 287.55


1862 - MILLER-BRADFORD & 
RISBERG, INC.


IK88730 CH fund - heavy equipment part Paid by Check # 73793 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 132.48


1869 - WEST SIDE TRACTOR SALES R18748 CH fund - heavy equipment part Paid by Check # 73955 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 82.40
2230 - PATTEN INDUSTRIES, INC. P52C0096815 CH fund - heavy equipment part Paid by Check # 73946 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 13.17
2230 - PATTEN INDUSTRIES, INC. P52C0096814 CH fund - heavy equipment part Paid by Check # 73946 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 174.66


Account Total: Repair Parts - 5 Invoice Transaction(s) $690.26


Account: 4620.30 - Repair Parts -
1870 - PEABUDY'S NORTH INC 114382 CH fund - tractor parts Paid by Check # 73801 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 27.08
1926 - STOCKING EQUIPMENT STOHWY1109 CH fund - tractor parts Paid by Check # 73809 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 312.78


Account Total: Repair Parts - 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $339.86


Account: 4630.20 - De-Icing Material -
1963 - SICALCO LTD. 53865 CH fund - calcium chloride Paid by Check # 73952 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 2,087.15


Account Total: De-Icing Material - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $2,087.15


Account: 4640.10 - Sign & Striping Material -
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1156 - COMED COMHWY1109b CH fund - street & traffic lighting Paid by Check # 73789 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 41.65


Account Total: Sign & Striping Material - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $41.65


Account: 4640.20 - Sign & Striping Material -
2487 - OSBURN ASSOCIATES, INC. 180934 CH fund - signs Paid by Check # 73799 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 451.26


Account Total: Sign & Striping Material - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $451.26


Account: 4650.10 - Hardware & Shop Supplies
1373 - BARNES DISTRIBUTION 1351898001 CH fund - nuts & bolts Paid by Check # 73781 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 359.74
1373 - BARNES DISTRIBUTION 1426146001 CH fund - nuts & bolts Paid by Check # 73936 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 136.64


Account Total: Hardware & Shop Supplies 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $496.38


Account: 4650.20 - Hardware & Shop Supplies
1047 - ACE HARDWARE AND 
OUTDOOR CTR


111896 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73780 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 4.99


2176 - CCP INDUSTRIES, INC. IN00406857 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73786 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 449.82
3186 - BYRON TRUE VALUE 40720 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73785 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 5.33
1603 - ROCKFORD INDUSTRIAL 
WELDING


02470682 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73804 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 37.69


2025 - CHEMSEARCH 675027 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73787 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 267.11
1676 - TERMINAL SUPPLY CO 20770-00 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73953 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 81.42
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20406 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 6.98
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20426 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 14.99
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20444 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 109.98
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20473 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 7.99
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20522 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 8.48
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20542 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 72.60
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20560 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 3.49
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20574 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 10.98
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20659 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 19.98
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20664 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 26.98
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20725 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 3.99
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20742 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 12.98
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 20767 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 9.98
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 934794 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 5.31
1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE BASHWY1209 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 73937 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 265.35


Account Total: Hardware & Shop Supplies 21 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,426.42


Account: 4660.10 - Tires & Tubes -
3836 - BUTITTA BROTHERS 
AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES INC


0004546 CH fund - tires Paid by Check # 73784 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 1,045.00


3836 - BUTITTA BROTHERS 
AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES INC


0005166 CH fund - tires Paid by Check # 73939 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 1,004.00


Account Total: Tires & Tubes - 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $2,049.00


Account: 4660.20 - Tires & Tubes -
1865 - POMP'S TIRE SERVICE, INC. 156024 CH fund - tires Paid by Check # 73802 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 592.90
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2251 - WINGFOOT COMMERICAL 
TIRE SYSTEM, LLC


146-1052481 CH fund - tires Paid by Check # 73815 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 326.18


2251 - WINGFOOT COMMERICAL 
TIRE SYSTEM, LLC


146-1052561 CH fund - tires Paid by Check # 73815 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 508.88


1865 - POMP'S TIRE SERVICE, INC. 201661 CH fund - tires Paid by Check # 73948 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 778.00
1865 - POMP'S TIRE SERVICE, INC. 201662 CH fund - tires Paid by Check # 73948 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 437.90


Account Total: Tires & Tubes - 5 Invoice Transaction(s) $2,643.86


Account: 4720 - Office Equipment
1568 - RK DIXON 248734 CH fund - copier maint fee Paid by Check # 73949 12/03/2009 12/03/2009 12/04/2009 12/03/2009 184.56


Account Total: Office Equipment 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $184.56


Account: 4785 - Capital - Road & Bridge Const.
3966 - SANCO TRAFFIC 9001486 CH fund - 08-00258-00-RS 


barricades rental fee
Paid by Check # 73806 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 282.00


2156 - CONTECH 51-10-0045 CH fund - culverts for Kishwaukee 
Rd.


Paid by Check # 73790 11/18/2009 11/18/2009 11/19/2009 11/18/2009 2,421.00


Account Total: Capital - Road & Bridge Const. 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $2,703.00


Department Total: Highway 107 Invoice Transaction(s) $59,321.50


Fund Total: County Highway 107 Invoice Transaction(s) $59,321.50


Grand Total: 107 Invoice Transaction(s) $59,321.50


. . . . . . . . . .
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Chairman J. Thompson called the monthly meeting of the Ogle County ETSB to order on 
December 9, 2009 at 2:35 pm. 
 
Members Present: 
D. DeWall  F. Horner 
E. O’Brien (arrived at 2:58 pm) 
T. Sill  S. Sullivan 
J. Thompson B. Winebaugh 
 
Members Absent: 
B. Brass (family emergency) 
 
Others Present: 
S. Beitel 
 
A motion by F. Horner and seconded by T. Sill to approve the November 11, 2009 meeting 
minutes.  The motion carried. 
 
A motion by B. Winebaugh and seconded by D. DeWall to pay the listed bills.  In reference to 
the Cardmember Service Credit card payment, from the total bill of $2,057.70, $1626.70 will 
be paid from the wireless fund.  This will cover the cost of the server purchased from Dynamic 
Horizons for the mapping project for Rochelle PD.  This will also cover the cost of airfare for 
E. O’Brien to the NENA Technical Development Conference in Nashville in February. 
 
  Bill Winebaugh   $72.60 
  Cardmember Service  $2,057.70 
  Century Tel    $163.08 
  Don DeWall    $231.00 
  Fred Horner    $84.70 
  Frontier    $713.67 
  John Thompson   $30.80 
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  Powerphone, Inc.    $987.00 
  Robert Brass     $117.70 
  Sandy Beitel     $12.10 
  Sandy Sullivan    $96.80 
  Tracie Sill     $12.10 
  Verizon North    $12,989.04 
  Verizon Wireless    $247.48 
  Total Bills for Payment   $17,885.77 
 
Old Business: 
 
S. Beitel updated the members on the Forreston Radio Tower Transmitter project.  The FCC 
license was received and forwarded to Dixon Ottawa Communications and the equipment has 
been ordered.  We don’t have a time frame for installation at this time yet. 
 
S. Beitel updated the members on the narrow banding transition team.  The second meeting 
was held and we are progressing slowly.  Several agencies still feel that there will be a 
postponement of the effective date.  All information received by the team shows that no 
changes in the effective date will occur.  Chief DeHaan of the Oregon Police Department has 
added a link about the transition team to their website. 
 
S. Beitel informed the members that the county clerk received Brian Kunce’s resignation and 
that at the December County board meeting, the vacancy will be announced.  S. Beitel 
informed the board that there are two Polo Fire Department members interested in the 
position along with one from Monroe Center.  F. Horner would like to see the ETSB interview 
the applicants prior to meeting with the executive board and making their recommendations to 
the executive committee.  F. Horner will contact Chairman Rice about this. 
 
S. Beitel provided a copy of the quote for the new computers for the Ogle County and Rochelle 
PSAP’s.  The quote was for six new workstations from NG-911 Inc out of Iowa with the total 
cost of $13,136.00.  A motion by F. Horner and seconded by B. Winebaugh.  The motion 
carried. 
 
Discussion was held about the approved budget.  The budget was approved according to the 
figure for the coordinators salary without a pay increase.  Since that approval, the union 
personnel will be receiving a 3% increase.  A motion by F. Horner and seconded by S. Sullivan 
to modify the budget to reflect the pay increase.  The motion carried. 
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S. Sullivan and T. Sill informed the board that both of their computers are having issues.  
These computers were originally in the Communications Centers and have been refurbished.  
They are approximately 8-10 years old.  They both need new computers in order to fulfill 
requests and subpoenas for Freedom of Information Act requests.  S. Sullivan received a quote 
for 2 computers for $1548. 52.  S. Beitel forwarded the quote and specifications to E. O’Brien 
and he has suggested that the memory be upgraded to a larger amount.  A motion by F. 
Horner to purchase 2 computers, one each for the Communications Supervisors offices not to 
exceed $2500.00 total.  D. DeWall seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
The meeting dates for 2010 had been e-mailed to the board members.  A motion by T. Sill and 
seconded by F. Horner for the following dates for the ETSB meetings in 2010.  The motion 
carried. 
   January 13, 2010 
   February 17, 2010 
   March 10, 2010 
    April 14, 2010 
   May 12, 2010  To be held in Rochelle Police Department 
   June 16, 2010 
   July 14,2010 
   August 11, 2010 
   September 8, 2010 
   October 13, 2010 
   November 10, 2010 
   December 8, 2010 – Dinner Meeting 
 
S. Beitel provided the members with information about the administrative code with the 
Illinois Commerce Commission re-write workshop.  They formed working groups to address 
the issues and S. Beitel will be participating in one of the work groups.   
 
S. Beitel informed the members that during the last month she completed two public speaking 
engagements.  One was with the Ogle County Fire Chiefs and Trustees and the other was with 
the Mt. Morris Kiwanis group.  Both went very well. 
 
A motion by F. Horner and seconded by B. Winebaugh for adjournment.  The motion carried. 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:15 pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Sandy Beitel, Secretary 
Ogle County ETSB 
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Ogle County Highway Department  
Road & Bridge Committee 
Meeting Minutes 


December 8, 2009 
 
I. Meeting called to order at 10:00 AM by Vice Chairman Diehl. 


Members present: Jim Barnes, Mel Messer, Lynne Kilker, & Ben Diehl. Bob DeArvil  
was also in attendance. 


 
II. Received Bids 
 A. 2010 County Aggregate 


1. Motion to accept all bids – Lynne Kilker 
2. Motion seconded by – Mel Messer 
3. Vote - All in Favor 


 
III. Reviewed November 10, 2009 Minutes. 
 A. Motion to approve minutes by – Mel Messer 
 B. Motion seconded by – Lynne Kilker 
 C. Vote - All in Favor 
 
IV. Reviewed Bills and Payroll. 
 A. Motion to approve by – Mel Messer 
 B. Motion seconded by – Jim Barnes 
 C. Vote - All in Favor 
 
V. Petitions and Resolutions 


A. Preliminary Engineering agreement with Willett, Hofmann, & Associates  
 for the design of road improvements on German Church Road from IL Rt. 


64 to Deer Path Road, not to exceed $166,500. 
1. Motion to approve by – Jim Barnes 
2. Motion seconded by – Mel Messer 
3. Vote - All in Favor 


B. Section 10-00000-00-CS, 2010 County Engineer Salary Resolution, payable from 
Motor Fuel Tax and Federal Highway funds. 
1. Motion to approve by – Lynne Kilker 
2. Motion seconded by – Mel Messer 
3. Vote - All in Favor 
 


VI.  Business & Communications 
 A. Unfinished Business 
  1. The Department’s electric service has been revised from overhead to  
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  underground. The County Engineer would like to express his thanks to the 
County  
  Maintenance staff for their assistance in this electric service conversion. 
  The backup generator and new service panel box will be installed later this 
winter.  


2. The County Engineer is moving forward with a Departmental policy for new  
employee physical requirements. In addition, a departmental policy will be 


created  
dealing with “distracted driving” and cell phone usage in light of the upcoming 
“texting while driving” state law. 


  B. New Business 
1. I.A.C.E. Legislative Committee – Nothing new. 
2. I.A.C.E. Revenue Fact Finding Committee – Nothing new. 
3. Next Meeting – Tuesday January 12, 2010, @ 10:00 AM, 
    Lettings: Sign Truck 


Motor Grader 
4. 2009 Project Status Report: 


    Flagg / 251 Intersection  -Complete. 
    Steward Road Overpass -65% complete, shut down for winter 
    Oregon Fiber Optic job -Complete 
    Guardrail spraying   -Complete 
    Weed & Brush Spraying -Complete 
    Woodlawn Road paving -Complete 
    Flagg Road paving   -Complete 
    Stillman Road paving  -Complete 
    Edson Rd bridge repairs -Complete 
    Mud Creek Rd paving  -Complete 
    Dement Rd paving  -Complete 
    Bituminous patching  -Complete 
    Crackfilling   -Complete 
    Scott Road bridge  -Complete 
    Milledgeville Rd culvert -Complete 
    Lowell Park Rd micro  -Complete 
    Striping contract  -Complete 
    County Sealcoat  -Complete 
    Township sealcoat  -Complete 
    ROW mowing   -Complete 
    Brookville Rd culvert  -Complete 
    Brick Church Rd culvert -Complete 
    Quarry Rd culvert  -Complete 
    Devils Backbone paving -Complete 
    Kishwaukee Rd Guardrail -Complete 
    Rockvale paving  -Complete 
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    Brooklyn Rd paving  -Complete 
    Milledgeville/Freeport micro -Complete 
    Underground electric service -Complete 
  5. The Committee and County Engineer reviewed the 2009 year end budget  
  statement in depth. Overruns in line items such as equipment, repairs, ice control,  
  etc were more than offset by cost cutting measures in other line items. The  
  department budget was controlled very well to offset unexpected cost increases.  
  6. The Department will have the annual Retired Highway Department Employee  
  Luncheon on December 17th. 
  7. The County Engineer and Committee reviewed the departmental hiring/pay  
  schedule. 
  8. The County Engineer and Committee reviewed the 2009-10 snow removal  
  procedures. 
  9. 
  
VII. Public Comment 
 There was no public comment at this time. 
 
VIII. Meeting adjourned at 11:20 A.M. by Vice Chairman Diehl. 
  
Minutes submitted by Curtis D. Cook, PE 
 
 








 
 
 


Report to Sponsors 
 
 
Following is the latest news from Blackhawk Hills RC&D: 


NW IL Grazing Conference – The Northwest Illinois Grazing Conference is planned for Tuesday, 
December 8, 2009, at Holy Cross Church, Stockton, IL. The conference will run from 9:45 a.m. to 2:40 
p.m. with registration beginning at 9:30 a.m.  The Northwestern Illinois Grazing Conference is an 
excellent workshop opportunity for livestock producers and others to fine-tune their knowledge about 
grazing through hearing from several successful beef, sheep and dairy grazers who have incorporated 
managed grazing in their operations. Given the rising cost of farm inputs, grazing may make greater 
sense in managing today's farm expenses.  For more information on the conference visit website: 
http://jdc.extension.uiuc.edu or contact the RC&D Office. 


Marketing – M45 developed a Marketing Plan for Blackhawk Hills RC&D Council.  Some of the items that 
the Council decided to start working on are: 


 Do presentations to our funders 
 Create a RC&D Fact Sheet by County 
 Create social networking sight (Facebook) 
 Council get their own internet provider 
 Develop a PowerPoint on what we do 
 Do an E-newsletter six times a year 
 Revise our brochure 


If your organization would like someone from the RC&D Office to make a presentation at one of your 
meetings, please call the office. 
 
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant – Blackhawk Hills RC&D will receive approximately 
$750,000 to administer over the next two years for an Energy Efficiency Block Grant program.  This 
program will get underway in early 2010.     
 
Blackhawk Hills Broadband Project – We are still waiting to hear the status of our Broadband grant 
application.  We have received a letter of support from Governor Pat Quinn.  More than 140 applications 
representing Illinois were submitted and we are one of the top 18 that the Governor is recommending. 
 
 


 
December 2009 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


102 East Route 30, Suite 3  Rock Falls, IL 61071  Phone: 815-625-3854  Fax: 815-625-3831  URL: www.blackhawkhills.com 













































Blackhawk Waterways Convention & Visitor’s Bureau 
Promoting Tourism in Carroll, Lee, Ogle and Whiteside Counties 


Diane Bausman, Executive Director  
Report for Month of November 2009 


 
Meetings Attended: 
• Oct 28th – Rochelle TVA meeting 
• Oct 30th – Illinois Barn Alliance conference planning meeting in Rock Falls 
• Nov 4th – Mississippi River Region Promotion Committee meeting in Quad Cities 
• Nov. 9th – Dixon Tourism meeting 
• Nov. 10th – Carroll Co. Hotel/Motel meeting 
• Nov 11th – Illinois Barn Alliance Conference committee meeting 
• Nov 11th – Savanna Hotel/Motel meeting 
• Nov. 16th – IBOT Monitoring Visit 
• Nov. 19th – Rock Falls Tourism meeting 
• Nov. 23rd – Whiteside Co. Barn Tour meeting 
• Nov. 24th – BWCVB Board meeting 
 
Web Site Update: 
• In the last month we had 2,427 unique visitors to bwcvb.com and these visitors spent an average of 2.56 minutes 


on the site viewing an average of 3.84 pages per visit.  Of these visitors 85% came via search engines and 82.32% 
were new to the site.  


 
Bulk Mailing Update: 
• We sent out 245 packets of information during Oct and 184 in November.   
  
Public Relations: 
• WIXN Radio Show – Nov 24th 
• WCCI Radio Show – Nov 30th 
• We put donated 2 Best of the Blackhawk Chocolate Trail baskets for silent auctions held at the Ronald Reagan 


Gala on Oct 24th and the Lanark-Mt Carroll Shop Hop Nov.14th.  
 
Updates & Information: 
• On Oct 29th we sponsored a Facebook/Twitter Social Networking workshop in Dixon.  It was well attended and 


we received many positive comments.   
• Our tear off ad maps were delivered in early November and we have been busy getting them distributed 


throughout the region to hotels/motel & visitor information areas.  
• A Holiday Events Brochure was created and 1,500 have been distributed throughout the region.   
• We received approval for the Blackhawk Chocolate Trail brochures to be distributed via the State Tourism 


Information Centers located in Rapids City (Quad Cities); Monee; Oakwood & South Beloit. 
• We continue to update our Visitor Guide database so we have correct information in the 2010 VG. If you know of 


anything in the 09 VG that needs to be corrected or updated, please let me know ASAP.  
• Good news!  I received word in late November that the Blackhawk Statue in Oregon has been placed on the 


National Register of Historic Places.  
 
Dates to Remember: 
• Jan. 15th - Anticipated delivery of 2010 Visitor Guides 
• Feb. 17-19 - Governor’s Conference on Tourism at the Fairmont Hotel in downtown Chicago. 
• March 11th – Tri-State Tourism Conference in Galena.  
 


We appreciate the support we receive from you and if you would like me to give a brief presentation at your county board 
meeting on how Blackhawk Waterways CVB promotes tourism in Carroll, Lee, Ogle and Whiteside Counties, call me at  


800-678-2108 or contact me via e-mail at dbausman@bwcvb.com 
 


Blackhawk Waterways CVB Mission Statement 
To increase the economic impact to the four counties represented through promotions, 


advertising and providing information to potential visitors. 
 



mailto:dbausman@bwcvb.com
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SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS AND PLANNING
& ZONING COMMITTEE


of the
OGLE COUNTY BOARD


SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS AND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE REPORT


DECEMBER 9, 2009


The regular monthly meeting of the Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee
of the Ogle County Board was held on December 9, 2009 in the Ogle County Sheriff’s Department,
Training Room, 103 Jefferson St., Oregon, IL.


The Order of Business is as follows:


1. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF A QUORUM


Chairman Lyle Hopkins called the meeting to order at 1:04 P.M.  Roll call indicated four
members of the Committee were present; Chairman Hopkins, Mel Messer, Jim Barnes, and
Larry Boes.  Ben Diehl, Marcia Heuer and Dennis Williams were absent.  Mr. Hopkins
declared a quorum present.


2. READING AND APPROVAL OF REPORT OF NOVEMBER 10, 2009 MEETING AS
MINUTES


Mr. Messer made a motion to approve the report of November 10, 2009 as minutes;
seconded by Mr. Barnes. The motion carried by a voice vote.


SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS PORTION OF MEETING:


3. CONSIDERATION OF MONTHLY BILLS OF SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS, AND
ACTION


Monthly bills of the Supervisor of Assessments were presented to the Committee for
consideration.  The bills totaled $3,092.07.  Mr. Messer made a motion to approve the
payment of the bills in the amount of $3,092.07; seconded by Mr. Barnes.  The motion
carried by a voice vote.


4. OLD BUSINESS


Board of Review has met several times since the deadline to file appeals has passed
(November 23rd).  There were 117 assessment complaints filed.  The Board will likely hold
hearings with the property owners in January.


5. NEW BUSINESS


Chairman Hopkins asked if an auction sale of real estate would qualify as an “arm’s-length
transaction”.  Harrison responded an auction sale could be considered an “arm’s-length
transaction” if the auction was well advertised and there was active bidding between
bidders.  The IL Department of Revenue does not use auction sales in its sales ratio studies
(to determine assessment levels).
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PLANNING & ZONING PORTION OF MEETING:


6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There was no unfinished business for consideration.


7. NEW BUSINESS


A. DECISIONS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


#9-09 AMENDMENT -- JNASA Holding, LLC, %Jerald Aarvig, 12680 Ashfield
Rd., Caledonia, IL  for an Amendment to the Zoning District to rezone from AG-1
Agricultural District to R-1 Rural Residence District on property described as follows
and owned by the petitioner:


Part of the S1/2 G.L. 2 NW1/4 Fractional Section 7 Byron Township 25N,
R11E of the 4th P.M., and part of the SE1/4 of the NE1/4 Section 12 Byron
Township 25N, R10E of the 4th P.M., Ogle County, IL, 18.0 acres, more or
less
Property Identification Number: Part of 05-07-100-013, -014, & -016 and part
of 04-12-200-012, -013, & -015  
Common Location: 11490 N. Tower Rd.


After a brief discussion of the petition and review of the recommendations of the
Regional Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals, Mr. Messer made a
motion to approve #9-09 Amendment; the motion was seconded by Ms. Boes. The
motion carried unanimously by a roll call vote of 4-0.


B. MOBILE HOME APPLICATIONS - (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There were no mobile home applications for consideration.


8. SUBDIVISION PLATS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


Request of David Aarvig for an extension in the recording of the final plat for “Eagle Reserve
Plat One”


Mr. Boes made a motion to grant a 12 month extension to record the final plat of “Eagle
Reserve Plat One”; the motion was seconded by Mr. Barnes.  The motion passed by voice
vote.


9. CONSIDERATION OF MONTHLY BILLS OF PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT, AND
ACTION


Monthly bills of the Planning & Zoning Department were presented to the Committee for
consideration.  The bills totaled $217.81.  Mr. Barnes made a motion to approve the
payment of the bills in the amount of $217.81; seconded by Mr. Messer.  The motion carried
by a voice vote.


10. REFERRAL OF NEW PETITIONS TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FOR PUBLIC
HEARING


#15-09 VARIATION -- Nathan & Larinda Heller, 7981 S. Pine St. (Grand Detour), Dixon,
IL for a Variation to allow construction of an accessory building that will exceed the
maximum allowable accessory building area pursuant to Section 6.06 (D) pursuant to the
Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance on property described as follows and owned by
the petitioners:


Lots 7,8 & 9, Block 27 Original Village of Grand Detour, part of the W1/2 of the
NW1/4 Section 13 Grand Detour Township 22N, R9E of the 4th P.M., Ogle County,
IL
Property Identification Number: 21-13-102-002  
Common Location: 7981 S. Pine St.
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#10-09 AMENDMENT -- Joseph J. & Julie A. Ebens, 946 N. IL Rte. 2, Oregon, IL for an
Amendment to the Zoning District to rezone from R-2 Single-Family Residence District to R-
1 Rural Residence District on property described as follows and owned by the petitioners:


North part of E1/2 of NE1/4 Fractional Section 4 and North part of W1/2 of the
NW1/4 Fractional Section 3 Oregon-Nashua Township 23N, R10E of the 4th P.M.,
5.07 acres, more or less
Property Identification Number: 16-04-226-014 and 16-03-101-028  
Common Location: 946 N. IL Rte. 2


Mr. Barnes made a motion to refer the above new requests to the Zoning Board of Appeals
for public hearing; seconded by Mr. Messer.  The motion carried by a voice vote.


11. OTHER BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


2010 MEETING RESOLUTION


The 2010 Meeting resolution of the Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning
Committee was presented to the Committee for consideration.  Mr. Barnes made a motion
to approve the 2010 meeting resolution; seconded by Mr. Messer.  The motion carried by a
voice vote.


12. PUBLIC COMMENT


There was no public comment.


13. ADJOURN (Next meeting January 13, 2010)


The regular monthly meeting of the Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee
of the Ogle County Board adjourned at 1:30 P.M.  The next meeting of the Supervisor of
Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee is scheduled for Wednesday, January 13, 2010 at
1:00 P.M.


Respectfully submitted,


Michael Reibel
Planning & Zoning Administrator








 - 1 -


This meeting will be taped  
Ogle County Board Meeting Agenda     


 
Tuesday, December 15, 2009 at 5:30 p.m. 


 
Ogle County Farm Bureau Bldg., 421 W Pines Rd, Oregon 


 
Call to Order:   
Roll Call:   
Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance: Huntley 
 


• Motion to approve the November 17, 2009 Ogle County Board Meeting minutes 
• Motion to accept monthly reports of the Ogle County Clerk/Recorder, Treasurer and Circuit Clerk  
 


Presentation –  
 


• Rochelle Area League of Women Voters – Census Update – Diane McNeilly 
 


Resignation –  
 


• 9-1-1- ETSB – Brian Kunce (R-2009-1201) 
 


Appointments – 
 


• Ogle County Housing Authority – Kimberly Suslek (R-2009-1202) 
  


Vacancies –  
 


• Board of Health – 1 unexpired term ends 11/30/2011 - applicant is required to be a Dentist 
• Mental Health “708” Board – unexpired term ends 12/31/2011 
• Ogle County Civic Center Authority Board – 1 unexpired term  
• Ogle County Housing Authority – unexpired term ends 10/31/2011 
• 9-1-1 ETSB – unexpired term ends 06/30/2012 
 


Application deadline for this vacancy will be  
Thursday, December 31, 2009 at 4:30 p.m. in the County Clerk’s Office 


 
Zoning –   
 


#9-09 AMENDMENT -- JNASA Holding, LLC – Ordinance 2009-1203 
 
C/O Jerald Aarvig, 12680 Ashfield Rd., Caledonia, IL  for an Amendment to the Zoning District to rezone 
from AG-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Rural Residence District on property described as follows and 
owned by the petitioner: 
 


Part of the S1/2 G.L. 2 NW1/4 Fractional Section 7 Byron Township 25N, R11E of the 4th P.M., 
and part of the SE1/4 of the NE1/4 Section 12 Byron Township 25N, R10E of the 4th P.M., Ogle 
County, IL, 18.0 acres, more or less 
Property Identification Number: Part of 05-07-100-013, -014, & -016 and part of 04-12-200-012, -
013, & -015   
Common Location: 11490 N. Tower Rd. 


 
“Eagle Reserve Plat One” Extension - Ordinance 2009-1204 


 
Approve an Extension of the Recording Date of the Final Subdivision Plat of “Eagle Reserve Plat One” 
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Public Comment –  
 
Road & Bridge –  
 


• Preliminary Engineering agreement with Willett, Hofmann, & Associates for the design of road 
improvements on German Church Road from IL Rt. 64 to Deer Path Road, Section 07-00245-00-
WR, not to exceed $166,500 (R-2009-1203) 


• Section 10-00000-00-CS, 2010 County Engineer Salary Resolution, payable from Motor Fuel Tax 
and Federal Highway funds (R-2009-1204) 


 
 
Ogle County Claims – Clerk reads the claims:  
 


• Payments in Vacation –  November  2009  -  $120,076.87 
• County Board Payments -  December 2009 – $115,085.92 
• County Highway Fund – $59,321.50 
 


o Motion to approve claims as presented  
 
Committee Reports –  
 


• Finance Committee: 
o Presentation of Ordinance – Bond Abatement $9.8 General Obligation Bonds (O-2009-1201) 
o Presentation of Ordinance – Bond Abatement $5.2 General Obligation Bonds (O-2009-1202)  
o Resolution – 2009 General Fund Budget Amendment (R-2009-1205) 
 


• Executive Committee: 
o State’s Attorney Appellate Prosecutor (R-2009-1206) 
o Thomson Correctional Center (R-2009-1207) 
o Vendor Prequalification for Ogle County Construction Projects (R-2009-1208) 
o Stillman Valley Football Championship Recognition (R-2009-1210)  
 


• LRP – Courthouse Renovation Committee: 
o Project Update 
o Resolution – Courthouse Furniture Bid (R-2009-1212) 
o NITT Update 
o Approve Long Range Planning Invoices (R-2009-1211) 
 


• Personnel & Salary Committee: 
o Hiring Freeze for 2010 Budget Year (R-2009-1213)  
 


• Chairman Comments: 
o IRS Mileage Rate effective January 1, 2010 is $.50 per mile 


 
• Administrator Comments:  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 - 3 -


Unfinished Business – 
 
New Business –  
 
Communications –  


• Christmas Tree Recycling 
 


Motion to adjourn until Tuesday, January 19, 2010 at 5:30 p.m.  
 


Agenda is posted at the following locations: 
 


122 S. Wesley Ave, Mt Morris (Watt Bldg)  
Ogle County Farm Bureau Bldg., 421 W Pines Rd, Oregon 


 www.oglecounty.org 



http://www.oglecounty.org/






STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS


COUNTY OF OGLE )


ORDINANCE NO.                                  


AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXTENSION OF THE RECORDING DATE OF THE
FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT OF “EAGLE RESERVE PLAT ONE”


WHEREAS, on June 17, 2008 the Ogle County Board adopted an ordinance approving the final subdivision
plat of “Eagle Reserve Plat One” (County Board Ordinance No. 2008-6001); and


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Ogle County Land Subdivision Regulations, a final subdivision plat is required
to be recorded with the Ogle County Recorder within six (6) months of the date of approval by the Ogle County
Board; and


WHEREAS, on December 16, 2009 the Ogle County Board adopted an ordinance approving a twelve-
month extension of the recording dated of the final subdivision plat of “Eagle Reserve Plat One”; and


WHEREAS, Aarvig Development, LLC, the owner and developer of the aforementioned subdivision, has
filed a written request for an extension of the required extended recording date of the aforementioned final
subdivision plat; and


WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Committee of the Ogle County Board has reviewed the written
request of Aarvig Development, LLC, and has recommended that a twelve (12) month extension of the recording
date of the final subdivision plat of “Eagle Reserve Plat One” be granted.


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF OGLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS,
as follows:


SECTION ONE: The required recording date for the final subdivision plat of “Eagle Reserve Plat One” is
hereby extended for a period of twelve (12) months to December 15, 2010.


SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption by the County Board of
Ogle County, Illinois and attestation by the Ogle County Clerk.


PASSED BY THE COUNTY BOARD THIS 15TH DAY OF DECEMBER 2009 A.D.


                                                                              
W. Ed Rice, Chairman of the Ogle County Board


ATTEST:


                                                                              
Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk and
Ex Officio Clerk of the Ogle County Board
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2008 EA Study Results ‐ Job Levels and Recommended Salary Ranges


OGLE COUNTY SALARY SURVEY
Level Points Minimum Mid-Point Maximum


1 200 or fewer $9.02 / $16,424 $11.28 / $20,530 $13.54 / $24,636


2 200 - 255 $11.17 / $20,326 $13.96 / $25,407 $16.75 / $30,489


3 256 - 305 $13.71 / $24,956 $17.11 / $31,195 $20.57 / $37,428


4 306 - 355 $15.68 / $28,538 $19.60 / $35,672 $23.52 / $42,806


5 356 - 405 $16.60 / $30,212 $20.75 / $37,765 $24.90 / $45,318


6 406 or more $21.03 / $38,278 $26.29 / $47,848 $31.55 / $57,417
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) SS 


COUNTY OF OGLE ) 
ORDINANCE NO. _ 


AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT ON PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 11490 N. TOWER ROAD. BYRON TOWNSHIP 


WHEREAS, JNASA Holding, LLC c/o Jerald Aarvig, 12680 Ashfield Rd., Caledonia, IL has filed a petition for 
a Map Amendment (Petition No. 09-09AM) to re-zone from AG-l Agricultural District to R-l Rural Residence District on 
property located at 11490 N. Tower Road and legally described as shown in Exhibit "A" attached hereto; and 


WHEREAS, following due and proper notice by publication in the Ogle County Life at least fifteen (15) days 
prior thereto, and by mailing notice to all owners of property abutting the subject property at least fifteen (15) days prior 
thereto, the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals conducted a public hearing on November 24,2009, at which the 
petitioner presented evidence, testimony, and exhibits in support of the requested Map Amendment, and no member(s) of 
the public spoke in favor of or against the petition; and 


WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having considered the evidence, testimony and exhibits presented has 
made its findings of fact and recommended that the requested Map Amendment be approved as set forth in the Findings of 
Fact and Recommendation of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals dated November 24,2009, a copy of which is 
appended hereto as Exhibit "B"; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Committee of the Ogle County Board has reviewed the testimony and 
exhibits presented at the public hearing and has considered the Findings of Fact and recommendation of the Zoning Board 
of Appeals, and has forwarded a recommendation to the Ogle County Board that the requested Map Amendment be 
approved; and 


WHEREAS, the Ogle County Board has considered the findings offact and recommendation of the Zoning 
Board ofAppeals and the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Committee, and has determined that granting the 
Map Amendment would be consistent with the requirements established by Section 9.07(G) ofthe Ogle County 
Amendatory Zoning Ordinance; 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF OGLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 


SECTION ONE: The report of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals, Exhibit "B" attached hereto, is hereby 
accepted and the findings set forth therein are hereby adopted as the findings offact and conclusions of the Ogle County 
Board. 


SECTION TWO: Based on the findings of fact as set forth above, the parcel of land located at 11490 N. Tower 
Road in Byron Township and legally described as shown in Exhibit "A" attached hereto, is hereby rezoned from AG
1 Agricultural District to R-l Rural Residence District, and the Ogle County Zoning Map shall be amended to reflect 
said zone change. 


SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption by the County Board 
of Ogle County, Illinois and attestation by the Ogle County Clerk. 


SECTION FOUR: Failure of the owners of other party in interest to comply with the terms of this 
Ordinance, after execution of such Ordinance, shall subject the owners or party in interest to the penalties set forth in 
Section 9.10 ofthe Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance. 


PASSED BY THE COUNTY BOARD THIS 15TH DAY OF DECEMBER 2009 A.D. 


W. Ed Rice, Chairman of the Ogle County Board 


ATTEST: 


Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk and 
Ex Officio Clerk ofthe Ogle County Board 
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EXHmIT "A"
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
 


Part of the Northwest Fractional Quarter of Section 7, Township 25 North, Range 11 East of the 4th Principal 
Meridian and part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 12, Township 25 North, Range 10 East of the 4th Principal 
Meridian, described as follows: Beginning at a point which is North 0°42'56" West coincident with the East line of 
the Southeast Quarter of said Northwest Fractional Quarter of Section 7 a distance of 506.54 feet from the Southeast 
comer of said Northwest Fraction Quarter of Section 7 and running thence North 89°55'42" West a distance of 
341.82 feet to a point; thence South 68°24'06" West a distance of71.18 feet to a point; thence South 89°15'46" West 
a distance of 1,942.77 feet to a point; thence North 00° 44'17" West a distance of353.72 feet to a point; thence South 
89°55'42" East a distance of2,351.42 to a point on said East line of Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Fractional 
Quarter of Section 7; thence South 0°42'56" East coincident with said East line a distance of300.00 feet to the point 
of beginning, containing 18.00 acres, situated in the Township of Byron, the County of Ogle and the State of Illinois. 


Part of Property Identification Nos. 05-07-100-013, -014 & -016; and, 04-12-200-012, -013 & -014 
Common Location: 11490 N. Tower Road 







Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals 
911 W. Pines Road 


Oregon, IL 61061 - 815.732.1190 
Fax: 815.732.2229 


FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDAnON
 
OF THE OGLE COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
 


This is the fmdings of fact and the recommendation of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals 
concerning an application of JNASA Holding, LLC c/o Jerald Aarvig, 12680 Ashfield Rd., Caledonia, IL, 
in case #09-09AM. The applicant is requesting a map amendment to change the zoning classification of' 
part ofParcel Identification Nos. 05-07-100-013, -014 & -016, and part of Parcel Identification Nos. 04
12-200-012, -013, & -014, an 18.0 acre parcel, from AG-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Rural Residence 
District. Said parcel is part of Section 7, Township 25N, Range lIE ofthe 4th Principal Meridian and part 
of Section 12, Township 25N, Range 10E of the 4th Principal Meridian and is located in Byron Township 
at 11490 N. Tower Road. 


After due notice, as required by law, the Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing in this case on 
November 24,2009 at the Ogle County Farm Bureau, 421 W. Pines Rd., Oregon, Illinois and hereby 
report their fmdings offact and their recommendation as follows: 


SITE INFORMATION: See Staff Report (attached herewith). 


ANALYSIS OF SEVEN STANDARDS: After considering all the evidence and testimony presented at 
the public hearing, this Board makes the following analysis of the six standards listed in Section 9.07(G) 
(Standards for Map Amendments) of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance that must all be 
found in the affmnative prior to recommending granting of the petition. 


1.	 That the proposed amendment will allow development that is compatible with existing uses and 
zoning of nearby property. Development of the site for residential use is compatible with the 
established agricultural and residential uses of nearby properties, considering the current 
use of the property. Standard met. 


2.	 That the County of Ogle and other service providers will be able to provide adequate public 
facilities and services to the property (including, but not necessarily limited to, schools, police and 
fire protection, roads and highways, water supply and sewage disposal), while maintaining 
adequate public facilities and levels of service to existing development. The continued use of the 
site for residential use will not create a burden on the County of Ogle and other public 
service providers because only one house will be constructed on the site that fronts on a 
County highway, and also due to its relative proximity to urban services. Standard met. 


3.	 That the proposed amendment will not result in significant adverse impacts on other property in 
the vicinity of the subject site or on the environment, including air, noise, stormwater management, 
wildlife and natural resources. No adverse impacts on other property in the vicinity ofthe 
subject site or on the environment, including air, noise, stormwater management, wildlife 
and natural resources are anticipated from the development of the site. Standard met. 


1 







4.	 That the subject property is suitable for the proposed zoning classification. The site is suitable 
for the R-l zoning district, as it is in a rural area, it has a medium LESA score, there are 3 
non-farm residential uses within Yz mile and other residences within close proximity, and the 
petition is not inconsistent with the purpose and intent of the R-l zoning district. Standard 
met. 


5.	 That the proposed zoning classification is consistent with the trend of development, if any, in the 
general area of the subject property including changes, if any, which have taken place since the 
day the property in question was placed in its present zoning classification. There is a trend of 
development in the vicinity of residential uses on many parcels in the immediate area. The 
proposed zoning classification is consistent with this trend and the existing zoning of the 
surrounding land. Standard met. 


6.	 That the proposed amendment is consistent with the public interest and not solely for the interest 
of the applicant, giving due consideration to the stated purpose and intent of the Amendatory 
Zoning Ordinance as set forth in Division I therein, the Land Evaluation and Site Assessment 
(LESA) fmdings (if applicable), and the recommendation(s) of the Ogle County Regional Planning 
Commission with respect to the Ogle County Amendatory Comprehensive Plan. The proposed 
amendment is consistent with the public interest and is not solely for the interest of the 
applicant. The LESA score indicates a medium rating for protection. The proposed 
amendment is consistent with the purpose and intent of the Amendatory Zoning Ordinance. 
The Regional Planning Commission has recommended approval. Standard met. 


'f 
RECOMMENDATION: We fmd that the proposed map amendment requested meets all the standards 
for recommending granting as found in Section 9.07(G) of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning 
Ordinance and that such request is in the public interest. Therefore, the Zoning Board of Appeals hereby 
recommends that the zoning district classification of the property described above be changed from 
AG-I Agricultural District to R-I Rural Residence District. 


ROLL CALL VOTE: The roll call vote was 5 members for the motion to recommend granting, 0 
opposed. 


Respectfully submitted this 24th day ofNovember 2009 by the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals. 


Bruce McKinney, Chairman 
Maurice Bronkema 
Jason Sword 
Randall Anderson 
Curtis Freeberg 


Bruce McKinney, Chair 


ATTEST: 


~~~ 
Michael Reibel, Secretary 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS   )
                    )SS
COUNTY OF OGLE      )


In the Matter of the Petition
              of
Fasco Holding, Inc., Dement Township
Ogle County, Illinois


               Testimony of Witnesses
               Produced, Sworn and
               Examined on this 24th day
               of November 2009
               before the Ogle County
               Zoning Board of Appeals


Present:
Maurice Bronkema
Randall Anderson
Curtis Freeberg
Jason Sword
Bruce McKinney, Chairman
Michael Reibel, Zoning Administrator
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Next order of business?
2           MR. REIBEL:  Next order of business is to
3      consider the request filed November 4th, 2009 of
4      Fasco Holding, Incorporated in care of
5      Richard Zimmerman, P.O. Box 170, Mendota,
6      Illinois and ADM Grain Company in care of
7      Jeff Mauck and Michael O'Donnell, P.O. Box 350,
8      Mendota, Illinois for a variation to allow a
9      grain bin to be constructed 37 feet from the


10      right-of-way line of East Illinois Route 38 in
11      lieu of 80 feet as required pursuant to the Ogle
12      County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance on property
13      described as follows and owned by Fasco Holding,
14      Incorporated and being leased by ADM Grain
15      Company:
16           Part of the SW1/4 of the SE1/4 Section 14


          Dement Township 40N, R2E of the 3rd P.M.,
17           Ogle County, IL, 9.60 acres, more or less.


          Property Identification Number:
18           25-14-400-007.  Common Location:  19560


          East Illinois Route 38.
19


          For the record a sign was posted along the
20      frontage of the premises indicating that a
21      zoning hearing is to be held.  All adjoining
22      property owners have been notified by certified
23      mail of the hearing this evening and the
24      specifics of the petition and legal notices have
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1      been published in the November 9th edition of
2      the Ogle County Life and the November 10th
3      edition of the Rochelle News Leader notifying
4      the public of the hearing this evening and the
5      specifics of the petition.
6           Under the staff report I will point out
7      that the -- under general information the site
8      is located at the northeast corner of the
9      intersection of East Illinois Route 38 and South


10      Beck Road.  The size of this parcel is 9.60
11      acres.  It's 600 feet by 700 feet.  Existing
12      land use is a commercial grain facility.
13      Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  All adjoining
14      land is in agricultural use, cropland.  All
15      adjoining land is zoned AG-1 Agricultural
16      District.  Zoning History:  A Special Use Permit
17      for a commercial grain elevator and storage
18      facilities with goods and services associated
19      with it was granted by the County Board on May
20      10th, 1977.  Applicable Regulations:  The
21      required setback from a State highway is 80 feet
22      measured from the right-of-way line.  Special
23      Information, Public Utilities:  None.
24      Transportation:  Illinois Route 38 is a State
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1      maintained highway.  Beck Road is a seal coat
2      surfaced road under the jurisdiction of Dement
3      Township.  Physical Characteristics:  The site
4      contains a grain storage shed, equipment storage
5      building, office and scale and several grain
6      bins/silos with associated equipment.  The site
7      is located on an upland ridgetop in an area of
8      gently rolling terrain with slopes on the site
9      ranging from zero to 2 percent to 5 to 10


10      percent.  The soils on-site range from well
11      drained to poorly drained.  The site is not
12      subject to the flooding, but portions of the
13      site may be subject to occasional ponding.
14      That's all I have.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  This is a public hearing,
16      so I'll entertain a motion to go into a public
17      hearing.
18           MR. SWORD:  I so move.
19           MR. ANDERSON:  I'll second.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Jason has moved, Randy has
21      seconded to go into a public hearing.  All those
22      in favor signify by saying aye.
23                     (All those simultaneously
24                     responded.)
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1      the stake.  From then on we -- based on the
2      boring samples we dug up the ground and then we
3      went and then we were checking density on the
4      rock and then we went to the concrete and I
5      assumed everything was good until we came out to
6      get an occupancy measurement and that's when we
7      discovered that we were off.  The problem that I
8      have and per discussion with the contractor is
9      we're right on based from the measurements from


10      the established bin sites.  Everything that was
11      pre-engineered and pre-drawn fit perfectly.  We
12      didn't have to scale back anything or extend
13      anything.  It was -- it was just -- it laid out
14      just like they expected it to.  Somehow we
15      mismeasured from the center of the road.  And I
16      guess, you know, you learn some things as you go
17      along, but I just -- I just assumed once we had
18      that stake and all the drawings were fitting
19      that I thought we were right on.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  And this was a licensed
21      surveyor that surveyed this from the center of
22      the road?
23           MR. O'DONNELL:  When we set the stake?
24           MR. McKINNEY:  When you set the stake.
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say nay.
2      Motion passed.  We are in a public hearing.
3      Will the Petitioner please come forward.
4                  MICHAEL O'DONNELL,
5      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Give her your name.
7           MR. O'DONNELL:  Michael O'Donnell.
8      O-'-D-O-N-N-E-L-L.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  Tell us about your


10      petition.
11           MR. O'DONNELL:  Well, I was in here
12      originally.  We went with 43.4 is how far we
13      were going to be away.  What we're asking is 37
14      which is something that we discovered after we
15      went to get occupancy that we were off by
16      6 foot.  How do I explain it?  I can't explain
17      it with conviction.  We did a measurement with
18      the center stake.  We considered that stake good
19      and accurate.  We based off that center stake
20      and basically we were using a contractor that
21      we're very comfortable with that we've used in
22      many different jobs, it's Prairieland Millwright
23      and I had drawings and prints and I thought -- I
24      assumed they were accurate once we established
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1           MR. O'DONNELL:  No, we -- when we had the
2      stake set we had the County come out and check
3      the stake and we all felt that it was -- it was
4      proper and that's what we established it off of.
5           MR. ANDERSON:  So who did the measurement
6      this time to come up with --
7           MR. O'DONNELL:  We did.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Somebody's calculating
9      their math a little on the wrong side.


10           MR. O'DONNELL:  You know, to tell you the
11      truth -- to be honest when we first came in and
12      started doing it we were saying okay, we're
13      invested into this bin, we want to put a 90 in
14      and we were concerned about the variance and
15      with the road and how close we were and I don't
16      know if we messed up trying to put different
17      size bins because that's what we were trying to
18      think in our heads is could we do this and if it
19      didn't pass -- I don't know if something
20      happened there, but what's really weird is we
21      also measured -- this doesn't tell you.  This
22      measurement from this existing pit building to
23      here is -- is right on, so that's why all the
24      engineering was perfect.  Somehow we missed -- I
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1      can't even explain it.  They can't explain it
2      and -- because they said everything that they
3      got is -- is perfect.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Is the bin bigger than what
5      you --
6           MR. O'DONNELL:  No, it's a 90, it's a GSI
7      90 bin.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.
9           MR. FREEBERG:  So the County measured the


10      first time and it looked like everything was
11      okay and now -- I don't know who measured it
12      first, but now the County measured the second
13      time and said it was --
14           MR. O'DONNELL:  Well, we measured the
15      center stake and then we said it was okay and
16      then we measured -- when we did this drawing the
17      only thing that's different is -- and something
18      that I've learned is instead of being perfect
19      you should give yourself a little bit on a
20      larger project like this, but we were doing it
21      based on the bin.  The bin is 16 inches in from
22      the concrete which doesn't establish the 6 foot,
23      but I'm just saying that that was a little bit
24      of the difference there.  I don't know where the
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1      and that's where we measured from is from the
2      stake that they set.  We were out there before
3      the variation was filed.  We were out there
4      prior to construction and everything measured
5      out at the 43 feet, 4 inches and there are
6      right-of-way markers out there that are very
7      clear.  You can line yourself up.  It's real
8      easy to see and, you know, how this happened
9      nobody -- nobody can explain.


10           MR. BRONKEMA:  It must have moved, huh?
11           MR. McKINNEY:  One of the questions for a
12      standard is the alleged difficulty or hardship
13      has not been created by any person presently
14      having an interest in the property.  Where do
15      you think the difficulty came from?
16           MR. O'DONNELL:  I'm confused.  What do you
17      mean the alleged difficulty?
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Well, basically whose fault
19      do you think this is?
20           MR. O'DONNELL:  I don't know.  I can't see
21      it being mine except for not checking after we
22      -- but I would say it would be the contractor
23      that -- that's what I would think that the
24      measurement was wrong from the beginning.  I
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1      rest of the footage came different, but yes, the
2      County came in and then once the County measured
3      the stake and that was our center point, then I
4      really didn't check any of the measurements
5      after that.  Basically what I was concentrating
6      on is from the boring samples we pulled out 8 to
7      10 feet of dirt and subsoil and we replaced with
8      CA6 and made sure that we were at 95 percent
9      compaction.  Then when we went and did the


10      concrete we had Midwest testing there and we
11      concentrated on the concrete to make sure that
12      we were 4,000 PSI and measured all the rebar
13      specs and I just assumed that we were on and
14      then I called Mr. Reibel to come and give us our
15      permit to occupancy and that's when we
16      discovered that we were off and he said this
17      is --
18           MR. FREEBERG:  Did you measure it -- did
19      you measure it from the center of the road
20      assuming the center of the road was in the
21      middle of the right-of-way?
22           MR. REIBEL:  Everything jives with -- from
23      the center of the road to the right-of-way to
24      the right-of-way to where it was supposed to be
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1      don't know.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  You don't think the stake
3      got moved or anything?
4           MR. O'DONNELL:  I don't think so.  I can't
5      imagine it being moved I guess because, you
6      know, the stake is there and then you start
7      removing the dirt and you base that measurement
8      off that stake.  That's how we did it, that's
9      how we laid it out and we painted it to


10      determine where we were going to cut the ground.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Have you had this problem
12      in any other --
13           O'DONNELL:  The thing that gets me though
14      is if they moved the stake, which was
15      established before all the equipment was already
16      there, everything was pretty much there ready to
17      go and it was already pre-ordered in February
18      and I -- you would think that they would be
19      coming to me saying that this conveyor doesn't
20      fit, we have to extend this spout, because 6
21      foot is substantial once you go up the amount of
22      height that we went up and everything fits just
23      where -- this end of it on the bin structure
24      side fits right where it was established.
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  So the conveyors and all
2      from the dryer --
3           MR. O'DONNELL:  Yeah, it fits perfect and
4      we -- and the reason it had to fit perfect is
5      because we wanted to be very close to the lake
6      because we had very little fall, so if they
7      would have come forward we couldn't have
8      established our degree of slope for grain to
9      move and it was right up at that stake of that


10      bin -- I mean the stake of that tower.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Remind me, the grain bin
12      that was there got destroyed or something?
13           MR. O'DONNELL:  Yeah, the wind -- it was
14      windblown and collapsed on the sidewalk.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  But it was a smaller --
16           MR. O'DONNELL:  It was a 60 and we put in
17      a 90 with the thought process that it would be a
18      holding -- a more -- we could carry more grain
19      and hold more grain for the farmers.
20           MR. SWORD:  How many bushel is that bin?
21           MR. O'DONNELL:  This one?  550,000.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Have you got grain in it
23      now or --
24           MR. O'DONNELL:  Huh-uh.  Well, I take that
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1      facility.  They've done a lot of -- they put in
2      a new bin and a new leg in for us in Mendota.
3      They're a very established company and that's
4      why we use them because they can do their own
5      auto CAD drawings and print them all out for us.
6      They've never I guess been off before and
7      they're considering from the old -- the old
8      buildings that they're not off.  Somehow we just
9      established the right-of-way or the reading from


10      the center of the road wrong, because our bin is
11      perfect -- I shouldn't say perfect, but it's
12      right where they thought it was going to be.
13           MR. FREEBERG:  As a retired engineer I
14      would just say that every once in a while no
15      matter how much you try to check things and
16      double-check things, stuff happens.
17           MR. O'DONNELL:  But 6 foot?  I just
18      don't --
19           MR. BRONKEMA:  Especially when your
20      conveyor fit.
21           MR. O'DONNELL:  That's what confuses me
22      the most and that's what he came and actually
23      showed me, he said that it's -- when we
24      established 11 inches and I may be wrong, but he
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1      back.  My manager put in a thousand bushel
2      before I -- before he told me and I told him to
3      stop because I did not get the permit, so I do
4      have a thousand -- one load, one semi load went
5      in there before I could get them stopped.
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Anything else?
7           MR. BRONKEMA:  Well, really if we're just
8      talking 6 feet I don't see where it's going to
9      make much difference.


10           MR. O'DONNELL:  I guess I'm just confused,
11      because you know how big a project it is and I
12      just -- I just can't see how it could be off 6
13      foot.
14           MR. McKINNEY:  Has this ever happened
15      before on any other bins you've put up?
16           MR. O'DONNELL:  Pardon?
17           MR. McKINNEY:  Has this ever happened
18      before?
19           MR. O'DONNELL:  Well, you now, you never
20      really checked it that close.  You've always
21      checked it engineering-wise on old structures
22      and with Prairieland we've never been off on old
23      structures.  They've done work for us in
24      Steward.  They built that extension on the rail
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1      told me how much it should be right here and we
2      were right on right off this bin and then this
3      tail section had to be within a certain distance
4      and we measured that and it was right on.  But I
5      think we just established this wrong.
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Any other questions
7      from the Board?
8           MR. SWORD:  No.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  All right.  Do you have


10      anything else?
11           MR. O'DONNELL:  I don't think so.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Well, unless you've got any
13      comment and want to testify in favor or opposing
14      it, I don't think we have anybody here left to
15      testify and there's no letter of appearance
16      entered.
17           MR. REIBEL:  No.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  So I will ask for a motion
19      to go back into open session.
20           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
21           MR. FREEBERG:  Second.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  It's been moved and
23      seconded to go back into open session.  All
24      those in favor signify by saying aye.
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1                     (All those simultaneously
2                     responded.)
3           MR. McKINNEY:  All right.  Any opposed say
4      nay.  Back into open session and we'll get our
5      finding of facts.
6           MR. REIBEL:  Variation Standard A)  That
7      the particular physical surrounding, shape or
8      topographical condition of the specific property
9      involved would result in a particular hardship


10      upon the owner as distinguished from a mere
11      inconvenience if the strict letter of the
12      regulations were carried out.
13           MR. BRONKEMA:  The location and design of
14      the existing structure and facility on the site
15      create a hardship to the construction of the
16      grain bin that meets the requirement setback of
17      80 feet.  I feel the standard is met.
18                     (All those agreed.)
19           MR. REIBEL:  B)  The conditions upon which
20      the petition for a variation are based are
21      unique and would not be applicable generally to
22      other property within the same zoning
23      classification.
24           MR. FREEBERG:  The conditions upon which
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1      hardship has not been created by Fasco Holding
2      or ADM Grain Company because of the need to
3      construct a new grain bin has been created by
4      the fact that a grain bin was destroyed by the
5      weather.  Standard met.
6                     (All those agreed.)
7           MR. REIBEL:  E)  The granting of the
8      variation will not be materially detrimental to
9      the public welfare or injurious to other


10      property or improvements in the neighborhood in
11      which the property is located.
12           MR. ANDERSON:  No evidence has been
13      submitted that would indicate that the granting
14      of the variation would be materially detrimental
15      to the public welfare or injurious to other
16      property or improvements in the neighborhood in
17      which the property is located.  I feel that
18      standard is met.
19                     (All those agreed.)
20           MR. REIBEL:  F)  The proposed variation
21      will not impair an adequate supply of light and
22      air to adjacent property or substantially
23      increase the congestion in the public streets or
24      increase the danger of fire or endanger the
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1      the petition for a variation are based are
2      unique and are not applicable generally to other
3      property within the AG-1 Agricultural District
4      due to the location, design and existing
5      facilities on the site.  I feel the standard is
6      met.
7                     (All those agreed.)
8           MR. REIBEL:  C)  The purpose of the
9      variation is not based exclusively upon a desire


10      to obtain a higher financial return on the
11      property.
12           MR. SWORD:  Evidence indicates that the
13      purpose of the variation is not based
14      exclusively upon a desire to obtain a higher
15      financial return on the property, but rather to
16      provide additional grain storage capacity for an
17      existing commercial grain facility that serves
18      the agricultural community in the surrounding
19      area.  I feel that standard is met.
20                     (All those agreed.)
21           MR. REIBEL:  D)  The alleged difficulty or
22      hardship has not been created by any person
23      presently having an interest in the property.
24           MR. BRONKEMA:  The alleged difficulty or
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1      public safety or substantially diminish or
2      impair property values within the neighborhood.
3           MR. FREEBERG:  No evidence has been
4      submitted that would indicate that the variation
5      will impair an adequate supply of light and air
6      to adjacent property or substantially increase
7      the congestion in the public streets or increase
8      the danger of fire or endanger the public safety
9      or substantially diminish or impair property


10      values within the neighborhood.  The standard is
11      met.
12                     (All those agreed.)
13           MR. REIBEL:  The Zoning Board of Appeals
14      shall not vary the regulations of this ordinance
15      unless it shall make findings based upon the
16      evidence presented to it in each specific case
17      that, A, the plight of the owner is due to
18      unique circumstances.
19           MR. ANDERSON:  The circumstances are
20      unique due to the design and location of
21      existing grain facilities.  I feel that standard
22      is met.
23                     (All those agreed.)
24           MR. REIBEL:  B)  The variation, if
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1      granted, will not alter the essential character
2      of the locality.
3           MR. BRONKEMA:  The variation will not
4      alter the essential character of the locality of
5      the site.  It's currently used as a commercial
6      grain facility and the proposed grain bin will
7      be in character with the existing facilities.
8      Standard met.
9                     (All those agreed.)


10           MR. McKINNEY:  Going through our finding
11      of facts we found that all standards have been
12      met, so I will entertain a motion.
13           MR. BRONKEMA:  I will a make a motion that
14      we grant the variation of 14-09 for Fasco
15      Holding for the construction of the grain bin 37
16      feet from the right-of-way in lieu of the 80
17      feet with all the standards being met.
18           MR. ANDERSON:  I'll second that.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Maury has moved, Randy has
20      seconded to approve Variation No. 14-09.  Roll
21      call?
22           MR. REIBEL:  Freeberg?
23           MR. FREEBERG:  Yes.
24           MR. REIBEL:  Sword?


Page 23


1           MR. McKINNEY:  No further business.
2      Meeting is adjourned.
3                     (The hearing was concluded at
4                     8:26 p.m.)
5
6
7
8
9


10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
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1           MR. SWORD:  Yes.
2           MR. REIBEL:  Anderson?
3           MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.
4           MR. REIBEL:  Bronkema?
5           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yes.
6           MR. REIBEL:  McKinney?
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Yes.
8           (By voice vote five ayes.)
9           MR. REIBEL:  Five voted yes.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  Motion passed.  Go fill it
11      up.
12           MR. REIBEL:  We'll go ahead and send you
13      an occupancy certificate then, Mike.
14           MR. O'DONNELL:  Pardon?
15           MR. REIBEL:  We'll send you an occupancy
16      certificate.
17           MR. O'DONNELL:  Okay.
18           MR. REIBEL:  We really don't need to take
19      another look at it.  We've already taken our
20      look and measured, so --
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Don't want to measure it
22      again.
23           MR. REIBEL:  We don't want to measure it
24      again.
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1           Now on this 24th day of November 2009, I
2      do signify that the foregoing testimony was
3      given before the Ogle County Zoning Board of
4      Appeals.
5
6
7
8


               Bruce McKinney, Chairman
9


10
11
12
13


               Michael Reibel,
14                Zoning Administrator
15
16
17
18


               Julie K. Edeus
19                Certified Shorthand Reporter


               IL License No. 084-003820
20                P.O. Box 381


               Dixon, Illinois  61021
21
22
23
24
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Next order of business?
2           MR. REIBEL:  Next order of business is to
3      consider the request filed October 26th, 2009 of
4      Marvin and Debra Horsman, 8735 East Flagg Road,
5      Rochelle, Illinois for a variation to allow an
6      addition to an accessory building that exceeds
7      the maximum allowable accessory building area
8      due to parcel size pursuant to Section 6.06(D)
9      of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance


10      on property described as follows and owned by
11      the Petitioners:
12           Part of the S1/2 SE1/4 Fractional Section


          36 Pine Rock Township 23N, R11E of the 4th
13           P.M., Ogle County, IL, 1.75 acres, more or


          less.  Property Identification Number:
14           17-36-400-005.  Common Location:  8725


          East Flagg Road.
15
16           For the record, a sign was posted along
17      the frontage of the property indicating that a
18      zoning hearing is to be held.  All adjoining
19      property owners to the petition have been
20      notified by certified mail of the hearing this
21      evening and the specifics of the petition and a
22      legal notice was published in the November 3rd
23      edition of the Rochelle News Leader notifying
24      the public of the hearing this evening and the
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1      specifics of the petition.
2           Under the staff report, a copy of which is
3      on file and the Board members have received, I
4      will point out that under general information
5      the location of the site is located on the south
6      side of East Flagg Road beginning approximately
7      a tenth of a mile east of South Bend Road and a
8      tenth of a mile west of South Meridian Road.
9      Existing Land Use of the site is residential.


10      The site contains a single-family dwelling, a 22
11      by 24 detached garage and a 42 by 98 detached
12      garage.  Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The
13      site is zoned AG-1 Agricultural District.  The
14      site is located in a predominantly agricultural
15      area and all surrounding land is in agricultural
16      use and zoned AG-1 Agricultural District.  No
17      previous zoning history on the site.  Special
18      Information, Public Utilities:  None.
19      Transportation:  Flagg Road is hot mix surfaced
20      Ogle County Highway.  Physical Characteristics:
21      The site is located in an area of nearly level
22      to very gently rolling terrain and the site is
23      nearly level.
24           I have a letter on file from the Pine Rock
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1      Township Planning Commission which reads:
2


               "This letter is being issued to
3           advise your committee that the above


          petition by the Horsmans was not approved
4           by the Pine Rock Planning Commission and


          by the Pine Rock Township Board.  Our
5           basis of this denial is that the addition


          of the accessory building will exceed the
6           approved December 2008 Zoning Ordinance by


          more than double the allowable accessory
7           building space on 1.75 acres of land.  We


          recommend that the Zoning Board of Appeals
8           honor this recommendation and deny the


          Horsmans' petition.  Additionally, we
9           recommend that your committee also verify


          whether the Horsmans have the proper
10           zoning on the property to conduct a


          commercial trucking business.  The current
11           zoning of the property was not provided to


          our planning commission.  Thank you for
12           your consideration.  Respectfully, William


          Welty, Chairman, Pine Rock Township
13           Planning Commission."
14           And I also have a letter on file from the
15      Pine Rock Township Clerk which reads:
16                "The Pine Rock Township planning


          commission met November 5th, 2009 and
17           voted to deny this request.  Following


          discussion at the regular township board
18           meeting on November 10th, 2009, the Pine


          Rock Township Board also voted unanimously
19           to deny this request in order to conform


          to the County Zoning Ordinance
20           restrictions for the following reason:


          The existing accessory buildings on this
21           property are 4,644 square feet.  The size


          of Mr. Horsman's parcel only allows 2,287
22           square feet per the December 2008 Zoning


          Ordinance Amendment establishing a maximum
23           square footage of accessory building.


          Signed by Carol Eckert, Pine Rock Township
24           Clerk."
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1      applied for a permit to build the building
2      that's there at a hundred and eight by 42.  At
3      the time I decided the -- with the floor drain
4      restrictions and a lot of over expense that I
5      hadn't anticipated, so I cut the size of the
6      building down to 98 by 42 and I shortened ten
7      feet up on the back.  At that time I was a
8      little over 17 feet away, but I went ahead and
9      poured the slab and everything for the existing


10      permit which was a hundred and eight by 42 and
11      all I wanted to do as opposed to adding 10 by
12      42, you know, like the original permit was, I
13      just wanted to put 12 by 22.  Just -- I've got
14      snowplows and some other stuff I like to keep
15      inside and out of sight and that's basically all
16      I wanted to do is just add on to the back corner
17      of that back in behind.  It's virtually
18      unnoticeable from the road.  All the steel and
19      everything would be identical to the other shed
20      and it would be constructed properly.  I mean,
21      that's basically all I wanted to do.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  You didn't think you needed
23      another building permit to put this addition on?
24           MR. HORSMAN:  I messed that up, yes, I
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1           And that's all I have.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  This is a public hearing,
3      so I'll entertain a motion to go into a public
4      hearing.
5           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
6           MR. SWORD:  Second.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Maury moved, Jason seconded
8      to go into a public hearing.  All those in favor
9      signify by saying aye.


10                     (All those simultaneously
11                     responded.)
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say nay.
13      Motion passed.  We're in a public hearing.
14      Petitioner or whoever is representing the
15      Petitioners.
16                    MARVIN HORSMAN,
17      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Give her your name and --
19           MR. HORSMAN:  Marvin Horsman,
20      H-O-R-S-M-A-N, 8735 Flagg Road, Rochelle,
21      Illinois, 61068.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Tell us about your
23      petition.
24           MR. HORSMAN:  Well, originally I had
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1      did, yes, I did.  I put blocks and stuff up
2      there and then not being that well-versed with
3      that, no, I didn't know.  I guess I really
4      didn't stop and think about it.  As soon as I
5      was notified I stopped doing what I was doing
6      and did it right.  The existing building and
7      everything and everything else I've done out
8      there from the septic to everything, I've got
9      the right permits and applied for that and


10      that's all been taken care of and I think the
11      record shows that.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  And you run a business on
13      this property?
14           MR. HORSMAN:  I've got one truck, one semi
15      that I haul heavy equipment.  There's nobody
16      that works for me, nobody else that lives there
17      or anything like that.  It's just me.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  This doesn't require a
19      special use or anything?
20           MR. REIBEL:  Just one truck doesn't.  It's
21      the number of snowplows and that kind of
22      stuff --
23           MR. HORSMAN:  What's that, Mike?
24           MR. REIBEL:  Do you have a number of large
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1      like township snowplow trucks?
2           MR. HORSMAN:  I've got two of them setting
3      there now that's sold.  I just bought them to
4      sell them.  They're sold and they'll be leaving
5      this Friday.
6           MR. REIBEL:  Okay, so no commercial
7      activity?
8           MR. HORSMAN:  But I've got -- my skid
9      loader with a push box and stuff on it and I've


10      got a loader that I bought on sale that I use
11      around there moving stuff and I lease it out to
12      Rockford Blacktop sometimes.
13           MR. REIBEL:  Okay, so the property is not
14      being used for commercial purposes and the
15      building is used for your own personal storage?
16           MR. HORSMAN:  My own personal storage.
17      There's more of my mom's furniture and stuff
18      sitting in the building than what there is of
19      mine.
20           MR. REIBEL:  I know, I got that problem
21      too.
22           MR. FREEBERG:  Now, you don't -- you just
23      own the 1.75 acres?
24           MR. HORSMAN:  Yes.
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1      zoning law stating that you could only have so
2      much under roof depending on the square footage,
3      which is fine.  I just screwed up and didn't
4      check and see.  It's that simple.
5           MR. FREEBERG:  We just went through a
6      deal, we were talking about on AG-1 you're
7      supposed to have 40 acres, so how did this end
8      up being AG-1?
9           MR. REIBEL:  Well, this is a homestead on


10      -- it was part of a farm and a homestead -- a
11      home that was constructed before March of 1992
12      can be separated from a farm and remain AG-1.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  What type of hardship would
14      it be for you if we denied this petition?
15           MR. HORSMAN:  What type of hardship?  I'd
16      have to tear down what I put up which I
17      understand that.  I mean, that would be my own
18      my own fault and everything.  The biggest reason
19      I want it is just to keep stuff out of site and
20      keep it under -- you know, I've got a pretty
21      nice place there and I put a lot of money into
22      the place and I just -- I don't like the stuff
23      sitting outside due to the fact that my
24      equipment gets weathered for one thing and the
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1           MR. FREEBERG:  And you have a residence on
2      there?
3           MR. HORSMAN:  Yes.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  When did you first take out
5      this building permit to build?
6           MR. HORSMAN:  You know, I think it was in
7      2006 because I bought the place in 2004 and I
8      did a lot of work in the house and the grounds
9      and everything.  There was some old buildings


10      there and everything that I tore down and had to
11      get removed and it was a year or so after that
12      before I actually moved in on the property and
13      sold my other place due to the renovations and
14      stuff that I did on the property and I'm almost
15      positive that it was the following year then
16      that I got the permit for the -- to build up the
17      existing building, but I'm almost positive that
18      was 2006.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  He didn't need a variance
20      on that building at that time?
21           MR. REIBEL:  No, that was prior to any
22      restrictions on accessory building area.
23           MR. HORSMAN:  Yeah, and see, I was unaware
24      of the fact that since then they had passed a
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1      fact that it's an eyesore.  You can drive by my
2      place virtually any time you want to.  I take
3      very good care of it.  You don't see any garbage
4      or old junk or anything sitting outside and
5      around and what little bit of stuff I do have
6      like the plows and stuff that I don't use in the
7      summertime, I'd just like to have some place to
8      put those in where they're not setting out to
9      the side and in the way.  That's --


10           MR. McKINNEY:  And the other buildings
11      right now are full?
12           MR. HORSMAN:  With the semi -- getting in
13      and out with the semi and doing the work and
14      I've got -- well, I've got three vehicles that
15      we drive and stuff and between the grandkids'
16      toys and everything else, I mean, they're not
17      full, but it makes it hard to get the semi in
18      and out because you're constantly moving things
19      around, you know, without having -- and when you
20      got stuff like the snowplow blades and stuff
21      like that that are a little harder to move it
22      just makes it easier.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  Uh-huh, and you say you
24      already had this -- the pad poured when you --
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1           MR. HORSMAN:  I had the pad poured when I
2      did the existing building when I put the --
3      because we was going to make it a hundred and
4      eight by 42 and we poured the concrete, we went
5      ahead and -- because I already had the concrete
6      and everything priced in separately for the
7      concrete and I already paid the guy and so I
8      used what I paid for at that time.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  As I recall, you've got --


10      halfway built up is concrete blocks?
11           MR. HORSMAN:  Yep, yep.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  And then the shed is on top
13      of those.  Does that mean --
14           MR. SWORD:  Isn't that considered a
15      permanent building?
16           MR. REIBEL:  It's a structure.  I mean, it
17      doesn't matter if it's "permanent", it's a
18      structure.
19           MR. SWORD:  Okay.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  And we really don't have
21      building codes that --
22           MR. REIBEL:  We don't have building codes
23      period.
24           MR. FREEBERG:  Is he meeting the setback
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1      footage was done before the zoning took effect,
2      so them complaining about the footage is kind of
3      nil on my part, I mean, this -- if this was done
4      before the zoning come into effect.
5           MR. REIBEL:  The existing building was,
6      but this new building --
7           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yeah.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  I think what Maury is
9      saying is the pad was poured at the same time.


10           MR. HORSMAN:  The existing permit was for
11      108 by 42.  That was more square footage than
12      what would be there now just by adding the 12 by
13      22 than what the existing permit allowed.
14           MR. FREEBERG:  I can kind of see Maury's
15      point.  He was approved to build a building on
16      that pad that he's got there and I wonder if it
17      would make a difference that instead of putting
18      up the separate building if he would have just
19      extended the other building.
20           MR. HORSMAN:  And you know what, when I
21      did that -- one of the biggest reasons I didn't
22      go ahead and do the whole building was because
23      with the old septic system and everything that
24      was there they wanted me to put in another
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1      requirements from the rural lot line?
2           MR. REIBEL:  We haven't measured.  That's
3      something that we'll be -- you know, if the
4      variation is granted we would certainly be
5      conducting a setback inspection and Mr. Horsman
6      has assured me he's at least 15 feet from the
7      rear lot line.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  So he may have to come back
9      for that?


10           MR. REIBEL:  Well, we hope not.
11           MR. HORSMAN:  No, because I had the place
12      surveyed when I bought it in 2004 and my lot
13      line runs within about six inches in front of
14      that crib that's back there.
15           MR. FREEBERG:  The crib is not yours?
16           MR. HORSMAN:  No, it belongs -- used to
17      belong to Walt Vanhysick (phonetic) and Walt
18      passed away and it belongs to Tom.  He's got
19      that farm.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Any other questions?
21           MR. SWORD:  No.
22           MR. BRONKEMA:  I guess the thing I'm still
23      milling around in my mind is the fact that the
24      township complained about the footage but this
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1      septic in case the one in the house -- to tie
2      into that and the floor drain -- they wanted me
3      to put in a restrictor, so I had about seven or
4      eight thousand dollars in additional costs that
5      I did just to comply with what they wanted.  I
6      didn't really need all that stuff.  I hadn't
7      planned on putting in a whole new septic field
8      and everything just for that bathroom in that
9      shed because I wanted to have a restroom out


10      there in the shed and -- as opposed to letting
11      me tie it into the house and the septic system
12      in the house works fine, but it's an older one
13      like a lot of the old farmhouses and stuff
14      around, so they wanted me to put a new septic
15      and I didn't balk at that a bit and I went and I
16      paid the extra money and I put in a whole entire
17      septic system so if I ever have any problems
18      with the house -- I had Rochelle Vault come out
19      and do that and they wanted me to put in the
20      restrictor plates in case -- and all I wanted it
21      for was so if I pulled the trucks and stuff in
22      the snow melts off and you're not trying to
23      squeegee it out the door and have an ice-skating
24      rink outside.  That's all I wanted the floor
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1      drain for, not to -- I take my vehicles out to
2      -- my semi out to Blue Beacon and get it washed
3      and stuff.  I don't do it in there in the shed.
4      So by the time I ended up getting restrictors --
5      the oil restrictors and everything put in just
6      like your commercial building has to have, that
7      was another three thousand dollars for all that
8      stuff and I never balked about that and that was
9      one of the reasons why I couldn't -- didn't have


10      the money at the time really to go ahead and
11      finish the 108 by 42.  Right now I wish I would
12      have went and borrowed the money and finished
13      it.
14           MR. BRONKEMA:  You wouldn't be here then,
15      would you?
16           MR. HORSMAN:  No good deed goes
17      unpunished.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Any other questions from
19      the Board?
20           MR. SWORD:  No.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Have a seat.  And
22      there's no letter of appearance filed?
23           MR. REIBEL:  None.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there anybody here that
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1      to the rear of the existing building adjoining
2      farmland.  It will be virtually unnoticeable
3      from Flagg Road and will allow materials to be
4      kept inside.  These factors result in a
5      particular hardship as opposed to a mere
6      inconvenience if the strict letter of the
7      regulations are carried out.  I feel that
8      standard is met.
9                     (All those agreed.)


10           MR. REIBEL:  Standard B)  The conditions
11      upon which the petition for a variation are
12      based are unique and would not be applicable
13      generally to other property within the same
14      zoning classification.
15           MR. ANDERSON:  The conditions in which the
16      petition for a variation are based are unique
17      and not applicable generally to other property
18      within the AG-1 district due to the size,
19      location and agricultural area and the fact that
20      the proposed building addition will be to the
21      rear of the existing building adjoining
22      farmland.  I feel that standard is met.
23                     (All those agreed.)
24           MR. McKINNEY:  I agree based on the fact
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1      wishes to testify in favor of the petition?
2      Anybody here that wishes to testify opposing the
3      petition?  Seeing none, I'll entertain a motion
4      to go back into open session.
5           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
6           MR. FREEBERG:  Second.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Maury has moved, Curt has
8      seconded to go back into open session.  All
9      those in favor signify by saying aye.


10                     (All those simultaneously
11                     responded.)
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say nay.
13      Motion is approved.  We'll go through our
14      standards.
15           MR. REIBEL:  Variation Standard A)  That
16      the particular physical surroundings, shape or
17      topographical condition of the specific property
18      involved would result in a particular hardship
19      upon the owner as distinguished from a mere
20      inconvenience if the strict letter of the
21      regulations were carried out.
22           MR. SWORD:  The site is located in a
23      predominantly agricultural area and farmland
24      adjoins it.  The proposed building addition is
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1      that he had a building permit.  He put in the
2      pad at the same time and decided not to build
3      the building bigger at that time and then the
4      zoning rules got changed, so I feel that that
5      standard is met because of the hardship
6      conditions.
7           MR. REIBEL:  C)  The purpose of the
8      variation is not based exclusively upon a desire
9      to obtain a higher financial return on the


10      property.
11           MR. FREEBERG:  Evidence indicates that the
12      purpose of the variation is not based
13      exclusively upon a desire to obtain a higher
14      financial return on the property, but rather to
15      provide an additional storage area for the
16      occupants of the dwelling.  Standard is met.
17                     (All those agreed.)
18           MR. REIBEL:  D)  The alleged difficulty or
19      hardship has not been created by any person
20      presently having an interest in the property.
21           MR. BRONKEMA:  Well, I can probably read
22      both of these and be right, but I'll go with the
23      alleged difficulty or hardship has not been
24      created by Mr. and Mrs. Horsman and I feel that
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1      standard is met.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  I think the hardship was
3      created when we changed the zoning rules, so I
4      agree.  Standard met.
5                     (All those agreed.)
6           MR. REIBEL:  E)  The granting of the
7      variation will not be materially detrimental to
8      the public welfare or injurious to other
9      property or improvements in the neighborhood in


10      which the property is located.
11           MR. SWORD:  No evidence has been submitted
12      that would indicate the granting of the
13      variation will be materially detrimental to the
14      public welfare or injurious to other property or
15      improvements in the neighborhood in which the
16      property is located.  The standard is met.
17                     (All those agreed.)
18           MR. REIBEL:  F)  The proposed variation
19      will not impair an adequate supply of light and
20      air to adjacent property or substantially
21      increase the congestion in the public streets or
22      increase the danger of fire or endanger the
23      public safety or substantially diminish or
24      impair property values within the neighborhood.
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  And the pad was also
2      already there, so I agree.
3                     (All those agreed.)
4           MR. REIBEL:  B)  The variation, if
5      granted, will not alter the essential character
6      of the locality.
7           MR. ANDERSON:  The variation will not
8      alter the essential character of the locality.
9      The site is located within a predominantly


10      agricultural area where similar building sites
11      and configurations already exist.  I feel that
12      standard is met.
13                     (All those agree.)
14           MR. REIBEL:  And in addition to the
15      required findings of fact pursuant to Section
16      6.06(D.1) of the Zoning Ordinance the Board is
17      also required to find that the area of all
18      accessory buildings will be compatible with the
19      neighborhood and design, location and size and
20      there is proportionality between the size of the
21      principal building, parcel, street frontage and
22      the size of the accessory structures.
23           MR. BRONKEMA:  Well, the Board finds that
24      the area of all accessory buildings will be
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1           MR. BRONKEMA:  No evidence has been
2      submitted that would indicate that the variation
3      will impair an adequate supply of light and air
4      to adjacent property nor will it substantially
5      increase the congestion in the public streets or
6      increase the danger of fire or endanger the
7      public safety or substantially diminish or
8      impair property values within the neighborhood.
9      I feel that standard is met.


10                     (All those agreed.)
11           MR. McKINNEY:  The Zoning Board of Appeals
12      shall not vary the regulations of this ordinance
13      unless it shall make findings based upon the
14      evidence presented to it in each specific case
15      that, A, the plight of the owner is due to
16      unique circumstances.
17           MR. FREEBERG:  The circumstances are
18      unique due to the presence of existing buildings
19      on the site and the fact that the proposed
20      building addition will be to the rear of an
21      existing building virtually unnoticeable from
22      the road and that the original approval for the
23      building would have included this additional
24      area anyway, so I think the standard is met.
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1      compatible with the neighborhood and design,
2      location, size and the proposed accessory
3      buildings -- I don't think you'll much more
4      notice the addition to start with and like I
5      say, it will be behind, so I feel the standard
6      is met.
7                     (All those agreed.)
8           MR. McKINNEY:  In going through all the
9      standards the Board has found that they all have


10      been met.  So I will entertain a motion.
11           MR. FREEBERG:  I move that we grant
12      Petition No. 13-09VAR to Marvin and Debra
13      Horsman, 8735 East Flagg Road in Rochelle after
14      we made the findings that all the standards were
15      met.
16           MR. SWORD:  I'll second that.
17           MR. McKINNEY:  Who seconded it, Jason?
18           MR. SWORD:  Yeah.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Curt moved, Jason seconded
20      to approve Variation No. 13-09.  Roll call?
21           MR. REIBEL:  Bronkema?
22           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yep.
23           MR. REIBEL:  Anderson?
24           MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.
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1           MR. REIBEL:  Sword?
2           MR. SWORD:  Yes.
3           MR. REIBEL:  Freeberg?
4           MR. FREEBERG:  Yes.
5           MR. REIBEL:  McKinney?
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Yes.
7                     (By voice vote five ayes.)
8           MR. REIBEL:  Five voted yes.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  Motion passed.  You just


10      need to come in and see Mr. Reibel next week.
11           MR. REIBEL:  Yeah, that would be good.
12           MR. HORSMAN:  When?
13           MR. REIBEL:  Next week.
14           MR. HORSMAN:  I'm leaving tomorrow and
15      going to be gone down to Florida.
16           MR. REIBEL:  You can come in tomorrow or
17      whenever you can.
18           MR. HORSMAN:  I'm coming back the 6th of
19      December.
20           MR. REIBEL:  That would be fine.  Just
21      come in when you get back.  Just come see us
22      when you get back.
23           MR. HORSMAN:  Okay.  I'll be in -- well,
24      I'll be right after the 6th.


Page 27


1           Now on this 24th day of November 2009, I
2      do signify that the foregoing testimony was
3      given before the Ogle County Zoning Board of
4      Appeals.
5
6
7
8


               Bruce McKinney, Chairman
9


10
11
12
13


               Michael Reibel,
14                Zoning Administrator
15
16
17
18


               Julie K. Edeus
19                Certified Shorthand Reporter


               IL License No. 084-003820
20                P.O. Box 381


               Dixon, Illinois  61021
21
22
23
24
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1           MR. REIBEL:  That's fine.  Thank you.
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9


10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
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STATE OF ILLINOIS   )
                    )SS
COUNTY OF OGLE      )


In the Matter of the Petition
              of
JNASA Holding, LLC, Byron Township
Ogle County, Illinois


               Testimony of Witnesses
               Produced, Sworn and
               Examined on this 24th day
               of November 2009
               before the Ogle County
               Zoning Board of Appeals


Present:
Maurice Bronkema
Randall Anderson
Curtis Freeberg
Jason Sword
Bruce McKinney, Chairman
Michael Reibel, Zoning Administrator
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  I call this meeting of the
2      Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals November
3      2009 meeting to order.  Please stand for the
4      Pledge of Allegiance.
5                     (WHEREUPON the Pledge of
6                     Allegiance was recited.)
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Roll call, please.
8                     (Roll call was taken and all
9                     were present.)


10           MR. REIBEL:  Five present.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Five present.  We do have a
12      quorum.  The verbatim transcripts serving as
13      minutes from the last meeting is on file and
14      will not be read at this time.  I'll entertain a
15      motion to approve the minutes of the last ZBA
16      meeting.
17           MR. FREEBERG:  So moved.
18           MR. BRONKEMA:  Second.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Curtis moved, Maury
20      seconded.  All those in favor signify by saying
21      aye.
22                     (All those simultaneously
23                     responded.)
24           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say nay.
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1      Motion passed.  All testimony will be taken
2      under oath.  Please come forward to testify and
3      state your name and address to the recording
4      secretary.  Please spell your last name.  When
5      testifying please speak clearly and loud enough
6      to be heard.  This hearing is the only
7      opportunity to place testimony and evidence on
8      the record.  There will not be another
9      opportunity beyond tonight's hearing to submit


10      additional evidence or testimony for
11      consideration.  Please turn off all cell phones
12      and pagers.
13           The procedures on hearings that will be
14      followed tonight is as found in the ZBA Rules of
15      Procedures or Citizen's Guide to Zoning Board of
16      Appeals which are available near the door -- oh,
17      on the table in the back.
18           Mr. Lloyd Funk is present representing the
19      Ogle County Planning Commission if any board
20      member has questions on the Planning
21      Commission's actions on the petition.
22           If anyone has trouble hearing please let
23      us know.
24           Mr. Reibel, what's the first order of
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1      business?
2           MR. REIBEL:  First order of business is to
3      consider the request filed October 20th, 2009 of
4      JNASA Holding, LLC in care of Jerald Aarvig,
5      12680 Ashfield Road, Caledonia, Illinois for an
6      Amendment to the Zoning District to rezone from
7      AG-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Rural
8      Residence District on property described as
9      follows and owned by the Petitioner.


10           Part of the S1/2 G.L. 2 NW1/4 Fractional
          Section 7 Byron Township 25N, R11E of the


11           4th P.M. and part of the SE1/4 of the
          NE1/4 Section 12 Byron Township 25N, R10E


12           of the 4th P.M., Ogle County, IL, 18.0
          acres, more or less.  Part of Property


13           Identification Numbers:  05-07-100-013,
          -014, and -016 and part of 04-12-200-012,


14           -013 and -015.  Common Location:  11490
          North Tower Road.


15
16           I have a letter on file from the City of
17      Byron dated November 23rd, 2009 which reads:
18                "The City of Byron has reviewed the


          application submitted by Jerald Aarvig to
19           rezone the property at 11490 Tower Road


          based on the fact that the concept plan
20           does not show an intended use of the


          property other than its current.  We would
21           have to assume a worst case scenario and


          that the property may be intended for
22           further subdividing of lots.  It is no


          secret that Byron's growth corridor
23           appears to have a tendency to be working


          its way north along Tower Road and it is
24           our intent to see that area grow from the
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1      Tower Road approximately six-tenths of a mile
2      north of east Oak Grove Road.  Existing Land
3      Use:  Approximately 75 percent of the site is in
4      agricultural use.  The remainder of the site
5      contains a dwelling, detached accessory
6      building, driveway and residential yard area.
7      Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The site is
8      located within a predominantly agricultural
9      area.  There are three non-farm dwellings


10      located within one-half mile of the site.  All
11      surrounding land is zoned AG-1 Agricultural
12      District.  Zoning History:  The dwelling on the
13      site was constructed in 2005 under Zoning
14      Certificate No. 190-05NA.  The dwelling was
15      constructed on a 41.8 acre parcel.  In October
16      of 2008 the dwelling was sold to JNASA Holding,
17      LLC on a five-acre parcel which violates the 40
18      acre minimum lot size requirement of the AG-1
19      Agricultural District.  Special Information,
20      Public Utilities:  None.  The dwelling on-site
21      is served with a private well and septic system.
22      Transportation:  North Tower Road is a hot mix
23      surfaced Ogle County Highway.  Physical
24      Characteristics:  The slopes on-site range from
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1           city limits outward by means of city sewer
          and city water.  Understanding that this


2           parcel is beyond the City's one and one
          half mile jurisdictional boundaries, we


3           would nevertheless object to the owner
          rezoning the 18-acre parcel.  Respectfully


4           submitted, Larry M. Hewitt, Building and
          Zoning Official."


5
          Oh, another housekeeping matter.  For the


6      record, a sign was posted along the frontage of
7      the premises indicating that a zoning hearing is
8      to be held.  All adjoining property owners to
9      the petition have been notified by certified


10      mail and a legal notice was published in the
11      Monday, November 2nd edition of the Ogle County
12      Life notifying the public of the hearing this
13      evening and the specifics of the petition.
14           At the November 19th, 2009 meeting of the
15      Ogle County Regional Planning Commission,
16      Mr. Conn made a motion to recommend approval of
17      Petition 9-09 Amendment.  The motion was
18      seconded by Mr. Ocken.  The motion to recommend
19      approval carried by a roll call vote of five in
20      favor and two opposed.
21           Under the staff report, a copy of which is
22      on file and the Board members have received, I
23      will point out under general information that
24      the site is located on the west side of North
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1      nearly level to sloping.  The site is located in
2      an upland area of rolling terrain.  The site is
3      generally well-drained with the exception of the
4      area within a drainage swale that crosses the
5      central portion of the site and drains from
6      north to south.  The area within the drainage
7      swale is classified as frequently flooded.
8      There are no mapped floodplain or wetland areas
9      on the site.


10           According to the Ogle County Digital Soil
11      Survey, soil types on the site are:  21C2 -
12      Pecatonica silt loam, 412B - Ogle silt loam,
13      414B - Myrtle silt loam, 416C2 - Durand silt
14      loam, 618C2 - Senachwine loam, 622C2 - Wyanet
15      silt loam, and 3451A - Lawson silt loam.  39.1
16      percent of the soils identified on the site are
17      classified as "Prime farmland," with the
18      remainder being "Farmland of statewide
19      importance."  Approximately 12 and a half
20      percent of the soils are classified as
21      "Frequently flooded."  51.1 percent of the soils
22      are rated as being "Very limited" for septic
23      fields and the remainder are rated as being
24      "Somewhat limited."
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1           Under the LESA program, the
2      LESA score of 199.55 indicates a Medium rating
3      for protection.  Land evaluation being
4                     75.55.  Site assessment
5                    124.
6           In a letter from the Ogle County Soil and
7      Water Conservation District, the District would
8      like to list the following facts from the soils
9      and the land evaluation and any other additional


10      site facts that could be a concern to the
11      protection of our County's natural resources.
12      Land evaluation score of 75.55 out of 100.  Most
13      of the site appears to be in continuous row crop
14      production.  There's a house built on the
15      western side of the property.  Severe
16      limitations for proposed use due to low strength
17      for supporting loads.  Signed by Phil Fossler,
18      Chairman and Brian Lindquist, Resource
19      Conservationist.
20           According to the Illinois Department of
21      Natural Resources, the Illinois Natural Heritage
22      Database contains no record of state-listed
23      threatened or endangered species, Natural Area
24      Inventory Sites, Illinois Nature Preserves or
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  If he wants to add anything
2      he'll need to be sworn in, so.
3           JERALD AARVIG:  I'll just -- you want me
4      over there?
5           MR. McKINNEY:  Yes, please.
6             DAVID AARVIG AND JERALD AARVIG,
7      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Please give Julie your name
9      and addresses


10           DAVID AARVIG:  David Aarvig, A-A-R-V-I-G,
11      12680 Ashfield Road, Caledonia, Illinois, 61011
12      zip code.
13           JERALD AARVIG:  Jerald Aarvig, J-E-R-A-L-D
14      A-A-R-V-I-G, 9339 Kaeler (phonetic) Avenue
15      Northeast, Monticello, Minnesota.
16           DAVID AARVIG:  And the LLC's address is
17      also 12680 Ashfield Road, Caledonia, Illinois,
18      61011 zip code.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Tell us about your
20      petition.
21           DAVID AARVIG:  Well, the petition -- first
22      of all, thanks for the time you're allotting to
23      us tonight.  We have petitioned to switch zoning
24      from Ag to Residential in what we believe is a
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1      registered land and water reserves in the
2      vicinity of the project and the consultation
3      process with IDNR has been terminated.  That's
4      all I have.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  This is a public hearing,
6      so I'll entertain a motion to go into a public
7      hearing.
8           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
9           MR. SWORD:  Second.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  Maury has moved, Jason has
11      seconded to go into a public hearing.  All those
12      in favor signify by saying aye.
13                     (All those simultaneously
14                     responded.)
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Opposed say nay.  Motion
16      passed.  We're in a public hearing.
17           Petitioners, whoever is going to be
18      testifying, please come forward and I'll swear
19      you in.
20           DAVID AARVIG:  You just need one us to
21      speak, correct?
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Yeah, unless -- is that
23      your dad?
24           DAVID AARVIG:  Yeah.
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1      unique hardship that has come upon the property
2      and our home that we purchased there.  We bought
3      initially -- as you can see on the concept plan
4      and what Mr. Reibel had referred to earlier, it
5      was a five-acre piece of -- parcel with an
6      existing home and an existing outbuilding that
7      at the time we were under the belief was
8      properly zoned and we got a good legal deed in
9      the mail on it within weeks of the purchase.  We


10      then found out in approximately April that it
11      was in zoning violation due to not having enough
12      acreage.  And how it came about was the previous
13      owner owned somewhere in the neighborhood of 80
14      plus acres in different parcels and had the home
15      parcel mortgaged with one lender and the rest of
16      the land mortgaged with another lender.  He went
17      into foreclosure on everything.  We purchased
18      the home parcel from the one lender thinking
19      that we were okay and then the rest of the land
20      ended up being sold with the exception of
21      recently we purchased 13 acres to make what you
22      see on the concept plan one big parcel.  We have
23      no intention of subdividing this.  We would just
24      like it to be what it is, a residential house,
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1      but as of current it is in a zoning violation
2      due to the other owner re-recording these
3      properties or his property lines in a way that
4      he could get more loans from different banks.
5      So what it's done is cause us a hardship which
6      we believe to be unique in the area and I
7      believe that's what we found.  There's been only
8      maybe one other case in 15 years where something
9      like this has come up.  So we don't think it's


10      something that's going to set a precedent, but
11      what it is is it will allow us to have a nice
12      rectangular piece of property that's properly
13      zoned so we can live there without worry or
14      concern that we have further notices coming.
15           The other neighborhood homes, the neighbor
16      north and the neighbor south are both non-farm
17      homes.  They use theirs for residential.
18      Neighbor farms his land.  We've spoke with both
19      of them.  We don't believe there would be any
20      negative impact to their property values.  We're
21      not asking to add anything to the existing
22      property.  We're not asking to be able to build
23      anything else on the existing property.
24      Everything is already as is.  There's a
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay, so it's not a house
2      that you're purchasing to resell or to rent?
3           DAVID AARVIG:  No.  We started to move
4      there until we got the zoning notice issue and
5      then we didn't know where that was going to go
6      and what the penalties would be.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  The other three
8      non-farmhouses in that area, they -- none of
9      them are zoned residential though, are they?


10           DAVID AARVIG:  No, they all have the 40
11      acres.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  That's a concern that some
13      of us have is the spot zoning if we start
14      allowing a residential out in this area and
15      somebody else is going to come along in a year
16      or two or even less and say you gave Aarvigs
17      residential zoning, you know, we want to build
18      out in the country, we want residential.
19           DAVID AARVIG:  I think the crucial
20      difference would be is this is existing.  We're
21      not building anything and I wouldn't even ask
22      for a rezoning if I would not have bought it and
23      had the house not been existing.  All this is is
24      a situation that is unique.  I think it
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1      residential house which is finished.  It's
2      serviced by its own private well and septic
3      system and there's a current outbuilding that is
4      already built.  So we're not asking for anything
5      to be changed in that way.  We just want a piece
6      of property that's properly zoned so we don't
7      violate the zoning ordinances and we can put the
8      issue hopefully to rest.  Oh, and further, all
9      of the existing land that's touching this parcel


10      has been sold, so there is no other land
11      available for purchase to be able to get up to
12      the 40 acres.  We purchased the remaining 13 to
13      make it one big rectangle to -- hopefully with
14      Mr. Reibel's help anyway we thought that it
15      would at least qualify for residential zoning
16      and fit your parameters.
17           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you have anything to add
18      at this time?
19           JERALD AARVIG:  Nope.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Who's going to be living in
21      this house?
22           DAVID AARVIG:  My dad is there about every
23      other week, he's retired now and then myself and
24      my family.
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1      definitely applies to the hardship from what
2      I've read in your standards in that we have a
3      home that unless there's a way to bulldoze it or
4      get rid of it -- it's a situation that we're
5      asking for the Board's consideration to make it
6      to where it's not in violation of any of the
7      Board or County issues and use it as a
8      residential premise.  We do not want to build or
9      subdivide or anything in that way.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you have anything in
11      your contract with the bank that this property
12      met the county zoning?
13           DAVID AARVIG:  Not that I'm aware of, no.
14      It just was we made the purchase, within two
15      weeks I got the deed with all the property
16      stamps on it and everything was fine.  We then
17      started fixing it up, putting money into it,
18      I've paid substantial amounts of interest on it
19      since then and then also spent another $60,000
20      to purchase more land to try and make it --
21      instead of that goofy flag lot that the previous
22      owner somehow recorded.  Basically to us we're a
23      victim of somehow this guy got it recorded and
24      it was able to be split up and it should have
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1      never been able to be split up from 40 acres to
2      where we should have gotten the 40 acres.  The
3      other bank should have in my opinion had to give
4      the land back to attach it to that residence and
5      then give us the land.  So we're trying to make
6      this easy on everybody.  The person who
7      purchased the property to the south has a little
8      over the 40 acres they need to build their
9      house, so they can't give up any of their land


10      either.  Otherwise they'd have a zoning issue
11      and then they wouldn't even be able to build
12      their house.  But this is just dealing with an
13      existing set of buildings.  There's nothing else
14      we're looking to build on, add on, anything
15      there.
16           MR. ANDERSON:  I have a question for you.
17      You intend on living there?
18           DAVID AARVIG:  Yes.
19           MR. ANDERSON:  Why would you purchase this
20      under a holding company?
21           DAVID AARVIG:  To keep everything
22      separate.  I've got a business that I run also,
23      so one of the legal things I went to said to
24      have your different properties in different LLCs
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1           DAVID AARVIG:  Yep.
2           MR. ANDERSON:  But it's usually done on --
3           DAVID AARVIG:  Subdivisions and such.
4           MR. ANDERSON:  Right, on people who intend
5      on selling a property because they don't want to
6      get caught in a liability.
7           DAVID AARVIG:  No, with this every piece
8      of property that -- since I've went to that
9      seminar we've set up -- we've got three


10      different LLCs.  Now, we only have this one --
11      I've already got my existing home which was
12      purchased in my wife and I's name and that's the
13      one that we're looking at putting up for sale as
14      soon as we get our zoning issue taken care of.
15           MR. ANDERSON:  So you said you started to
16      fix this up and you started to move things there
17      to move into this, correct?
18           DAVID AARVIG:  Yeah, we moved a couple
19      beds and --
20           MR. ANDERSON:  What did you think was
21      going to happen if the zoning didn't go through?
22           DAVID AARVIG:  I had no idea.  I didn't
23      know what the penalties were.
24           MR. ANDERSON:  What would you do?
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1      so that way if something were to happen at one,
2      they can't go after the other.  It limits the
3      liability.
4           MR. ANDERSON:  This is going to be your
5      personal residence?
6           DAVID AARVIG:  Yeah.  I mean, it's just
7      the same thing.  If somebody were to fall into
8      the swimming pool out there and drown, they can
9      only go after the LLC, they can't go after any


10      of the other business.  It's a way that -- I
11      have another LLC that I have that runs a
12      different company and the same thing, if there's
13      something that would happen where a truck that I
14      was driving as part of that LLC would run into
15      someone, they can't come after my home because
16      it's not even my own personal assets, so to
17      speak.  It's just a way of insulating against
18      lawsuits.
19           MR. ANDERSON:  I've run into this with
20      other situations where we've had developers who
21      put properties that they have in LLCs and what
22      that does is it doesn't allow anything that --
23      if somebody defaults on that property then the
24      LLC is all that's attached to it.


Page 20


1           DAVID AARVIG:  What would I do with it?
2           MR. ANDERSON:  What are you going to do
3      with it if the zoning doesn't go through?
4           DAVID AARVIG:  I guess that's why I'm here
5      asking for the rezoning.  I don't have a plan
6      for that.  With everything that I've talked with
7      Mike about and my other attorney about that this
8      meets the standards and hopefully you'll see
9      that and it -- we don't have another plan, no.


10           MR. ANDERSON:  You stopped moving things
11      into it with the thought that if the zoning
12      doesn't go through then you're not going to live
13      there.
14           DAVID AARVIG:  I don't know what we'll do.
15      We still may end up moving in there, but I don't
16      know what the penalties are.  I don't know if
17      I'd incur fines by living there.  I haven't
18      looked at that and that's something we really
19      haven't discussed.
20           MR. ANDERSON:  Okay.
21           DAVID AARVIG:  But like my dad lives there
22      every other week or every two weeks when he
23      comes down, so someone is living there.  It's
24      just not constantly right now.
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there any other
2      questions from the Board?
3           MR. BRONKEMA:  I guess a question for
4      Mike.  The place to the north of there then,
5      he's legal with -- he's got enough ground for
6      where he lives at then?
7           MR. REIBEL:  Yeah, the house you can see
8      from -- from this house, yeah, that's on an
9      over-40-acre parcel, yeah.


10           MR. BRONKEMA:  Okay.
11           MR. FREEBERG:  I guess one concern or
12      thought I have is if we rezone this residential,
13      I mean it's 18 acres which is more than what you
14      need for residential, so once it gets rezoned is
15      there anything to prevent them from just selling
16      off a piece of it or a subsequent owner?
17           MR. REIBEL:  Being a similar situation
18      there's really not a way to divide this and
19      comply with the lot width requirements because
20      it's at the -- it's right at 300 feet which is
21      the minimum for R-1.
22           MR. ANDERSON:  Couldn't he use the
23      driveway as a point of ingress and egress and
24      then split lots off going to the north off the
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1      area to have municipal water and sewer?
2           MR. REIBEL:  Yes.
3           MR. FREEBERG:  Could we put a condition on
4      this that when it's available they hook up?
5      Which probably won't be for a long, long time.
6      I mean, to satisfy Byron or --
7           MR. REIBEL:  Well, I don't think we have
8      to worry about satisfying Byron.  It's outside
9      their mile and a half.  I think they were just


10      trying to make a point that Byron promotes
11      orderly development, you know, extending from
12      the municipality outward and I think that was a
13      thing they were trying to do with sending that
14      letter is send a message.
15           MR. SWORD:  So who dropped the ball then
16      with regards to when it was sold to him from 41
17      down to five acres?  Is that the bank that
18      divided that up?
19           DAVID AARVIG:  We've discussed it and what
20      happened is the previous owner went into the
21      recorder and from what Mike and I have been able
22      to figure out anyway is he had legal authority
23      to somehow make this because he owned all the
24      land, so he went into the recorder and got that
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1      driveway?
2           MR. REIBEL:  That would require a
3      subdivision plat.
4           MR. ANDERSON:  Correct, and that would be
5      something then that you would be --
6           MR. REIBEL:  Right, we would -- the County
7      has review authority over subdivision plats and
8      can deny those.
9           MR. ANDERSON:  Okay.  All right.


10           MR. BRONKEMA:  We don't want a
11      subdivision.
12           DAVID AARVIG:  And we don't want one
13      either, believe me.
14           MR. ANDERSON:  We're not concerned about
15      you two.
16           DAVID AARVIG:  But if a subsequent owner
17      -- I understand.  Like you're saying, five, ten
18      years down the road if someone else happened to
19      buy it says, hey, I can do this.  Well, I guess
20      Mike knows more than I do on the subdivision
21      requirements, but we have zero intention of any
22      subdivision or anything on this.
23           MR. FREEBERG:  Was it Byron's main point
24      that eventually they want things out in this
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1      re-recorded and then went to two different banks
2      and said to one I'll give you my residence and
3      well, evidently that bank didn't do the research
4      saying that if something ever was foreclosed on
5      they may have a worthless piece of property if
6      they don't have the 40 acres around it.  But
7      because -- and I guess there was something,
8      Mike, that he also had to sign that said he
9      would not split it up or he couldn't sell it to


10      split it up, but when he was foreclosed on he
11      didn't -- he didn't have a choice.  It was kind
12      of forced on him and now we're left with -- it's
13      a bad situation, I think we all agree with that,
14      but it's not something that I believe is going
15      to set any kind of a dangerous precedent for you
16      having someone else coming to you as long as the
17      recorder won't allow another piece of property
18      or figure out some way to put on these people
19      that, hey, you can't go to a different bank, if
20      you're going to do this this stays the same.
21      That's where the problem originated.  And again,
22      if I was made aware of that prior to sinking any
23      money into this there wouldn't even have been an
24      issue.  I would have never bought the property
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1      not having zoning, but it was almost seven
2      months after closing -- almost eight months, I
3      think it was the middle of April when we got the
4      first letter and we were tens of thousands of
5      dollars in payments and improvements.
6           MR. FREEBERG:  Mike, did the recorder's
7      office essentially create a parcel of property
8      that wasn't in compliance with zoning
9      ordinances?


10           MR. REIBEL:  Well, by accepting the deed,
11      yes, but they have to accept a deed if it's a
12      legal deed.  That's not the recorder's office's
13      responsibility to see if it violates the zoning
14      ordinance or not and that's the problem with
15      these types of situations where it's a legal
16      division but it violates the zoning ordinance, I
17      don't find out until after it's done -- the deed
18      is done and usually -- you know, it's the case
19      here, it's a subsequent owner who really is kind
20      of the victim.
21           MR. FREEBERG:  I'm just trying to figure
22      out how these things can be prevented.  I mean,
23      are the people that issue the deed at fault that
24      they should have known --
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1      whether somebody missed that document or just
2      ignored it, I don't know what happened, but
3      there is that flag that's supposed to come up
4      and should come up if a violation is
5      intentionally tried to -- or unintentionally,
6      whatever the case may be, is tried to be
7      perpetrated.  You know, we don't know really
8      what happened here.  We can only speculate
9      because the guy that did it, he's long gone.


10      But you know -- and maybe there is a hole, but
11      it's really -- I think we do as much as we can
12      to try to see that these situations don't get
13      created by recording the documents.  The
14      recorder's office can't be responsible for
15      policing zoning matters and we've got a very
16      good recorder's office.  They cooperate with me
17      very well on plat act situations where other
18      counties in the state don't have that kind of
19      cooperation we do with our recorder's office,
20      but there aren't that many of these situations.
21      This is only --
22           MR. McKINNEY:  It's nothing that we can
23      resolve tonight.
24           MR. FREEBERG:  I was just curious.  I've
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1           MR. REIBEL:  Yeah, you know, the guy that
2      built this house certainly knew that he had to
3      maintain 40 acres, but you know, he got in
4      serious financial trouble and he was just
5      looking for any way out and he's -- he's gone.
6           DAVID AARVIG:  I've looked into legal
7      recourse against him and they said there's
8      nothing there to get, not even a penny.
9           MR. FREEBERG:  I'm just trying to figure


10      out if there's just a big hole in the system
11      here or if somebody -- I mean, should the people
12      that issue the deed, I assume the title company,
13      in their investigations, are they the ones that
14      should have caught this and said this isn't --
15           MR. REIBEL:  Yeah, probably, probably and
16      I don't know if it was ignored, because when we
17      issue a zoning certificate for a house on a 40
18      or more acre parcel, we record a document
19      through my office that says this house, you
20      know, issued under this zoning certificate and
21      reference the deed was built on a conforming AG
22      zoned parcel, any divisions have to conform to
23      the zoning ordinance, so it's a red flag that
24      comes up if somebody does try to do this.  Now,
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1      been all through that and the title insurance --
2      you know, to me the title insurance, they
3      guarantee the title is good and to me they
4      should have done a little bit more diligence on
5      this thing before they said it was a good title.
6           MR. REIBEL:  I agree.
7           DAVID AARVIG:  One final thing I guess I'd
8      just like to add is that the proposed use is the
9      exact same as the current use.  There's nothing


10      that's going to be done.  It's just a house and
11      a place to live.  There's nothing else that
12      we're asking other than to get it in compliance
13      so we don't have anymore items coming in the
14      mail from Mr. Reibel.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there any other
16      questions from the Board right now?
17           MR. ANDERSON:  No.
18           MR. FREEBERG:  No.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay, and there's no letter
20      of appearance for tonight for this petition?
21           MR. REIBEL:  No.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  So is there anybody here
23      that wishes to testify in favor of this
24      petition?  Anybody here that wishes to testify
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1      opposing this petition?  Seeing none, I'll
2      entertain a motion to go back into open session.
3           MR. FREEBERG:  So moved.
4           MR. BRONKEMA:  Second.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  It's been moved and
6      seconded to go back into open session.  All
7      those in favor signify by saying aye.
8                     (All those simultaneously
9                     responded.)


10           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say nay.
11      Motion passed.  Back into open session.  With
12      that, let's go through our finding of facts.
13           MR. REIBEL:  Amendment Standard 1)  That
14      the proposed amendment will allow development
15      that is compatible with existing uses and zoning
16      of nearby property.
17           MR. FREEBERG:  Development of the site for
18      residential use is compatible with the
19      established agricultural and residential uses of
20      nearby properties considering it's been used
21      this way and is currently being used this way.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  So you're saying the
23      standard is met?
24           MR. FREEBERG:  Standard is met.
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1      constructed on the site, which the house is
2      there, it fronts on the county highway and also
3      due to its relative proximity to urban services.
4      I feel that standard is met.
5                     (All those agreed.)
6           MR. REIBEL:  Standard 3)  That the
7      proposed amendment will not result in
8      significant adverse impacts on other property in
9      the vicinity of the subject site or on the


10      environment including air, noise, stormwater
11      management, wildlife and natural resources.
12           MR. SWORD:  No adverse impact on other
13      property in the vicinity of the subject site or
14      on the environment including air, noise,
15      stormwater management, wildlife and natural
16      resources are anticipated from the development
17      of the site.  I feel that standard is met.
18                     (All those agreed.)
19           MR. REIBEL:  Standard 4)  That the subject
20      property is suitable for the proposed zoning
21      classification.
22           MR. BRONKEMA:  The site is suitable for
23      R-1 zoning district as it is in a rural area and
24      it has a Medium LESA score and there are three
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1                     (All those agreed.)
2           MR. McKINNEY:  I agree.  I think if it
3      wasn't already a home that was built as a farm
4      with -- that was compatible it wouldn't -- the
5      standard would not have been met, but in this
6      case I'll go along with the standard being met.
7           MR. BRONKEMA:  Not to interrupt, but one
8      question I guess we never asked is how long has
9      that home been there?


10           DAVID AARVIG:  2005 was the construction
11      date.
12           MR. REIBEL:  Standard 2)  That the County
13      of Ogle and other service providers will be able
14      to provide adequate public facilities and
15      services to the property including, but not
16      necessarily limited to schools, police and fire
17      protection, roads and highways, water supply and
18      sewage disposal while maintaining adequate
19      public facilities and levels of service to
20      existing development.
21           MR. ANDERSON:  The continued use of the
22      site for residential use will not create a
23      burden on the County of Ogle and other public
24      service providers because only one house will be
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1      non-farming residences within a half a mile and
2      another residence within close proximity and the
3      petition is not inconsistent with the purpose
4      and intent of the R-1 Zoning District.  Standard
5      is met.
6                     (All those agreed.)
7           MR. REIBEL:  Standard 5)  That the
8      proposed zoning classification is consistent
9      with the trend or development, if any, in the


10      general area of the subject property including
11      changes, if any, which have taken place since
12      the day the property in question was placed in
13      its present zoning classification.
14           MR. BRONKEMA:  Well, there is a trend of
15      development in the vicinity of residential use
16      on many parcels in the immediate area.  The
17      proposed zoning classification is consistent
18      with the trend and existing zoning of the
19      surrounding land.  Standard is met.
20           MR. ANDERSON:  Agree.
21           MR. SWORD:  Agree.
22           MR. FREEBERG:  Agree.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  I've got -- this one is
24      giving me a little problem because I really
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1      don't feel that this parcel is consistent with
2      the immediate area because it would be the only
3      residential out there, but because it was built
4      as an AG and under a hardship that's due to no
5      circumstances of the Petitioner, I'm going to
6      say that that standard is met.
7           MR. REIBEL:  Standard 6)  That the
8      proposed amendment is consistent with the public
9      interest and not solely for the interest of the


10      applicant giving due consideration to the stated
11      purpose and intent of the Amendatory Zoning
12      Ordinance as set forth in Division 1 therein,
13      the land evaluation and site assessment findings
14      and the recommendation of the Ogle County
15      Regional Planning Commission with respect to the
16      Ogle County Amendatory Comprehensive Plan.
17           MR. FREEBERG:  The proposed amendment is
18      consistent with the public interest and is not
19      solely for the interest of the applicant.  The
20      LESA score indicates a Medium rating for
21      protection.  The proposed amendment is
22      consistent with the purpose and intent of the
23      Amendatory Zoning Ordinance, the Regional
24      Planning Commission has recommended approval.  I
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1           MR. REIBEL:  Anderson?
2           MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.
3           MR. REIBEL:  Bronkema?
4           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yes.
5           MR. REIBEL:  Freeberg?
6           MR. FREEBERG:  Yes.
7           MR. REIBEL:  McKinney?
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Yes.
9                     (By voice vote five ayes.)


10           MR. REIBEL:  Five voted yes.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Motion passed.
12           MR. REIBEL:  This petition will go on to
13      the Planning and Zoning Committee and the County
14      Board on December 9th at 1 o'clock in the
15      afternoon and that's at the sheriff's department
16      training room on Jefferson Street.
17           DAVID AARVIG:  Okay.  I'll find where it
18      is.
19           MR. REIBEL:  Give me a call and --
20           DAVID AARVIG:  Are you in tomorrow?
21           MR. REIBEL:  No.
22           DAVID AARVIG:  I'll call you next week
23      then.
24
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1      think this is a particularly complicated issue,
2      but I think the standard is met.
3                     (All those agreed.)
4           MR. REIBEL:  And have the Board members
5      read and considered the LaSalle factors as
6      applied to this petition?
7                     (All those simultaneously
8                     responded affirmatively.)
9           MR. McKINNEY:  Going through the six


10      standards the Board has found that all six have
11      been met.  With that, I'll entertain a motion.
12           MR. FREEBERG:  I move that we grant
13      Amendment 9-09 Map Amendment rezoning from AG-1
14      to R-1 to JNASA Holdings on Tower Road.
15           MR. BRONKEMA:  All the standards --
16           MR. FREEBERG:  Because, yeah, we found all
17      the standards were met.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there a second?
19           MR. BRONKEMA:  I'll second it.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Curt has moved, Maury has
21      seconded to recommend to the County Board to
22      approve Amendment 09-09 roll call.
23           MR. REIBEL:  Sword?
24           MR. SWORD:  Yes.
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1           Now on this 24th day of November 2009, I
2      do signify that the foregoing testimony was
3      given before the Ogle County Zoning Board of
4      Appeals.
5
6
7
8


               Bruce McKinney, Chairman
9


10
11
12
13


               Michael Reibel,
14                Zoning Administrator
15
16
17
18


               Julie K. Edeus
19                Certified Shorthand Reporter


               IL License No. 084-003820
20                P.O. Box 381


               Dixon, Illinois  61021
21
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		Fasco Holding, Inc - Dement Twp

		Marvin & Debra Horsman - Pine Rock Twp

		JNASA Holding, LLC - Byron Twp






Ogle County Executive & State’s Attorney Committee Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, December 9, 2009 at 4:00 p.m. 


 
1. Call to Order – by Chairman Rice at 4:08.  Members present: Rice, Horner, Kenney, Hopkins, Stahl, 


Saunders.  Members absent: Huntley, Bauer, Nye.  Also present: Lynne Kilker, Jim Barnes, Bob DeArvil, 
John Coffman, Sheriff Beitel, Meggon McKinley, Earl Peterson, Don Conn, members of the public.    


 
2. Approval of Minutes: Motion by Hopkins to approve the November 10, 2009 Meeting Minutes.  2nd by 


Kenney.  Motion carried.   
  


3. Public Comment – none 
 


4. Sheriff & Coroner / Buildings & Grounds Committee Report - none 
 


   5.    Road & Bridge Committee Report –Kilker reported the committee awarded aggregate bids, which will 
move to the board 12/15/09 


           
6. Personnel Salary & County Clerk Committee Report – Kenney asked McKinley to read the Personnel 


Committee motion brought forward today, which says “Boes moves to recommend a hiring freeze from 
this point forward, such that no new positions will be created, but if someone retires or leaves, the 
department head and administrator are to meet and determine if the position really needs to be 
filled.  2nd by Bowers.  Motion carried with one nay vote by Kenney.”  Kenney moved to bring this 
motion forward to the board agenda, stating he’ll be voting no because we have lots of department head 
cooperation and believes this motion won’t change anything for those department heads that don’t want to 
cooperate with the hiring freeze recommendation.  2nd by Saunders.  Discussion followed with Saunders 
saying she doesn’t think it’s necessary but feels it should go to the full board.  Role call vote: Saunders yes, 
Stahl yes, Horner yes, Kenney no, Hopkins no, Rice yes.  Motion carried 4-2. Kenney also noted there was 
a lot of discussion on apparent pay inequities in the county and that the committee has asked McKinley to 
work through the EA study and bring recommendations and next steps forward to the January committee 
meetings.  The committee asked McKinley to ensure the Finance Committee has copies of the pay 
summary sheet created by the County Clerk’s office and distributed at the Personnel Committee meeting.   
Saunders later requested that it first be updated to ensure all stipends are accurately reflected because it 
appears that some are missing.     


 
7. Executive Committee –  


 FOIA Training- McKinley reported that while Ben Roe will serve as the County’s designated 
FOPIA officer, as will Marcia Heuer for the County Board, many of the department heads will be 
attending the FOIA training to also be certified since there are so many FOIA requests across 
departments.  McKinley noted we have 6 months to complete the training once it is offered after 
January 1, 2010.  She also noted we’ll need to more clearly understand the different requirements 
for commercial vs. personal FOIA requests, because the Sheriff’s Department receives many 
commercial requests.     


 NITT Update – McKinley reported there will be a NITT update at the Board meeting to ensure 
everyone is current on project progress.  She noted she is now serving as NITT Treasurer and will 
provide the board with an updated revenue and expense sheet, and balance sheet.  McKinley 
highlighted details of the current infrastructure purchase made to light up the fiber optics along 
interstate 39 and noted the marketing plan is being updated to secure Northern Trust and Allstate as 
clients and then take the services to the wider market.  Rice reported it will assist us in securing the 
broadband grant being applied for towards the western side of the county to have this leg of the 
NITT triangle lit up and that NIU is serving as a critical partner in accomplishing both projects.  
Rice reported NITT’s target live date for this part of the triangle is March. Kenney noted he was at 
the original NITT meeting and remembers that mayors and village presidents in the audience 
wanted to know how quickly NITT could provide this service.  Rice noted then Lt. Governor 
Quinn was a big supporter originally and pushed hard for NITT’s line, so with their end of the 
bargain being held up and the fiber optic leases in place, we need to get this last piece of the puzzle 
done.     


 UCCI Dues Reimbursement – McKinley reported we received the expected $2,200 UCCI 
membership dues reimbursement, which is a big benefit in this financial market.   







 Census Update Women League of Voters- Rice indicated Diane McNeely will be giving an 
important 15 minute update regarding the US Census.  It is critical for the public to be aware of this 
important information.     


 Stillman Valley State Championship Recognition- Rice reported that the Stillman Valley High 
School superintendent will be present at the board meeting to receive recognition for their 
accomplishment in winning the football state championship.  Other schools that made it to the play 
offs will also be recognized.    


 Tax Abatement for Previously Approved Ogle County Companies – Rice reported Sara Lee and 
Bay Valley foods tax abatements, which have been previously approved, will start this year.   


 
8. Zoning Committee Report – Committee Chairman Hopkins reported there will be one request brought to 


the Board to change an Ag 1 property to R1. He reported the unique situation the owner is in with this 
property and that the committee is recommending R1 on these 18 acres to make things right.  He clarified 
there are 3 homes in the vicinity each on 40 acres.     


 
9. HEW & Solid Waste Committee Report – Administrator McKinley reported there was a request to increase 


the 708 Board budget by $14,000 because they didn’t understand the appropriation need even though they 
had $14,000 in funds left over from 2008.  The HEW committee voted no to their budget amendment 
request.  Hopkins said he’d like to see them appropriate this in 2010. Bauer had commented in the HEW 
committee meeting that if there were carry over funds, they should be decreasing the budget by that much.   
       


10. Finance & Insurance Committee Report – Committee Chairman Hopkins noted there will be a 2009 budget 
amendment fund resolution and two bond abatement resolutions brought to the board.  Saunders suggested 
reporting that our workman’s comp is increasing by about 6%. Which is a $15,000 increase.  We will also 
be responding to the unions that we’d like to continue discussion.   


 
11. Judiciary Committee Report – Committee member Stahl noted that Mike Dale and Greg Martin distributed 


the newly created Focus House budget reporting and will provide this to the board quarterly to help show 
non-general fund expenses for Focus House.     


         
12.    Long Range Committee Report –  


 Presentation and Approval of LRP bills – McKinley noted she did allow two changes to the LRP 
bills since the LRP meeting; one because of our need to hold back the $14,000 from RJC due to the 
Big Joe the Plumber lien, and one for paying MDES, the vendor that conducted the courthouse 
storm sewer engineering study.  McKinley noted she had filed this bill in the wrong place so it 
didn’t go to LRP as it should have, but this vendor needs to be paid in this cycle despite her error.  
Saunders asked about the water meter, and it was clarified we’re getting a bigger water line which 
requires a new meter that we have to fund.  Motion to recommend payment of $758,197.71 by 
Stahl.  2nd by Hopkins.  Motion carried.   


 Project Update – Committee Chairman Stahl reviewed change orders approved at the committee 
noting that $38,320 will come to the board for approval for historic work on the conference room, 
which is within budget of the historic renovation budget.  She also noted the furniture bid 
recommendation we be made this month, and that the $26,000 elevator change request will come to 
the board in the future when we have specific bids to approve.  She reported the historic stencil 
mock up was finalized and committee chose the pattern that most closely resembled the original 
stencil because the simplified version looked to bare on that big ceiling.  There is a $7,500 
difference, which is also within the project budget.  Rice noted that Tony Kartsonas commented on 
how accommodating and cooperative RJC is to work with, which has made his job very enjoyable 
there.   


         
13. Appointment –  


 Resignation – Ogle County Emergency Telephone Board, Brian Kunce.  Horner recommends 
bringing the 911 board recommendations to the Executive committee for interview and 
recommendation.  Rice said this would be fine.   


 Recommendation – Ogle County Housing Authority, Kimberly Suslek will be recommended to the 
Board.     


 
14. States Attorney Report - 


 Approval of Bills – motion to approve bills in the amount of $3,032 by Hopkins.  2nd by Kenney.  
Motion carried.   







 Other - McKinley noted that we will be recognizing Ben Roe for his National Champion for 
Change award presented to him in Washington DC this week.     


 
15. Old Business –  


 Responsible Bidder Ordinance – McKinley reported that she, Ed Rice, Ben Roe, and Dennis 
Williams met to discuss objectives of passing a responsible bidder ordinance and review what 
Whiteside County has done in this area.  The intent of such an ordinance is to ensure vendors are 
held to standards that keep financially poor performing, or otherwise unqualified vendors from 
getting a large construction job just because they submit the lowest bid.  Ben Roe had reported that 
Whiteside County did pass a responsible bidder ordinance, but by the time it had gone through so 
many revisions and incorporated everyone’s input to cover all sorts of scenarios, it actually lost a 
lot of the “teeth” they had originally desired. McKinley reported the group had discussed Curtis 
Cook’s input that the best way to ensure the most qualified vendor gets a job is to carefully 
prequalify the vendors prior to sending out the bid notice.  McKinley reported that Rice, Roe, 
Williams and she believe it would better serve Ogle County to pass a resolution requiring vendor 
prequalification on construction jobs $1,000,000 or larger for all these reasons.  Saunders moved to 
bring a resolution to board to require prequalification of bidders of major construction projects in 
the county of $1 million or more, excluding the Highway dept.  2nd by Hopkins.  Motion carried.   


 Hearing Officer Position to be Filled- McKinley noted she is drafting a job description and 
proceeding with the solicitation and interview process with Chairman Rice for this appointed 
position.     
 


16. New Business –  
 Thompson Prison Resolution – Chairman Rice noted Ogle County has been asked to support the 
federal government’s plans to purchase the Thompson Prison.  Discussion followed.   Hopkins 
moved to put this resolution to the board stating we support the purchase of the Thompson by the 
Federal government.  2nd by Horner.  Motion carried.   


 Bill pending for prevailing wage – Chairman Rice reported Jim Sacia’s office has asked for a 
recommendation against this bill passing.  Discussion followed. Hopkins moved to respond in 
opposition of this bill.  2nd by Kenney.  Motion carried.   


 
17. Adjournment  - 5:17 by Chairman Rice.  2nd by Kenney. 


 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
Meggon McKinley, Ogle County Administrator 


 
W. Ed Rice, Chairman 


 
Sheriff’s Department Training Room 
103 Jefferson St in Oregon, Illinois 


Public Entrance – gated entrance off Jefferson Street – use East door of building 








Ogle County Finance & Insurance Committee  
Tentative Minutes 


Wednesday December 9, 2009  
 
 
 


1. Call to Order – by Chairman Hopkins at 2:35.  Members present: Hopkins,  
Kenney, Rice, White, Gronewold, Saunders.  Members absent: Deihl. Also 
present: Lynne Kilker, Bob DeArvil, Jim Barnes, John Coffman, Greg Query, 
Meggon McKinley, Sheriff Beitel, Frank Mallory, Doreen O’Brien, Don Conn 


 
2. Approval of Minutes – Motion by Gronewold to approve the November 10, 2009.  


2nd by Kenney.  Motion carried.   
 


3. Approval of Bills 
• Treasurer – Motion to approve bills in the amount of $934.00 by White.  


2nd by Kenney .  Motion carried.   
• Finance & Administrator – Motion to approve bills in the amount of 


$4,038.21 by Kenney.  2nd by Gronewold. Motion carried.    
 


4. Public Comment – Don Con said it was nice to see the Sheriff exceed his 
anticipated revenue and come under budget in his expenses.  The inmate cataract 
surgery ordered by the Judge caused an overage.  He reported concern upon 
seeing that Marty Typer cleared out all of his budget.   


 
5. Insurance Report- 


• Property & Liability Report –Greg Query reported the deer accident for a 
claim of $3044.29.  He also reported on the workers compensation 
renewal report showing a 5% increase in the experience modifier – this 
means if you are charged a multiplier at 1.0 or below, you’re at the rate 
everyone else is.  If you’re above, you’re worse off.  Ogle County is at a 
.83 experience modifier.  Salary changes can drive this, OT drives this, 
and it is a rolling average beyond one year.  Coffman reviewed the health 
claims report through November with a loss claim of 82%.  He reported 
one person is above Specific on this report, and another claim will go over 
Specific that we received this month.   


 
6. Finance Report- General fund 2009 hold back was $100,000 more than the 


expected $300,000 hold back.  Hopkins noted the $617,179.91 was $100,000 
more than last year.  Year end transfers not made are the $25,000 Probation 
Department and $25,000 from Circuit Clerk.  Last year Probation was able to 
contribute $15,000.  McKinley noted Frank Mallory and Greg Martin both noted 
they were not aware they had committed to a full $25,000 transfer for 2009.  On 
the Circuit Clerk, Saunders thought the agreement to transfer funds was based on 
the board agreeing to increase the Circuit Clerk fees collected.  McKinley 
reported the discussions she had with Typer, where he indicated each year there 
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needed to be certain things that happened to warrant the annual $25,000 transfer, 
and that this year with salaries not being funded and Nomad bills not being paid 
out of the network budget, he didn’t not see a reason to transfer the funds.  Rice 
asked McKinley to ask Typer to send a letter stating he will not be transferring the 
funds and the reasons why.  Coffman expresses concern about these agreements 
not being honored.  Rice motions to have the Clerk put in writing the reasons for 
not transferring the $25,000.  Second by White.  Motion carried.  Gronewold 
asked if we need to send a request back saying we aren’t going to fund the extra 
money for the salaries.  McKinley said it was a motion that was acted upon in one 
of the special Finance committee meetings and on the record.  Saunders noted we 
probably need to ask Probation for a letter of explanation too.  Motion by Rice to 
have Probation send a letter also 2nd by White.  Motion carried.  McKinley noted 
she would like to see these types of agreements more in stone, or go away entirely 
because it creates too much confusion years later when people don’t agree upon 
the reasons for making such deals.  She suggested asking each department for a 
letter in writing about 2010 intent since Probation and Circuit Clerk $25,000 
transfers are both planned in the 2010 revenue budget.  Saunders notes that 
Probation was short $75,000 from the state in reimbursements, and we expect this 
additional $75,000 for 2010 reimbursements, which helps.  White motions for the 
2010 budget year for both Probation and Circuit Clerk to put in writing their 
intentions regarding the budgeted $25,000 annual general fund contribution.  2nd 
by Saunders.  Motion carried.   


7. Administrator Report –  
• LRP Fund Report – McKinly recapped the LRP courthouse report noting 


the change order schedule.  She noted the non-courthouse report was 
distributed as well.  McKinley distributed and read the States Attorney’s 
recommendation to with hold the $14,000 lien payment from RJC.  Circuit 
Clerk will hold the check until the court case is finalized.  Scott Robinson 
has notified the RJC lawyer of our intent.   


 
8. Old Business  


• 2010 Budgets – White notes he believes this economic climate is going to 
be the norm for a long time.  We need to be resilient and plan for even 
deeper cuts coming down the road.  If the dollar gets devalued, like he 
thinks will happen, we will be in trouble.  Government employees will be 
likely to be the highest paid employees in our country.  Gronewold said 
today the President was talking about a new stimulus package to cover 
payments to county and state government employees.   


 
9. New Business –  


• 2009 Budget Amendment for Funds Transfers- Hopkins reads the 
proposed resolution to authorize transfer of funds between accounts.  
Kenney moves to recommend the resolution to the board.  2nd by White.  
Motion carried.   


• Bond Abatement- Hopkins read resolution 2009-1202 to pay debt service 
on the bonds for the Judicial Center, which was laid over at the board from 
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last month.  Recommendation by White to move it to the board.  2nd by 
Kenney.  Motion carried. Hopkins then read resolution 2009-1201 to pay 
debt service on the bonds for the Judicial Center, which was laid over at 
the board from last month.  Gronewold recommends moving it to the 
board.  Saunders 2nd.  Motion carried.      


• Hiring Freeze- McKinley reported that labor attorney Sakellariou said 
there would be no union impact if a hiring freeze is enacted because the 
unions have no say in new hires.  She reported that McHenry County 
worked cooperatively across all department heads, elected and appointed, 
not to replace 26 positions left open after employees left from attrition 
throughout 2009, but there was no resolution to do this, just requests.  
They reached significant savings from this and avoided lay offs.  Rice 
agrees that hiring freezes are difficult to implement in a formal manner.  
McKinley recapped the motion made by Larry Boes at the Personnel 
Committee meeting, focusing on not hiring any new positions.  White 
confirmed we can only set elected officials’ budgets and not implement a 
hiring freeze.  White suggests advising a hiring freeze and asking all 
departments to honor it.  McKinley notes dept heads honored the 3% hold 
back and this is similar in spirit.  O’Brien noted she hasn’t filled her part 
time nursing position for a year, nor Myron Richter’s position to help 
manage the budget.  She also lost another position, and all positions are 
funded by grants so she’ll be filling them.  Hopkins noted he has 
confidence in the department heads to work diligently and are likely to 
continue working diligently.   


• Retirement Buyout Planning- McKinley reported on plans for reviewing 
this and presenting in January.  White presented an idea that he has been 
thinking about - what if we pulled the elected offices out of the general 
fund levy and created their own levy instead of funding through the 
general fund.  He sees it would make the elected official more responsible 
to the electorate, would go to the board for levy request and approval, and 
it would make them an equal partner in union negotiations.  Rice asks if 
each levy would have to go to the public for referendum.  Saunders asks if 
we have issues with trying to keep the income and fees in their department 
and not shared. Rice asks if we could do this for Sheriff for public safety 
levy.  White says the goal is to get the department head more involved in 
the contracts and more responsive to the tax payer.  Rice says his 
experience is that the department heads are very involved with the process, 
like Doreen O’Brien, Greg Martin, Marty Typer who manage their own 
contracts.  Coffman notes statutes create the levies and are adopted by the 
county board, like seniors, mental health, etc. and that he is unaware of 
any provision on how to break it out by department.  Coffman says it 
becomes difficult to know how to split up the fees collected.  McKinley  
said Ben Roe is out this week and she will be asking him upon his return. 
In talking with White about this earlier, McKinley did ask  Sakallariou if 
he has seen anything like this in the counties he is advising on contracts, 
and he said no.  Hopkins noted we still have to stay witin the Excelon 
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agreement max. McKinley will ask the question about the legality to Ben 
Roe upon his return.   


• Rice notes the Finance Committee also should get a copy of the salary 
information passed out at Personnel this morning.  Saunders notes that her 
concern is that the report doesn’t show all stipends and would like to see 
them before it is distributed, e.g., stipends for any chief deputies, or 
Circuit Clerk, Assessments, County clerk.  McKinley will ask about these 
and where they are tracked.  McKinley will also give copies to the Dept 
Heads, per O’Brien’s request.   
 


10. Possible Closed Session – Collective Negotiating Matters (5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (2) 
• Motion to move into executive session by Kenney.  2nd by White.  Voice 


vote – Kenney yes, White yes, Gronewold yes, Saunders, yes, Rice yes, 
Hopkins yes.  Motion carried unanimously.     


• Upon coming out of closed session, Hopkins notes our intent is to 
continue negotiations with the union.  The Sheriff noted that the Circuit 
Clerk does have stipends.  McKinley noted mileage is dropping to $.50 per 
the IRS effective January 1, 2010.   


 
11. Adjournment – Hopkins adjourned the meeting at  4:01  


 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
Meggon McKinley, Ogle County Administrator 


 
 


Lyle Hopkins – Chairman 
Sheriff’s Department Training Room 103 Jefferson St in Oregon, Illinois 


Public Entrance – gated entrance off Jefferson Street – use East door of building 








H.E.W. and Solid Waste Committee Meeting 
Tentative Minutes 


Tuesday, December 8, 2009  
 
 


1. Call to Order-  by Vice Chair Bowers at 4:00. Bauer joined at 4:07. Members present:  
Horner, Kilker, Barnes, Janes, Bauer. Members absent: Williams.  Also present: Bob 
DeArvil, Meggon McKinley, Doreen O’Brien, Steve Rypkema, members of the public 
 


2. Approve Committee Minutes:  Barnes moved to approve the November 9, 2009 minutes. 
2nd by Janes.  Motion carried.     


 
3. Public Comment- none 


 
4. Regional Office of Education 


 Bills for Approval – Horner moves to approve bills in the amount of $938.47.  2nd by 
Kilker.  Motion carried.   


 Monthly Update- none 
 


5. Health Department 
 Monthly Report(s) – O’Brien provided the annual year end budget.  By not filling 


positions, O’Brien saved over $33,000 to help the end balance.  Increases in expenses 
were for Public Health Emergency Response grant.  Barnes asked why they have to 
pay for repairs to the building when we rent.  O’Brien stated the contract requires it, 
which is a 10 year contract with 5 more years to go.  This contract was originally 
reviewed and approved by the States Attorney office, per O’Brien.  She reported they 
are holding clinics for H1N1 every Monday through next Monday and then 21st until 
noon, then nothing the rest of December.   The January schedule has not been set but 
will be posted.  O’Brien notes we expect H1N1 to be around until April.  Her monthly 
report shows 6,318 H1N1 vaccines given to date by age group.  She reported they’ve 
hit all the schools twice and the walk in clinics have been well attended.  She noted 
they are still just giving vaccinations to the priority groups, but that phone call 
volumes have decreased significantly.  She reported the staff is tired.  O’Brien also 
reported that she received a thank you letter from the Rochelle community Hospital 
because we provided them with vaccinations, because they didn’t receive all they 
needed.  She also distributed a thank you letter from an individual on WIC that was 
appreciative of all the help she received.  She owed the Health Dept money, and sent 
it in with a letter offering a donation above what was owed so they can help someone 
else.  O’Brin also reported that the Kings engineering project did receive the 
assessment grant, so once it’s funded, they can proceed.  She then reported we are 
losing the Emergency Response Coordinator as he moves on to other things, and the 
position is open, and covered by grants.      
 


6. Solid Waste Department –  
 Bills for Approval- Rypkema explained line items of the monthly bills.  Kilker moves 


to approve bills in amount of $10,817.41.  Second by Bowers. Motion carried.  
Rypkema reported we spent 95% of plan.  For income, we exceeded, which was 
surprising because we were down in Violia, but also because Rochelle land fill began 
paying the host fees in 2009, which may not have been budgeted, so it offset the 
budgeted income.   Rypkema also passed out the 2010 budget approved in this year’s 
budget for future reference.  Motion by Bowers to approve second half of November 
bills for $21,832.84.  2nd by Horner.  Motion carried.    







 Department Updates–Rypkema reported that the recycling event broke all records.  
2008 had 600 vehicles and 2009 had 1011 vehicles, even though it was a terrible 
rainy day.  He reported that the we collected 71 tons of electronics in 2008 and 116 
tons in 2009 at a very reasonable cost. Rypkema believes these costs will go down as 
the cost of recycling as of January 1 falls to the manufacturers.  Rypkema also 
reported that he met with Ben Roe, Ed Rice, and Meggon McKinley to discuss the 
ongoing disagreement regarding whether certain types of materials are subject to host 
fees.  The group decided we need to seek outside counsel to get an opinion on our 
options.  Ben Roe will be making an appointment for a special assistant to the States 
Attorney office to move forward.  Rypkema noted the attorney bills will come to this 
committee, as we have budgeted for it.  He also reported this Thursday there is a 
hearing regarding the new law passed about the beneficial use law.  The hearing is to 
see if amending this law is necessary.  Rypkema will be testifying at that hearing in 
Waukegan.  The Illinois County Solid Waste association has a good article on this 
subject in the newsletter, which Rypkema distributed.  He reported Joy has been 
working hard at the Christmas tree recycling program with Stillman Valley and the 
City of Byron to arrange drop off trees at designated locations.  This is a good 
partnership with many entities, which are noted on the hand out he provided. 
 


7. Animal Control –  
 Bills for Approval- Motion by Bowers to approve $2,601.25 for the first half of 


December’s Pet Population Fund. 2nd by Horner. Motion carried. Motion by Bowers 
to approve Animal Control bills for Nov 16-30, 2009 in the amount of $4,698.08 by 
Bowers.  2nd by Kilker.  Motion carried.  Motion by Bowers to approve Animal 
Control Dec 1-15 bills for $6,606.63 by Bowers.  2nd by Horner.  Motion carried.   


 Monthly report – Dr. Champley provided the monthly report and noted he hopes next 
month to return to the topic of how to manage the Pet Population control program 
when it appears they may be abusing the system.   
 


New Business – Kilker reported there are grants by Quinn noting any service members that 
have been wounded abroad can apply for $5,000 grants.  This is from the Illinois Military 
Family Relief Fund, started in 2003, and just now funded.  Each recipient is to receive one 
grant per injury.  Military Affairs will oversee the program.  McKinley will forward this on 
to Clint Strauss of the VAC.  McKinley asked about the 708 Board and $14,000 amended 
budget request.  Bauer reported they want the appropriation increased to $821,000 to allow 
for the $14,000 spend they would like to make since the funds were left over from 2008 and 
not spent.  Discussion followed about how money can or cannot be carried over and the 
committee confirmed the state statute that indicates money cannot be spent without 
appropriating it.  Committee members noted they are hesitant to open and increase any 
budgets at this time.  Bauer noted if anyone has funds left over in a year, they should actually 
be lowering the levy amount to reflect the savings.  More discussion followed.  The 708 
Board presented a letter requesting the $14,000 appropriation & budget amendment.  Bowers 
moves to ask for the $14,000 increased appropriation for the 708 Board, representing their 
plans to distribute $7,000 to Village of Progress and $7,000 to Sinnissippi. 2nd by Horner. 
Discussion followed.  The committee clarified there was $14,000 left over from 2008 and in 
April 2009, the 708 Board voted to give $7,000 to VOP and $7,000 to Sinissippi since these 
groups’ state funding was reduced.  Bowers reported they thought it was paid but found the 
treasurer never distributed it (since it wasn’t appropriated.)  Motion defeated with all nay 
votes except Bowers, who voted in favor of the motion.  McKiney will respond with a letter 
saying the request was denied.   
8. McKiney will respond with a letter saying the request was denied.   


 







9. Old Business – Horner asks how the VAC is doing.  McKinley reported they have 
implemented the new web site tab from the Ogle County home page, have entered a float 
in the parades to advertise, have a sign and number in the window, and seem to be doing 
very well communicating with the veterans to ensure they are aware of their services.   
 


10. Adjournment – by Chairman Bauer at approximately 4:55 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Meggon McKinley, Ogle County Administrator 
 
 


Jason Bauer – Chairman 
 


Sheriff’s Department Training Room 
103 Jefferson St in Oregon, Illinois 


Public Entrance – gated entrance off Jefferson Street – use East door of building 








Judiciary & Circuit Clerk & Juvenile & Probation  
Committee Meeting Agenda 


Tuesday, December 8, 2009 at 3:00 p.m. 
 
 
 


1. Call to Order – at 3:00 by Chairman Nye.  Members present:  Nye, Kenney, Colbert, 
DeArvil, Stahl.  Members absent: Gouker.  Also present: Marty Typer, Meggon 
McKinley, Frank Mallory, Mike Dale, Don Conn.    


 
2. Approval of Minutes: Motion to approve November 9, 2009 minutes by Stahl.  Second by 


Kenney.  Motion carried.   
 


3. Public Comment - none 
 


4. Consideration of Monthly Invoices: 
 Focus House – Motion by Messer to approve the bills in the amount of $2,229.39.  2nd 


by Colbert.  Motion carried.   
 Probation- Motion by Stahl to approve the bills in the amount of $1,540.   Second by 


Messer.  Motion carried.     
 Circuit Clerk- Motion by Stahl to approve the bills in the amount of $23.10.  2nd by 


Kenney.  Motion carried.    
 Judiciary – none presented.   


 
5. Department Reports: 


 Probation – Ben is being awarded in DC a national Champion for Change award, 
participating with the MacArthur Foundation.  Greg Martin is with him in for this 
award.  Dale reported WBBM carried the news release, as did many other stations in 
the county.  Dale presented a more specific budget for the DC account to better track 
the monies coming in and out of that fund for Focus House expenditures.  They plan 
to bring it to the committee and board quarterly, monthly to the administrator.  Dale 
clarified this budget requires between 9-10 out of county kids to meet our budget 
needs.  He reported the salary line item anticipates this year’s part time salary overrun 
based on past 3 year patterns and includes OT, holiday time, and weekend time.  He 
pointed out that food is another large expense, and utilities are also significant.  Dale 
noted these are items the Board doesn’t normally see because the judges approve 
them and his desire is to help the board better understand the Focus House 
expenditures.  A Probation Services account report will be done similarly.  He noted 
these budgets should help the operation manage their expenses tighter. Dale then 
explained the ankle monitoring devices that the kids wear on the property and also 
when they go home.  He explained they also use other GPS devices used for those 
with more criminal behavior, when they are at home.  He explained they set up safety 
plans for them and use the GPS to hold them accountable.  This can provide address 
listing of where they have been in 5 minute increments.  This operates off of 29 
satellites stationed around the globe.  McKinley noted this helps keep weekend 
staffing levels low as they are able to monitor the kids that they are comfortable 







sending home with these monitoring devices. McKinley also noted that Martin called 
today to note that he will be taking his raise off the table for 2010.   


 Focus House – Dale reported that enrollment fluctuates, but they are up to 9 out of 
county kids.  Kendall county on the report should note 1 kid (report says 0).  
Graduations coming on Dec 22.  The committee is invited to come to this, along with 
the Christmas party that day.   


 Ogle County Reporting Center – Dale reported on the partnership with ROE and Ogle 
County Schools to create alternative program for kids not actually on probation.  
Certified aids oversee this.  December shows 5 kids in evening and 5 were day 
suspension kids- 4 from Rochelle and 1 from Byron. Schools are starting to 
participate in this program for 8th graders and higher.  Kids, schools, and parents are 
pleased with this program.   


 Circuit Clerk – Typer reports we’ve begun the annual audit and that it’s going well 
with many more conversations yet to come in the next 90 days.  He reported the year 
end reports are due in Springfield and they are balancing all the funds.  He will then 
assemble the Circuit Clerk’s annual report, to be finished in 1Q10.  Dale asked what 
we will do with the State board of Ed audit reporting requirements, and McKinley 
noted to keep funneling this to LCV and escalate to her if anything is needed.  Typer 
reported the team is wrapping presents for the needy families they have sponsored – 
one family with 3 kids 3 and under, including a premature baby with a mom that 
needs a lot of things.  The team bought them a microwave and other necessity items.   


 
6. New Business – none 


 
7. Old Business – none 


 
8. Adjournment- by Chairman Nye at 3:30.   


 
 
 


Respectfully Submitted, 
Meggon McKinley, Ogle County Administrator 


    
 


Maggie Nye - Chairman 
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Ogle County 
Long Range Planning – Courthouse Renovation Committee Meeting 


Tentative Minutes 
Dec 1, 2009 


 
 
 


1. Call to Order by Chairman Stahl at 10:37:  Members present:    Rice, Gouker, Messer, Stahl, Nye, 
Gronewold.  Members absent:  Hopkins.  Also present Jim Barnes, Ron Colson, Sheriff Beitel, 
Meggon Mckinley, Becky Huntley, Larry Callant, Cheryl  Hopkins, Bonnie Hendricks, Tony 
Kartsonas Jim Dobyns, Tom Lassin, Jeff Case, Andrea Caputo.   


 
2. Approval of Minutes:  Motion to approve Nov 3, 2009 by Nye.  2nd by Rice.  Motion Carried.     


 
3. Courthouse Renovation Project – Update & Possible Action: 
 


a. Project Update‐ McKinley reported there have been many tours of the courthouse as 
people show interest, and the Kiwanis as well as the media are interested as well.   
McKinley reported the first conference call to begin negotiating change order fees with 
Holabird & Root, Ringland Johnson, and Ogle County took place November 30.  Some 
concessions were made; others are still under review.  Gouker questioned the elevator 
change order for $26,834 and asked how we missed this.  Rice said the 2007 inspection 
noted we’d have to spend $140,000 to bring the elevator fully to up to code.  Dobyns 
noted that when he arrived on the job with RJC, he knew things wouldn’t pass code at 
end of the renovation job, which requires bringing elevators up to current code.  He 
reported the current inspector is very reasonable, and hopes she will be the one to 
return in the spring again.  He noted the RJC recommendation to add the fire damper 
because he believes any other inspector will require it, even though this particular 
inspector did not.  Messer moved to recommend bringing the elevator to code with 
reason of omission by architect.  2nd by Nye.  Gronewold asked if we are just going with 
RJC pricing, and Dobyns noted it would be T&M for RJC work not to exceed $26,834.  
Motion carried with one nay vote by Gronewold.  Gronewold clarified that we covered 
this extensively with the architect prior to the bids and doesn’t understand why this was 
missed.  Messer asked why we have to do this now, and Stahl clarified when remodeling 
an old building, new code applies.   It was also noted that the storm sewer upgrade 
project will likely wait until spring.     


b. Change Order Review – Dobyns brought forward new change orders for review and 
possible action by the committee, as follows:   


i. RJC #21 – Installing revised electrical and wire mold casing enhancement to make 
things look better at the perimeter of the counters along the walls.  The original 
recommendation was circuit mount for phone and other connections, and the 
architect suggests putting all of this internally to cabinets so no one can see it 
when not in use, and to blend better with the millwork.  Without it, visible wire 
molding will be throughout the courthouse.  This proposal covers 4 separate 
pieces of casework; 2 on the first floor and 2 on the 2nd.  It was noted that some 
equipment on the counters will cover some of it up.  Rice motions to approve 
#RJC 21 for $5,700 by reason of owner initiated.  Messer 2nd.  Motion carried.   







ii. RJC #25 – revision to the door frame just south of the elevator.  The drawings 
called for a widening of the door, but once RJC  tore the door out to widen it, 
they found airshafts that wouldn’t support it and had to put it back together , 
narrowing the door again to the original opening.  The cost represents RJC’s 
work.  Rice moved to approve RJC #25 for $972 with the reason of unforeseen 
condition.  2nd by Messer.  Motion carried.  Gouker expressed concern that we 
are approving too many  change orders and will be over budget. He asked how 
the board is supposed to be aware of these changes to make informed decisions.  
McKinley pointed him to the LRP courthouse project reconciliation sheet, noting 
this format has been distributed at the committee and board level for a few 
months as a tool to provide reporting needed to stay informed. She walked 
through the format, highlighting row B36, which shows we have approved 
spending $179,997 out of the $406,818 contingency as of 11/30/09. She 
reported the courthouse project is moving along well within budget with no 
indication at this point that any area will be over budget.     


iii. RJC#26 – Revising a County Clerk wall from a full wall to a half wall.  McKinley 
reminded Dobyns this was discussed a month ago when we confirmed we told 
H&R of this need, and they didn’t get it in the drawings.  Dobyns noted that 
regardless of how this came about, they need to ensure payment for the work. 
Tom Lassin agreed this was H&R’s oversight , and agreed to work it out directly 
with RJC so that it is a non‐issue to the board.   


iv. RJC #32 – Open site drain at room 004.  Lassin said this can go away because they 
assumed there would be no cost due to limiting the amount of piping, and that 
following the original design makes this go away.  H&R and RJC agreed to review 
this so it is a non‐issue to the board.     


v. RJC #33 – Relocate the dry sprinkler valve in the attic.  Dobyns reported that RJC 
is recommending this even though H&R is not requiring it because it’s so close to 
the expensive work being done on the board room ceiling and it’s not worth the 
risk of the pipe freezing in the winter and destroying the ceiling.  Dobyns noted it 
is a dry system to the point of the attic valve, so there is actually a small section 
in the attic that is wet.  This change would get this valve below the 3rd floor 
ceiling where it’s warmer and shouldn’t freeze or burst.  Motion by Gronewold to 
accept this change order for $3,286 with reason of owner initiated.  Rice 2nd.  
Motion carried.   


vi. RJC #34 – Revisions to conference room 319 to create historic memorial focus for 
the 3rd floor as planned.  McKinley clarified this is within the historic allowance 
budget the board has already approved within the overall courthouse project.   
Rice moves to approve the $38,328 conference room renovation.  Nye second.  
Motion carried.   


vii. RJC #35 – Owner initiated to investigate the cost of trying to preserve the second 
floor decorative column. There are two columns; one will be enclosed and we 
asked what it would cost to expose and preserve it.   Dobyns reported a number 
of cost scenarios ranging from $10,000 to cut out a full circle around the column 
to see it far away from where the public stands down to $2,000 to just lower the 
decorative framing on the column and keep it below the drop ceiling.  He 
clarified there is also a $4,000 quote to cut a smaller circle out of the ceiling that 
you’d have to walk up to in order to see the top of the column.  Rice asks if the 
committee wants to spend $2,000 to preserve this column, and general 







agreement is no.  Rice moves to enclose the column and go with the original 
plan.  Nye second.  Motion carried.   


viii. RJC #43 – Dobyns reported this item for heat pumps is going away because the 
manufacturer of the product will cover it.     


c. Furniture bids – Andrea Caputo summarized the process she and the department heads 
have gone through to prepare the bid request to dealers of Allsteel, Teknion, and 
Hayworth manufacturers, including multiple department head meetings to specify colors 
and finishes for all pieces of furniture for each manufacturer.  She noted we received four 
dealer bids; OM Workspace (Teknion) for $218,401.33; Hendrickson (Allsteel) for 
$239,000.41; Business Office Systems (Hayworth) for $249,546.62; and Kayhan 
International (Hayworth) for $274,794.21. McKinley clarified we dropped OM Workspace 
because their $218k bid did not include some of the key requirements requested and we 
dropped Kayhan International because there is no good explanation for their $275k high 
bid.  She also reported the furniture allowance budget is $337,200 and that we are 
pleased the pricing came in low.  Caputo recommends choosing Business Offices for 
$249,546.62 because they offer a life time warranty on parts and labor for their furniture 
and carry the specific office chair that all the department heads preferred when they 
tested the furniture last year.  She also noted they have a “pelican” desk drawer that 
allows more personal storage space without taking away filing space, which the 
department heads also preferred.  She reported that Allsteel has a more limited warranty 
based on certain pieces and certain time spans.  She indicated both are solid products, 
but the office chairs don’t have all the ergonometric features of the Hayworth chair.  
Messer noted that the Sheriff furniture purchased about 50 years ago, and still in place, is 
Allsteel furniture from Muscatine, Iowa.  McKinley noted that because these chairs will 
be in place likely for another 50 years, she feels it’s important to choose the highest 
quality, most durable, lifetime warranty products.  Becky Huntley said Coffman, Harrison, 
and she went to see the manufacturers’ products originally and agreed that Hayworth 
was the best because of all the little extras that seem to come with their designs plus 
their chairs.  Caputo reported that she will meet with the department heads again next 
week to clarify the specifications of the chosen vendor to be ready for the order.  Once 
it’s approved by the board on 12/15, she will place the orders with the dealer.  Motion by 
Messer to select Business Office Systems / Hayworth for $249,546,62.  2nd by Rice.  
Motion carried.    


 
4. Approval of Bills‐  McKinley explained some of the items on the bills, noting the $7,700 bill for 


purchasing the last set of internet connection failover devices needed to make the fiber 
connection back up automatic should the microwave tower connection fail.  She reported that 
we had recommended staying with a manual fail over switch approach to save the $7,700 
assuming it would be just “flipping a switch” to cut over to the fiber optic back up.  However, 
Dynamic Horizons reported this week that it would take at least 3 hours of programming to make 
the manual back up line work if it’s needed.  McKinley and the Sheriff agreed this is not an 
acceptable back up solution because in an outage, we would be guaranteed at least 3 hours of 
down time.  Rice updated the committee on the NITT progress made this year, showing the 2009 
contribution to help purchase the infrastructure needed to light up the stretch of connection 
along interstate 39.  He reported we’ve been working on this for 5 years, and this payment 
represents the Ogle County planned contribution.  He noted this will allow us to finish the project 
that will secure Northern Trust and Allstate NITT’s first customers for their redundancy planning, 
as promised when they located in Ogle County.  Gouker asked who gets the money for this and 







Rice confirmed NITT does until revenues exceed expenses and then distributions can go back to 
the partners.  He reported Winnebego and Boone County are partners but have not committed 
capital.  NIU and RMU provide extensive in kind and capital contributions, as well capital 
contributions from Rockford, Ogle County and RMU.  Gouker suggested provided an update to 
the board so they can see what is progressing for this contribution.  McKinley agreed to provide 
the board with an updated revenue and expense sheet, balance sheet, business plan and 
marketing plan updates.  Motion by Messer to approve $754,697.71 2nd by Nye.  Motion carried.   


 
5. New Business – Rice asked Dobyns if RJC believes the lien filed against them by Big Joe the 


Plumber union attorneys is valid.  Dobyns indicates they don’t believe it will hold up in court, but 
that it is still in process.  He reported they have a new plumber on site and that they will be 
totally caught up with the plumbing work within 1‐2 weeks. They’ve chosen Nelson Carlson from 
Rockford.  


 
6. Public  Comment – Ron Colson reported he received a request from Cub Pack 81 asking to visit 


the courthouse.  Colson indicated he would be the point person and will contact McKinley with 
the requested date and time for her to coordinate with Mike Brown.  Gronewold then added that 
we appreciate the discussions taking place on the courthouse and we don’t want anyone at H&R 
or RJC to think we are against them, but it is very difficult to make these decisions to spend 
money when also sitting on the Finance Committee and having to cut budgets and employees.   


 
7. Next Meeting‐  January 5, 2010, 10:30.   
 
8. Reconvene Meeting to Courthouse 
 


a. Stencil Mock Up Vote –Committee Chairman Stahl then moved the meeting to the 
Courthouse building to view the stencil mock up prepared by Tony Kartsonas and vote on 
whether to pursue the more complex stenciling pattern as originally done, or pursue the 
more simplified stenciling pattern proposed by Kartsonas.  Upon reviewing the patterns, 
everyone agreed the simplified pattern actually looks too bare on the large ceiling 
because there would be no stenciling on the beam patterns.  Kartsonas agrees. The 
original stencil pattern was reduced 50% in size.  The difference in price is only about 
$7,500.  McKinley clarified this is still within the historic renovation project budget.   
Motion by Nye to select the full stencil pattern.  2nd by Messer.  Motion carried.  


b. A/V Equipment ‐ McKinley then updated the group with the current A/V equipment 
being scoped for the 3rd floor board room.  It includes 2 large screens on the walls (not 4 
as recommended in the drawings), 2 projectors, individual microphones at each board 
member’s desk, 2 free standing microphones for audience use, a podium with 
microphone and remote controls for all A/V equipment, a second remote control for all 
A/V equipment by the Chairman’s desk, 3 computer hook ups in the board desk areas, 
and centralized digital recording device that can burn directly to a CD.  Rice reported that 
he wants to ensure we do the board room right when it comes to A/V equipment 
because there is nothing worse than being in a large room where the A/V equipment is 
such that people can’t hear.  McKinley noted she asked RJC to put these specifications 
out to bid, which they expect to do as soon as possible.  It’s likely the A/v equipment may 
cost up to $90,000.  McKinley reported she talked with the McHenry County Clerk’s 
office, who just spent $140,000 to modernize their A/V equipment in the board room.   


 







9. Adjournment –Gronewold adjourned the meeting at 12:45.    
 
   


 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Meggon McKinley, Ogle County Administrator 


 
 
 


Kim Stahl – Chairman 
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Long Range Expenses


2009 Annual 
Budget


YTD Through 
11/30/09 % Spent


Multi-Year Project 
Budget LTD Expense


LTD % 
Spent


Courthouse Budget 6,566,344.00 2,203,050.31 22.3% 7,500,000.00$                  2,382,512.26$              22.0%


Salaries- Committee Meetings & Mileage             7,500.00 5,500.00 73.3%
Travel             2,500.00 1,028.39 41.1%


Total Meeting Expense           10,000.00             6,528.39 65.3%


CAD/ Records Management System           81,666.00 95,666.00 117.1% 625,000.00 491,766.00 78.7%
NITT Commission          175,000.00 152,000.00 86.9%


County Network Upgrade           40,250.00 
Global Enterprise Technology 28,680.56
Ogle County Sheriff's Dept 7,700.00
Dynamic Horizons 6,000.00
Dixon Ottawa 2,215.80
Total - Network Upgrade           40,250.00           44,596.36 110.8%


Pines Road - Garage Cold Storage           30,000.00 0.0%
Sheriff's Office/ Jail Assessment           45,000.00 0.0%
Judicial Center Shelving           91,400.00 91,398.94 100.0%
Judicial Center Man Lift           15,000.00 11,693.86 78.0%


Stillman Bank- Bond Servicing 500.00
Ogle County Collector - EOC Land 55.42
Blackhawk Hills 2,000.00
Focus House - Roof Repairs 2,800.00
Sterling Commercial Roofing - Jail 3,850.00
Martin & Co - Post Holes 944.00


Fiber Poject
TC Communications 7,980.08
Custom Underground 5,500.00
All Purpose Erectorts 40,034.00


Transfer to Bond Fund 1,151,200.00 0.0%
YTD Total Ependitures 8,205,860.00 2,668,597.36 32.5%


12/11/2009
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Personnel & Salary – County Clerk & Recorder Committee  
Tentative Minutes 


Tuesday, December 9, 2009  
 
 


1. Call to Order- by Chairman Kenney at10:04.  Members present Kenney, Bowers, 
Colbert, Saunders, Boes, Members absent: Gouker, Heuer. Also present: Ed Rice, 
Bob DeArvil, Lynne Kilker, Lou Finch, Becky Huntley, Sheriff Beitel, John 
Coffman, Jim Harrison, Mike Dale, Frank Mallory, Susan Montavon, Meggon 
McKinley, Don Conn. 
  


2. Approval of Minutes: Bowers moved to approve the November 10, 2009 meeting 
minutes.  2nd by Colbert. Motion carried.   


 
3. Approval of Bills – Saunders moved to approve bills in the amount of $31,994.42.  


2nd by Colbert.  Motion carried.   
 


4. Public comment- none 
 


5. County Clerk & Recorder Report – Huntley distributed the monthly recorders 
report.  Huntley reports her team is set up and will be ready to proof and finalize 
the upcoming election ballots once hearings at the state level are finished. She 
noted the judge of election school this year had 20-30 attendees, many of whom 
came without registering.   
 


6. New Business -   
a. Hiring Freeze – Kenney noted that during the 2010 budget process, we 


were asked to put a recommendation together for a hiring freeze, and 
would like committee input. Saunders says it sounds good in theory, but 
it’s very challenging when a job really has to be replaced.  Kenney 
interprets the hiring freeze as talking about not creating and hiring any 
new positions rather than not replacing positions after someone leaves. 
Boes suggests having departments evaluate whether a part time or full 
time position is really needed. Saunders said she thinks an across the 
board hiring freeze means no hiring at all.  McKinley said the board can 
structure it however they’d like but that she interprets hiring freezes to 
mean no replacement of those who have left.  Boes expressed concern 
about how this looks to those laid off.  Kenney noted that the represented 
groups are bound by contract, and the unions stipulate who has to be 
called back if hiring takes place.  Kenney also noted that as long as the 
elected officials have the salary amount approved in their budget, they 
have the option to manage the position how they see fit.  McKinley 
reported she spoke with the McHenry County Administrator, who said 
their county worked together throughout 2009 to reduce staffing levels by 
26  positions through attrition – when people left, they didn’t fill the spot 
to reduce their budget and avoid lay offs.  She said McHenry County 







reports high levels of team work and cooperation across their department 
heads, elected and appointed, so it was done all voluntarily.  Boes 
suggested we implement a hiring freeze for new hires above current 
staffing levels, and that for turnover of current positions, the administrator 
and department heads should sit down to have a frank, open discussion to 
determine if the position really needs to be filled.  Colbert says she thinks 
we need to do the freeze, and noted she appreciated hearing that in the 
Sheriff’s department, an older officer agreed to retire so that a younger 
officer could have his job back.  Bowers noted she is in favor of the hiring 
freeze.  Boes noted that if the department heads and the administrator 
don’t agree on whether or not a position should be filled, it should be 
brought back to the Personnel Committee.  Saunders says she has no 
problem with hiring freeze, which is really handled by the budget because 
they don’t have funds to increase positions anyway.  Boes says it really is 
up to the dept head to manage the process. Colbert noted she is frustrated 
because we worked with EA for so long and it seems we still don’t have 
things in place to help avoid equity issues between union and non-union 
employees.  More discussion followed, and then Boes moved to 
recommend a hiring freeze from this point forward, such that no new 
positions will be created, but if someone retires or leaves, the department 
head and administrator are to meet and determine if the position really 
needs to be filled.  2nd by Bowers.  Motion carried with one nay vote by 
Kenney.  


b. 2010 Non-Union Compensation- Boes reported noted he and Dorothy 
Bowers brought their concerns to McKinley this week to show what has 
happened in the budget process, where he feels the non-union people were 
not treated fairly.  He distributed a report from the County Clerk’s office 
showing 2010 pay of all county positions.  Boes said he felt mislead about 
who would and would not get raises during the budget process and stated 
he feels the county has done a disservice to non-union employees as they 
watch unions continue to get raises.  He expressed concern other 
departments will want to unionize. Saunders says if they do so, they will 
face the same problem the Sheriff’s people did- having to take lay offs to 
fund the raises.  Saunders said she appreciates our employees and 
indicated that many department heads do have the choice to reallocate 
funds from other sources to avoid layoffs.  Boes says he doesn’t have a 
problem with the raises being given because he believes our employees, 
particularly in Focus House, deserve every dime they get.  Saunders said 
we had to set a budget with a deadline and when agreements didn’t come 
from the union, we set all department budgets at $0 salary line item 
increases, union and non-union alike.  She noted the Sheriff had to do lay 
offs, and that Probation didn’t increase the salary line item for General 
Fund raises, but had other discretionary funds to avoid lay offs.  Boes 
expressed concern that it appears everyone blames the Sheriff for the lay 
offs and Saunders clarified that is not her point at all, rather, that 
negotiations didn’t reach agreement but no salary line item increase was 







given to the Sheriff’s department to fund his raises so he had no choice but 
to lay off.  Boes stated his belief that the Board should have had enough 
foresight to see there wouldn’t be enough funds, but they didn’t.  Kenney 
stated when things beyond our control happen, we have to go back and 
review the contract. Kenney stated that the Finance Committee did thank 
the union for their offer, but indicated we could not accept it because we 
couldn’t fund it.  Boes said because the Sheriff has the biggest budget, he 
took the biggest hit.  Kenney agreed and noted it is not the Sheriff’s fault 
that the budget is so large- he inherited the responsibility for all these 
departments.  Boes expressed frustration with the way the last union 
contract was negotiated because he didn’t understand the steps in the 
contract and didn’t feel it was explained well.  Kenney clarified he is not 
in favor of steps, then asked what Boes recommends in dealing with the 
non-union compensation when those getting raises may still be in jeopardy 
of losing their jobs to fund it if alternative funding sources aren’t 
available.  He noted that the Board only has control over the finances and 
that we don’t have control over discretionary funds, that elected officials’ 
discretionary funds can be used as the department head sees fit, like in 
Focus House.  Mike Dale reported that the Focus House budget is much 
bigger than the county contributions, and so the DC fund pays another 
$400,000 to cover expenses.  Frank Mallory noted that anything spent out 
of the DC, is approved by Judge Pemberton.  Mike Dale clarified if the 
DC account isn’t healthy enough this year, they might have to make more 
lay offs.  McKinley noted last year they had to lay off in Focus House too.  
Dale noted this is nothing new stating they’ve had to move many of their 
expenses to the DC account with General Fund budget pressure, and that 
because out of county kids are down, they have to lay off, which is 
reasonable if the amount of staff required to supervise fewer kids is also 
reduced.  Dale noted the Focus House budget print out was presented at 
the Judiciary / Probation committee and will be included in the Board 
packets this month to help educate the board on how the funds are spent.  
Boes noted that Huntley gives money back to the county at the end of the 
year, and suggested that if she has the money, why not give raises? Rice 
said we don’t have a crystal ball for what the end of the year will bring.  
Saunders said, in defense of the county board, several years ago, we ran 
into this issue when a contract we had no say in was approved and it 
created disparity with non-union employees.  Saunders recalls the Board 
authorized non-union departments to figure out how to give raises, which 
triggered inequity with other unions, and we ended up in arbitration for the 
situation.  Saunders noted she believes the department heads are very 
responsible in analyzing what they can afford budgetarily and that what 
they give back at the end of the year goes to the reserves for the general 
fund budget.  Kenney said there are inequities in the budget we can’t do 
anything about and that he doesn’t want to micro manage any department.  
The Sheriff noted the County Board is co-employer with the Sheriff and so 
we both have to approve the Sheriff union contract.  Saunders confirmed.  







McKinley noted her perspective that we have as much information as the 
departments will share with us and we need to know the operation well 
enough to set a responsible financial budget.  She said it is important to 
her to work with each department head work to provide the best, and 
lowest budget possible to keep downward pressure on each budget.   
McKinley said that if Huntley has money to give back at the end of the 
year to fund raises, then that shows she has not provided the lowest budget 
possible for that year.  McKinley indicated that the primary objective in 
this year’s budget process was to avoid lay offs for the non-union 
employees, which transferring the money from reserves accomplished.  
She said she had spoken many times about the fact this year’s budget 
would bring pockets of inequities that we could not control with all the 
differences of how each department is structured. McKinley said that 
shortly after she was hired, she reviewed the EA study in detail with 
Marcia Heuer to interpret the data, and confirmed with the Personnel 
Committee that our pay ranges fall within the acceptable range of the EA 
pay ranges.  McKinley distributed a hand out showing the EA job level 
and salary ranges.  She noted the County Clerk’s report doesn’t show what 
level job each person has, so it’s hard to completely interpret the data 
other than just comparing to other people on the sheet.   Skip said the EA 
study was a guideline and we put it on the back burner to deal with the 
budgetary constraints, and we need to pick it up, clean it up, and receive 
the benefit we paid for.  He noted McKinley is working to locate the right 
EA people in Springfield to work with moving forward.  Boes said the EA 
study gave us enough information to move forward and establish a salary 
policy in this county.  He said they used federal, Winnebago and state 
wages, and it appeared our wages were pretty fair, with a few exceptions. 
Boes said we shouldn’t place blame, rather, move forward and establish a 
salary policy in this county.  Boes would like McKinley to focus energies 
on establishing the ranges.  Saunders says if elected officials don’t like the 
salary guidelines, they don’t have to follow them.  Kenney said we need to 
be able to quantify the value of the job and set salary ranges so that people 
can work for a promotion for higher pay, which is what EA will help us 
accomplish.  McKinley noted she wants to confirm how the EA job levels 
were defined to ensure they are really accurate, and obtain current market 
data.  Boes would like to see a project timeline agreed upon for this.  The 
committee discussed why we don’t have an agreed upon starting pay rate, 
and Boes reported Bowers had motioned the starting pay rate to be $22.25 
over a year ago, but it did not move forward until Boes brought it back up 
in spring of 2009 and it was voted down 0-6 because of concern about 
setting off union contract inequities.  Kenney noted if this is adopted, it 
would help each department head have the ability to see who is where on 
the targeted pay scale, with the goal of being just at or near the mid point 
of that job level.  Boes asked if we should try to condense the level ranges 
down.  McKinley said we’d have to review how the levels were 
determined, meet with each department head to understand whether they 







agree with the assessment of levels, and how they would implement them, 
along with performance management strategies to move them from one 
level to the next over time by meeting certain performance criteria.  Kilker 
noted she recalls being appalled at what we were hearing during the EA 
department head presentations, and the fact the process fell apart.  She 
asked the committee why we would continue looking at EA for help.  She 
asked what the value of the study is, and indicated she has no confidence 
in the materials and the out dated data.  Saunders said she isn’t confident 
this will solve our inequity problem.  McKinley says she can compare EA 
data with surrounding county data and the UCCI data to see what the 
levels and ranges should or should not be.  McKinley said she would 
report back to the committee in January on what we have and what we 
need and what our gaps are with a plan for implementing by 1Q10 before 
union contracts are negotiated.  Kenney clarified this project must be done 
in conjunction with McKinley’s other job responsibilities.  He also said 
he’d work with EA to get whole on the work we were owed, and will 
confirm how much we paid.  Kenney indicated the represented people may 
or may not participate.  McKinley noted this should be viewed as a tool to 
help set the budget based on reasonable policies and procedures.     
 


7. Old Business  
a. Personnel Manual & Review Process – Kenney noted a few changes for 


McKinley to make from his last copy in the table of contents and with contact 
information on page 2.  Saunders noted page 16’s sexual harassment section 
should stay as is since this was written in conjunction with all the training we 
completed, as required for insurance purposes.  McKinley noted our last risk 
assessment indicated we should perform back ground and vehicle checks for 
all employees.  She will work with the Sheriff’s department to see how these 
procedures can or cannot be incorporated into the work they are already doing 
to cover so many county employees.  McKinley noted we may want to 
consider adding reference to starting wages once established, as well as 
reference to the performance management process, and a new IT policy.  
McKinley distributed a sample IT policy for consideration.  Discussion 
followed about how to reference the other personnel manuals that exist in 
other departments.  Kilker recommended being sure to establish this guide as 
the County Board Policy, not an employee policy, so that we don’t create 
conflicts between multiple personnel guides within the county.  McKinley 
suggested noting in the County Board Policy that other department-specific 
policies or union contracts may supersede this Board Policy, to which Kilker 
agreed this would protect us from conflicting language and situations. Rice 
noted that it seems we are headed in the right direction with our changes and 
that we just have to spend the time to get this updated and established.  He 
noted he would like everyone to have input, such as Lynne’s suggestions, and 
depend on the administrator to keep us out of trouble since we don’t have an 
HR department.  He also said that, to be fair to McKinley, she has had a very 
short period of time since joining to try and get these issues all straightened 







out and that there is much work to be done here beyond when committees 
meet and then go home to focus on other things in their lives.  He noted we’ll 
need McKinley’s help getting this manual right.  McKinley then also noted 
she will take Pat Saunders recent change suggestions, update the health 
insurance verbiage, add the dental insurance offering, and work with John to 
get the health benefits booklet information updated.  Kenney asked to ensure 
health benefit and IMRF benefit contact information is included so people 
know who to contact with questions.   


b. Market Salary Data & Performance Based Management – nothing new to 
discuss.   


c. Other -  Saunders noted that the salary reported handed out does not include 
all salaries accurately because she sees only the Sheriff’s stipends noted when 
she knows other departments get stipends too.  McKinley said she’d work 
with the County Clerk’s office to properly update the data.  She also reported 
to the committee that Sheriff Beitel had offered to give up one of his stipends, 
and found out that he cannot do that because of statutes.  Saunders also noted 
that the county board has to set elected officials’ pay 6 months before election, 
so this must be on the agenda for spring.  Saunders suggests considering a pay 
freeze to elected officials now and then pay decreases for those up in two 
years.     


 
8. Adjournment – 12:05 by Skip.   
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Meggon McKinley, Ogle County Administrator 
 
 
 


John “Skip” Kenney – Chairman 
 
 


Sheriff’s Department Training Room 
103 Jefferson St in Oregon, Illinois 


Public Entrance – gated entrance off Jefferson Street – use East door of building 
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REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT
NOVEMBER 19, 2009


The regular monthly meeting of the Ogle County Regional Planning Commission was
held on Thursday, November 19, 2009 at 7:00 P.M. at the Ogle County Farm Bureau,
421 W. Pines Rd., Oregon, IL.


The Order of Business is as follows:


1. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF A QUORUM.


Chairman Funk called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. Roll call indicated seven
members of the Regional Planning Commission were present: Chairman Lloyd
Funk, Paul White, Ron Colson, Wayne Reising, Randy Ocken, David Poole and
Don Conn.


2. READING AND APPROVAL OF REPORT OF OCTOBER 22, 2009 AS
MINUTES.


Chairman Funk asked for any changes or corrections to the report of the October
22, 2009 meeting of the Ogle County Regional Planning Commission.  Hearing
none, Chairman Funk declared the minutes approved as read.


3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


Mr. Reibel reported on the County’s on-line Planning Preference Survey.  He stated that
there have been over two hundred completed surveys.  He explained that his goal was
two hundred and the results have exceed that.  He stated that the results are holding
similar to the report he gave a couple of months ago.


Mr. Ocken asked about more publications regarding the survey.  Mr. Reibel responded
that a publication was in the paper a week or two ago and another would be published
announcing the end of the survey in about a week.


Mr. Funk asked if the survey company will provide the county with a count summarizing
the responses.  Mr. Reibel responded that a report will be generated and he will present
that to the Planning Commission.


Mr. Funk stated that he feels this has been a good opportunity to gather public opinions
from citizens in the county.  He continued that it will be good to know when a
development boom hits the county in the future.


Discussion ensued regarding development trends and effects on local business in the
county.


4. NEW BUSINESS


A. DECISIONS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)
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#9-09 AMENDMENT -- JNASA Holding, LLC, %Jerald Aarvig, 12680
Ashfield Rd., Caledonia, IL  for an Amendment to the Zoning District to
rezone from AG-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Rural Residence District on
property described as follows and owned by the petitioner:


Part of the S1/2 G.L. 2 NW1/4 Fractional Section 7 Byron Township
25N, R11E of the 4th P.M., and part of the SE1/4 of the NE1/4
Section 12 Byron Township 25N, R10E of the 4th P.M., Ogle
County, IL, 18.0 acres, more or less
Property Identification Number: Part of 05-07-100-013, -014, & -016
and part of 04-12-200-012, -013, & -015  
Common Location: 11490 N. Tower Rd.


Mr. Reibel read the staff report.  The LESA score of 199.55 (LE = 75.55; SA = 124)
indicates a medium rating for protection.  The Natural Resources Review by IDNR
contains no record of State-listed threatened or endangered species in the vicinity of the
project location.  The consultation was terminated.


David Aarvig and his father Jerald Aarvig were present.  He explained that he is
requesting the board rezone his property from agricultural to residential to be in
compliance with the Zoning Ordinance.  He explained that he has purchased and
rearranged the property lines to make the parcel rectangular instead of the odd shape it
was when he originally purchased it.  He stated that the property was taken over by two
different banks after a foreclosure; he originally purchased the house and five acres, and
he has recently purchased adjacent land from Byron Bank to square up the property.  He
stated that three of the neighboring properties are residential sites on forty plus acres but
the residents do not farm.  He stated that he does not know if the tillable acreage of his
parcel will remain farmed.


Mr. White asked what happened to the rest of the property that was foreclosed on.  Mr.
Aarvig responded that it was sold off in several parcels some of which was purchased by
adjoining property owners.  He stated that he worked with the banks involved to obtain
the required three hundred feet of road frontage and to square up his parcel.


Mr. Funk asked how many acres were with the original parcel.  Mr. Aarvig responded he
believed there was around eighty one acres.  Mr. Reibel stated that part of the property
was sold to an adjoining owner and a forty acre parcel, which meets zoning
requirements, was sold to someone who intends to build.


Mr. Funk asked Mr. Aarvig if he has purchased all the land that is available.  Mr. Aarvig
responded that there is no additional adjoining land for sale.


Mr. Aarvig explained that Midwest Bank had a note on the five-acre parcel with the
house and Byron Bank had a note on the remaining acreage when the property was
foreclosed on.  Discussion ensued regarding adjoining residential properties.


Mr. Poole asked who is living in the house.  Mr. Aarvig responded that he stopped
moving into the house until this situation is resolved.


Mr. White asked if the bank holds any responsibility to the situation.  A brief discussion
ensued.
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Mr. Funk read the following statement prepared by himself:


“Among other things zoning changes must not contribute to the conversion of 
agriculture to scattered non-farm development which, when unmanaged 


unnecessarily increases the cost to all citizens in Ogle County and premature 
disinvestment in agriculture this can create unforeseen problems in the future.


Our objective must be to prevent scattered haphazard, or premature urbanization 
by guiding growth in a logical and orderly fashion.


It is difficult for me to come to a conclusion that this “change of zoning” meets the 
requirements of the Ogle County Regional Comprehensive Plan.


In addition; at the Byron (City of,) Planning Committee meeting Wednesday 
November 18 2009 the zoning of the parcels included in Ogle County - 


Amendment No. 9-09 AM was rejected by the committee.  A letter in this regard is 
being forwarded to the Ogle County Zoning office for the record.”


Mr. Colson stated that during the Zoning Board of Appeals process there is a standard
which addresses hardship situations.  He explained that without a pre-existing condition
like this he would not approve of a rezoning.  He stated that the house will continue to
exist and will not be torn down so he is somewhat sympathetic with this situation.


Mr. Ocken asked what would happen if the petition is denied.  Mr. Reibel stated that it
will be a non-conforming parcel and would be difficult to sell.


Mr. Colson stated that if the parcel had more road frontage it could be rezoned to IA
Intermediate Agricultural District.


Discussion ensued regarding how this non-conforming parcel was created.  Mr. Conn
stated that the recorders office should have caught this non-compliance and there should
not be any debate regarding the approval of this request.  Mr. Reibel stated that the
recorders office was required to accept the deed and they do not look for zoning
compliance.  More discussion ensued.


Jerald Aarvig explained that they were mislead as to where the property lines were when
the property was originally purchased.


Discussion ensued.


Mr. Funk stated that he agrees this request is complicated but approval would establish a
precedent and he is cautious of situation like that.  Mr. Ocken stated that he assumes
there will not be many situations like this one.  Mr. Reibel stated that there was another
similar situation recently - a rezoning to intermediate agriculture by Dennis Borgman.


Mr. Aarvig explained that he has done business with the bank involved in the foreclosure
in the past and he was approached by them regarding this property.  He decided that the
home fit the needs and would be an upgrade for his family.  He stated that he would
never have thought that a bank could hold a deed to a non-conforming property.  He
explained that he does not know where the ball was dropped in this case but can’t
imagine that there are a lot of cases like this in the county and would hope this could be
resolved by the approval of the rezoning.


Mr. Ocken asked if Mr. Aarvig would be willing to walk away from the property.  Mr.
Aarvig responded that he is tied to it by a signed contract and he prefers to stay at the
house.
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Discussion ensued regarding the previously odd-shaped parcel and tillable acreage.


Mr. Reibel stated that the existing house was built in compliance with the zoning
ordinance.  Discussion ensued.


Mr. Ocken asked how this situation was discovered.  Mr. Reibel responded that a real
estate agent for the Byron Bank approached him with questions regarding selling
surrounding land, and brought this situation to his attention.


Mr. Funk asked what problems may come in the future in regards to approval of this
request.  Mr. Aarvig responded that there will not be any land left in non-compliance.


Mr. Conn made a motion to recommend approval of Petition No. 9-09 Amendment;
seconded by Mr. Ocken.  Mr. Funk called for a roll call vote; Mr. White, no; Mr. Colson,
yes; Mr. Reising, yes; Mr. Ocken, yes; Mr. Poole, yes; Mr. Conn, yes; Mr. Funk, no.  The
motion was approved 5-2


5. OTHER BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There was no “Other Business” for consideration.


6. PUBLIC COMMENT


There was no public comment.


7. Chairman Funk declared the November meeting of the Ogle County Regional
Planning Commission adjourned at 7:34 P.M.


The next meeting of the Ogle County Regional Planning Commission is scheduled for
December 17, 2009, 7:00 P.M. at the Ogle County Farm Bureau, 421 W. Pines Rd.,
Oregon, IL.


Respectfully submitted,


Michael Reibel
Planning & Zoning Administrator

















































































Date Account Num Description Memo Category Cl Amount


BALANCE 10/31/2009 120,803.78


11/4/2... Budget 20... 73606     ... Pat  Abbas Contractural Staff -275.00
Travel -26.95


11/4/2... Budget 20... 73608     ... Grant Bullock Contractural Staff -1,975.00
Travel -61.05
CELL PHONEPAGER -25.00
Office SUPPLIES -39.00


11/4/2... Budget 20... 73610     ... Carol Buonavolanto Contractural Staff -46.75
Travel -12.10


11/4/2... Budget 20... 73607     ... Heather Bonnell Contractural Staff -75.00
Travel -30.25


HINI Travel -22.00
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73611 Carol Erickson October 2009 Travel -344.20
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73612 Diann Frison October 2009 Contractural Staff -37.50
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73613     ... Cynthia Gehrke Contractural Staff -1,033.50


Travel -49.17
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73614     ... Sandy Greenfield Contractural Staff -143.75


Travel -39.60
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73615     ... Wendy Hagen Contractural Staff -166.50


Travel -24.20
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73616     ... Kelly Henert Contractural Staff -137.50


Travel -43.45
HINI Travel -28.05


11/4/2... Budget 20... 73617 Kathy Ingram October 2009 Travel -37.40
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73618 Linda  Jackson October 2009 Travel -179.85
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73619     ... Sandy Janssen Contractural Staff -425.00


HINI Travel -85.25
Travel -169.40


11/4/2... Budget 20... 73620     ... Kathy Johnson Contractural Staff -43.75
Travel -4.62


11/4/2... Budget 20... 73621 Kathy Lee October 2009 Travel -48.95
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73622 Linda Long October 2009 Travel -78.65
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73623 Carol Love October 2009 Contractural Staff -37.50
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73624 Rosemary Modler October 2009 Contractural Staff -264.00
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73625 Edna Nava Oct 16-30, 2009 Interpretor -280.80
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73626 Doreen O'Brien October 2009 CELL PHONEPAGER -25.00
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73627     ... Penny Picken Contractural Staff -55.00


Travel -77.00
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73628 Diana Speck October 2009 Contractural Staff -768.75
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73629     ... Jeanne Suneson Contractural Staff -106.25


Travel -19.25
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73630 Linda Warrner October 2009 Travel -38.50
11/4/2... Budget 20... 73609     ... Sharon Bullock Contractural Staff -112.75


Travel -28.60
11/10/... Budget 20... 73693 A Fires Extinguisher Sales gloves Office SUPPLIES -99.00
11/10/... Budget 20... 73694 AT & T 562-6976 TELECOMMUN -71.72
11/10/... Budget 20... 73696 AT & T 732-7687 TELECOMMUN -147.37
11/10/... Budget 20... 73697 AT & T 562-8743 TELECOMMUN -33.32
11/10/... Budget 20... 73695 AT & T 732-7458 TELECOMMUN -127.63
11/10/... Budget 20... 73699 Culligan bottled water Office SUPPLIES -64.50
11/10/... Budget 20... 73700 DPS October 2009 Rent -3,255.00
11/10/... Budget 20... 73698 City  Of Dixon Water Dep... water tests PROFESSIONAL -69.00
11/10/... Budget 20... 73701 Federal Express mailing water sam... POSTAGE -219.31
11/10/... Budget 20... 73703 Gerry Hough October 2009 Rochelle Maintenance -250.00
11/10/... Budget 20... 73704 LEHP Management Inc Bill Hatfield Contractural Staff -360.00
11/10/... Budget 20... 73705 Nicor 10/096/09-11/03/09 UTILITIES -74.26
11/10/... Budget 20... 73706 Ogle County Car Care Inc oil change 2005 Im... VEH. MAINT. -27.13
11/10/... Budget 20... 73702 Oregon Snyder Pharmacy tobacco Office SUPPLIES -995.17
11/10/... Budget 20... 73707 Oregon Super Valu paper towels, toilet... SUPPLIES -37.15
11/10/... Budget 20... 73709 Stericycle Medical waste MED. CONTRACT -222.00
11/10/... Budget 20... 73710 United States Postmaster postage POSTAGE -1,000.00
11/10/... Budget 20... 73711 Verizon 732-3201 TELECOMMUN -273.33
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Date Account Num Description Memo Category Cl Amount
11/10/... Budget 20... 73712 Verizon 10/28/09-11/28/09 TELECOMMUN -394.66
11/20/... Budget 20... 73862     ... Cardmember Services POSTAGE -79.66


LODGING -241.98
Office SUPPLIES -460.20
PER DIEM -21.19
EQUIPMENT -769.04


11/20/... Budget 20... 73864 Edna Nava Nov 1-15, 2009 Interpretor -237.50
11/20/... Budget 20... 73865 Oregon Super Valu paper towels SUPPLIES -6.99
11/20/... Budget 20... 73866 Quill office supplies Office SUPPLIES -137.54
11/20/... Budget 20... 73869 Rochelle Municipal Utilties 10/09/09-11/09-09 UTILITIES -268.51
11/20/... Budget 20... 73867 Rk Dixon copier COPIER MAINT -253.18
11/20/... Budget 20... 73868 Rochelle Disposal Service October 2009 Rochelle Maintenance -47.40
11/20/... Budget 20... 73870 Rochelle News Leader Breast cancer Ads -25.00
11/20/... Budget 20... 73871 Rowland Printing Immunization cards PRINTING -81.50
11/20/... Budget 20... 73872 Deb Solorzano June-November Travel -26.40
11/20/... Budget 20... 73873 Verizon  Wireless cellphones CELL PHONEPAGER -133.10
11/25/... Budget 20... 73883 Ecowater bottled water Office SUPPLIES -25.91
11/25/... Budget 20... 73884 Federal Express mailing water sam... POSTAGE -26.95
11/25/... Budget 20... 73885 Fischer's office supplies Office SUPPLIES -75.24
11/25/... Budget 20... 73886 LEHP Management Inc Bill Hatfield Contractural Staff -710.00
11/25/... Budget 20... 73887 Oregon Super Valu , bathrrom tissue SUPPLIES -12.98
11/30/... Budget 20... Health Insurance November 2009 BENEFITS -11,367.79
11/30/... Budget 20... FICA November 2009 BENEFITS -3,423.71
11/30/... Budget 20... IMRF November 2009 BENEFITS -4,669.79
11/30/... Budget 20... Payroll November 2009 SALARIES -47,850.31
11/30/... Budget 20... Fee Income November 2009 Fee Income 60,358.91
11/30/... Budget 20... Interest  Income November 2009 Interest 47.73


TOTAL 11/1/2009 - 11/3... -25,787.57


BALANCE 11/30/2009 95,016.21


TOTAL INFLOWS 60,406.64
TOTAL OUTFLOWS -86,194.21


NET TOTAL -25,787.57


Register Report
11/1/2009 Through 11/30/2009


12/10/2009 Page 2


















































General Fund Budget Performance
Ogle County


Fiscal Year To Date: 11/30/2009


Monday, December 07, 2009Pages 1 of 16user: John Coffman


3999 Other Revenue $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0% $8,842.73


3605 HAVA Grant $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,459.75 $27,540.25 8% $36,917.10


3542 County Licenses $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,100.00 $900.00 70% $2,275.00


3530 Liquor License $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,962.50 $5,037.50 80% $23,000.00


3460 Maps & Plat Books $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder 
totals:


$63,000.00 $0.00 $63,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,522.25 $38,477.75 39% $71,034.83


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder


3999 Other Revenue $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $75.00 $0.00 $16,215.87 ($6,215.87) 162% $7,788.46


3900 Interfund Transfer In $1,900,000.00 $0.00 $1,900,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,700,000.00 $200,000.00 89% $1,875,000.00


3380 Restitution $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $20.00 $0.00 $80.00 $1,420.00 5% $2,027.37


3372 Administrative Court Fee $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3330 Cable TV Franchise Fees $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $5,968.24 $0.00 $69,171.59 ($19,171.59) 138% $56,432.40


3160 Inheritance Tax Reimbursement $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $14,592.68 $0.00 $37,170.26 ($22,170.26) 248% $8,387.88


3127 PILOT  Payment $135,000.00 $0.00 $135,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $270,863.00 ($135,863.00) 201% $0.00


3126 Mobile Home Tax $6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 0% $0.00


3125 Property Tax $4,035,500.00 $0.00 $4,035,500.00 $61,512.47 $0.00 $4,017,512.16 $17,987.84 100% $3,885,298.28


3120-20 Sales Tax - 1% Portion $450,000.00 $0.00 $450,000.00 $24,717.72 $0.00 $415,827.55 $34,172.45 92% $426,424.40


3120-10 Sales Tax - $.0025 Portion $875,000.00 $0.00 $875,000.00 $58,221.75 $0.00 $744,134.97 $130,865.03 85% $892,004.99


3120 Sales Tax $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3120-30 Sales Tax - Local Use Tax $325,000.00 $0.00 $325,000.00 $19,820.39 $0.00 $331,791.70 ($6,791.70) 102% $298,967.84


Rollup Account 3120 Sales Tax totals: $1,650,000.00 $0.00 $1,650,000.00 $102,759.86 $0.00 $1,491,754.22 $158,245.78 90% $1,617,397.23


3110 State Income Tax $2,200,000.00 $0.00 $2,200,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,796,529.67 $403,470.33 82% $2,160,455.84


3099 Fund Revenue Budget $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 00 Non-Departmental 
totals:


$10,003,000.00 $0.00 $10,003,000.00 $184,928.25 $0.00 $9,399,296.77 $603,703.23 94% $9,612,787.46


Department: 00 Non-Departmental


Revenue


Fund: 100 General Fund
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General Fund Budget Performance
Ogle County


Fiscal Year To Date: 11/30/2009


Monday, December 07, 2009Pages 2 of 16user: John Coffman


3900 Interfund Transfer In $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0% $15,000.00


Department: 09 Focus House totals: $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0% $15,000.00


Department: 09 Focus House


3900 Interfund Transfer In $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3215 Probation Salary 
Reimbursements


$405,000.00 $0.00 $405,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $404,974.00 $26.00 100% $391,252.00


Department: 08 Probation totals: $405,000.00 $0.00 $405,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $404,974.00 $26.00 100% $391,252.00


Department: 08 Probation


3900 Interfund Transfer In $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0% $25,000.00


3396 County Fee -(Traffic) $134,000.00 $0.00 $134,000.00 $10,486.15 $0.00 $144,207.63 ($10,207.63) 108% $137,256.61


3395 Traffic Fines $410,000.00 $0.00 $410,000.00 $24,077.98 $0.00 $331,337.07 $78,662.93 81% $384,024.17


3390 Criminal Fines $145,000.00 $0.00 $145,000.00 $7,080.04 $0.00 $112,172.04 $32,827.96 77% $139,927.55


3385 Street Value Drugs $7,500.00 $0.00 $7,500.00 $343.63 $0.00 $4,609.30 $2,890.70 61% $7,191.29


3375 Public Defender $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,030.00 ($1,030.00) 203% $530.87


3362 Police Vehicle Fee $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $549.00 $0.00 $4,581.50 $418.50 92% $5,040.00


3357 Bailiff Fee $130,000.00 $0.00 $130,000.00 $9,452.94 $0.00 $117,388.94 $12,611.06 90% $126,706.54


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk totals: $857,500.00 $0.00 $857,500.00 $51,989.74 $0.00 $716,326.48 $141,173.52 84% $825,677.03


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk


3900 Interfund Transfer In $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 100% $10,000.00


3218 Public Defender 
Reimbursement


$30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $27,510.31 $2,489.69 92% $26,866.04


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury totals: $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $37,510.31 $2,489.69 94% $36,866.04


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury


3310 Copies $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $364.00 $0.00 $8,219.50 $1,780.50 82% $9,027.20


Department: 03 Treasurer totals: $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $364.00 $0.00 $8,219.50 $1,780.50 82% $9,027.20


Department: 03 Treasurer
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General Fund Budget Performance
Ogle County


Fiscal Year To Date: 11/30/2009


Monday, December 07, 2009Pages 3 of 16user: John Coffman


3900 Interfund Transfer In $66,500.00 $0.00 $66,500.00 $66,500.00 $0.00 $66,500.00 $0.00 100% $66,500.00


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA


3999 Other Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3900 Interfund Transfer In $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 $59,000.00 $0.00 $59,000.00 $1,000.00 98% $60,000.00


3610 Grants $15,595.00 $0.00 $15,595.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,107.00 $5,488.00 65% $0.00


3608 Sold Property $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56,301.00 ($31,301.00) 225% $28,360.00


3445 Work Release $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $1,273.65 $0.00 $12,976.09 ($2,976.09) 130% $5,310.00


3440 Tower Rent $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $1,250.00 $0.00 $17,291.74 ($2,291.74) 115% $16,384.69


3425 Jail Boarding $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00 $79,436.40 $0.00 $1,001,635.55 ($1,635.55) 100% $851,098.94


3420 Hirebacks $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3415 Fingerprinting $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $51.00 $0.00 $500.50 ($500.50) +++ $733.75


3410 Computer Rent $3,600.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 $0.00 100% $3,600.00


3310 Copies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9.00 ($9.00) +++ $0.00


3233 Inmate Medical Reimbursement $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $420.45 $0.00 $2,663.76 $336.24 89% $2,940.37


3230 Sheriff's Department 
Reimbursements


$100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $87,652.50 $0.00 $103,730.86 ($3,730.86) 104% $100,524.92


Department: 12 Sheriff


3599 Other Licenses & Permits $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 $3,594.67 $0.00 $47,342.54 $12,657.46 79% $39,743.04


3460 Maps & Plat Books $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3310 Copies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 11 Zoning totals: $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 $3,594.67 $0.00 $47,342.54 $12,657.46 79% $39,743.04


Department: 11 Zoning


3460 Maps & Plat Books $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $360.00 ($360.00) +++ $73.60


3310 Copies $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $6.50 $0.00 $3,713.80 $286.20 93% $3,447.05


3220 Assessor's Salary 
Reimbursement


$32,500.00 $0.00 $32,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,458.32 $11,041.68 66% $31,041.70


Department: 10 Assessment totals: $36,500.00 $0.00 $36,500.00 $6.50 $0.00 $25,532.12 $10,967.88 70% $34,562.35


Department: 10 Assessment
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General Fund Budget Performance
Ogle County


Fiscal Year To Date: 11/30/2009


Monday, December 07, 2009Pages 4 of 16user: John Coffman


4100 Salaries- Departmental $291,067.00 $0.00 $291,067.00 $23,272.10 $0.00 $279,265.20 $11,801.80 96% $271,680.96


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder


4900 Interfund Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $333,830.00


4899 Other Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $893.76


Department: 00 Non-Departmental 
totals:


$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $334,723.76


Department: 00 Non-Departmental


Expense


3999 Other Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 ($500.00) +++ $574.70


3310 Copies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3210 Victim Witness Advocate 
Reimbursement


$30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $34,866.00 ($4,866.00) 116% $23,495.61


3205 State's Attorney Salary 
Reimbursement


$150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $132,620.62 $17,379.38 88% $80,838.94


Department: 14 State's Attorney totals: $180,000.00 $0.00 $180,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $167,986.62 $12,013.38 93% $104,909.25


Department: 14 State's Attorney


3999 Other Revenue $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 0% $1,829.41


3599 Other Licenses & Permits $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $170.00 $0.00 $740.00 $260.00 74% $1,010.00


3310 Copies $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $20.00 $0.00 $220.00 $280.00 44% $345.00


Department: 13 Coroner totals: $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $190.00 $0.00 $960.00 $3,040.00 24% $3,184.41


Department: 13 Coroner


3900 Interfund Transfer In $135,541.00 $0.00 $135,541.00 $0.00 $0.00 $105,401.71 $30,139.29 78% $0.00


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency 
Communications totals:


$135,541.00 $0.00 $135,541.00 $0.00 $0.00 $105,401.71 $30,139.29 78% $0.00


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency Communications


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA totals: $66,500.00 $0.00 $66,500.00 $66,500.00 $0.00 $66,500.00 $0.00 100% $66,500.00


Department: 12 Sheriff totals: $1,434,236.00 $0.00 $1,434,236.00 $295,584.00 $0.00 $1,439,717.21 ($5,481.21) 100% $1,135,452.67


Revenue Totals $13,118,236.00 $0.00 $13,118,236.00 $546,657.16 $0.00 $12,272,387.80 $845,848.20 94% $12,279,496.28
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4216 Telephone $70,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 $3,564.15 $0.00 $55,627.07 $14,372.93 79% $90,684.38


4214 Gas (Heating) $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $4,063.98 $0.00 $79,427.79 $20,572.21 79% $85,679.06


4212 Electricity $200,000.00 $0.00 $200,000.00 $14,920.81 $0.00 $206,394.44 ($6,394.44) 103% $192,072.98


4210 Disposal Service $9,360.00 $0.00 $9,360.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,724.47 ($1,364.47) 115% $9,360.00


4140 Holiday Pay $1,591.00 $0.00 $1,591.00 $98.45 $0.00 $196.90 $1,394.10 12% $1,266.18


4130 Overtime $2,400.00 $0.00 $2,400.00 $1,368.81 $0.00 $10,866.41 ($8,466.41) 453% $3,298.61


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $5,654.00 $0.00 $5,654.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,654.00 0% $4,892.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $354,523.00 $0.00 $354,523.00 $31,239.88 $0.00 $368,639.49 ($14,116.49) 104% $352,827.42


Department: 02 Building & Grounds


4742 Election Equipment $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 0% $48,812.08


4714 Software Maintenance $17,000.00 $0.00 $17,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,414.74 $585.26 97% $12,728.14


4528 Voter Registration Supplies $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,097.91 $13,902.09 30% $9,858.85


4525 Election Supplies $42,086.00 $0.00 $42,086.00 $520.06 $0.00 $36,284.73 $5,801.27 86% $65,870.53


4412 Official Publications $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,185.50 $2,814.50 65% $12,024.05


4100 Salaries- Departmental $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,609.75 $11,390.25 72% $59,569.10


Sub-Department: 10 Elections totals: $157,086.00 $0.00 $157,086.00 $520.06 $0.00 $92,592.63 $64,493.37 59% $208,862.75


Sub-Department: 10 Elections


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,467.64 $32.36 98% $1,496.20


4720 Office Equipment $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,470.10 $29.90 98% $225.00


4714 Software Maintenance $17,500.00 $0.00 $17,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,818.00 $3,682.00 79% $16,880.50


4510 Office Supplies $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $420.13 $0.00 $7,269.33 $4,730.67 61% $10,318.92


4460 Registrar Births & Deaths $600.00 $0.00 $600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $347.00 $253.00 58% $351.00


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $197.00 $0.00 $3,364.51 $635.49 84% $3,056.53


4410 Microfilming & Indexing $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,062.10 $937.90 53% $445.25


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $8,500.00 $0.00 $8,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,162.59 $3,337.41 61% $6,963.60


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder 
totals:


$495,753.00 $0.00 $495,753.00 $24,409.29 $0.00 $405,819.10 $89,933.90 82% $520,280.71
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4100 Salaries- Departmental $118,000.00 $0.00 $118,000.00 $8,383.32 $0.00 $100,775.88 $17,224.12 85% $95,100.00


Department: 03 Treasurer


4890 Grant Expense $15,595.00 $0.00 $15,595.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,584.31 $4,010.69 74% $0.00


4770-30 Capital Improvements - - 
Weld Park


$9,600.00 $0.00 $9,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,600.00 0% $0.00


4755 Vehicle Purchase $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4740 Postage Meter & Rental $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4730 Equipment - New & Used $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0% $3,577.67


4720 Office Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4715 Computer Maintenance $25,700.00 $0.00 $25,700.00 $93.82 $0.00 $22,101.69 $3,598.31 86% $1,756.82


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $1,115.00 $0.00 $1,115.00 $0.00 $0.00 $165.00 $950.00 15% $0.00


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $6,095.00 $0.00 $6,095.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,984.00 $3,111.00 49% $1,109.39


4570 Uniforms $2,700.00 $0.00 $2,700.00 $134.05 $0.00 $2,659.05 $40.95 98% $0.00


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$11,120.00 $0.00 $11,120.00 $533.60 $0.00 $4,865.86 $6,254.14 44% $10,835.23


4540-10 Repairs & Maint - Facilities $85,000.00 $0.00 $85,000.00 $6,232.01 $0.00 $118,158.11 ($33,158.11) 139% $85,082.09


4540-30 Repairs & Maint - Facilities - 
Weld Park


$6,500.00 $0.00 $6,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,701.02 ($201.02) 103% $7,660.61


Rollup Account 4540 Repairs & Maint  
totals:


$91,500.00 $0.00 $91,500.00 $6,232.01 $0.00 $124,859.13 ($33,359.13) 136% $92,742.70


4520 Janitorial Supplies $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $1,377.43 $0.00 $23,036.02 ($3,036.02) 115% $18,719.58


4512 Copy Paper $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4490 Contingencies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4420 Training Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4220 Rent $3,600.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 $0.00 100% $4,000.00


4218 Water $31,968.00 $0.00 $31,968.00 $693.70 $0.00 $17,393.97 $14,574.03 54% $34,042.68


4216-30 Telephone - Cell Phones & 
Pagers


$29,474.00 $0.00 $29,474.00 $29.98 $0.00 $29,772.10 ($298.10) 101% $26,447.63


Rollup Account 4216 Telephone totals: $99,474.00 $0.00 $99,474.00 $3,594.13 $0.00 $85,399.17 $14,074.83 86% $117,132.01


Department: 02 Building & Grounds 
totals:


$1,001,995.00 $0.00 $1,001,995.00 $64,350.67 $0.00 $974,897.70 $27,097.30 97% $933,312.33
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4106 Salaries- Public Defenders $149,880.00 $0.00 $149,880.00 $10,326.68 $0.00 $145,962.28 $3,917.72 97% $145,514.88


4100 Salaries- Departmental $36,136.00 $0.00 $36,136.00 $3,011.34 $0.00 $36,136.08 ($0.08) 100% $35,082.96


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 100% $0.00


4510 Office Supplies $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,498.98 $1.02 100% $1,229.90


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$4,800.00 $0.00 $4,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,844.28 ($44.28) 101% $5,430.42


4314 Contractual Services $5,118.00 $0.00 $5,118.00 $499.88 $0.00 $5,074.74 $43.26 99% $4,118.68


4220 Rent $16,500.00 $0.00 $16,500.00 $4,125.00 $0.00 $16,500.00 $0.00 100% $14,910.00


4216 Telephone $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $125.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 100% $1,500.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $27,319.00 $0.00 $27,319.00 $2,276.58 $0.00 $27,318.96 $0.04 100% $26,523.12


Sub-Department: 20 Regional Supt of 
Schools totals:


$57,237.00 $0.00 $57,237.00 $7,026.46 $0.00 $57,236.96 $0.04 100% $53,712.12


Sub-Department: 20 Regional Supt of Schools


4250-40 Agency Allotments - Soil & 
Water Conservation


$25,717.00 $0.00 $25,717.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,717.00 $0.00 100% $25,717.00


4250-20 Agency Allotments - Board 
of Health


$199,000.00 $0.00 $199,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $179,000.00 $20,000.00 90% $189,000.00


Rollup Account 4250 Agency 
Allotments  totals:


$224,717.00 $0.00 $224,717.00 $0.00 $0.00 $204,717.00 $20,000.00 91% $214,717.00


Department: 04 HEW totals: $281,954.00 $0.00 $281,954.00 $7,026.46 $0.00 $261,953.96 $20,000.04 93% $268,429.12


Department: 04 HEW


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $750.00 $0.00 $750.00 $91.08 $0.00 $529.43 $220.57 71% $505.30


4720 Office Equipment $100.00 $0.00 $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0% $0.00


4714 Software Maintenance $12,250.00 $0.00 $12,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,250.00 $0.00 100% $12,249.50


4510 Office Supplies $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $1,511.26 $0.00 $21,813.23 $3,186.77 87% $20,048.02


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $830.94 $0.00 $3,086.35 $413.65 88% $1,417.28


4412 Official Publications $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $1,180.90 $0.00 $1,643.20 $356.80 82% $1,329.85


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $3,063.32 $0.00 $36,859.34 ($11,859.34) 147% $33,827.65


Department: 03 Treasurer totals: $186,600.00 $0.00 $186,600.00 $15,060.82 $0.00 $176,957.43 $9,642.57 95% $164,477.60
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4100 Salaries- Departmental $671,808.00 $0.00 $671,808.00 $52,402.00 $0.00 $670,521.38 $1,286.62 100% $595,636.19


Department: 08 Probation


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $245.87 $2,754.13 8% $4,969.30


4720 Office Equipment $800.00 $0.00 $800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $800.00 0% $531.40


4516 Postage $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $3,096.79 $0.00 $15,596.79 ($596.79) 104% $15,000.00


4510 Office Supplies $20,500.00 $0.00 $20,500.00 $545.54 $0.00 $11,000.92 $9,499.08 54% $18,848.97


4509 Jury Supplies $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,584.20 $1,415.80 86% $9,600.36


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$6,600.00 $0.00 $6,600.00 $419.00 $0.00 $5,335.47 $1,264.53 81% $4,210.63


4412 Official Publications $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $180.90 $0.00 $1,460.55 $39.45 97% $616.65


4312 Auditing $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $26,000.00 $0.00 $26,000.00 $1,130.50 $0.00 $16,709.84 $9,290.16 64% $25,388.61


4100 Salaries- Departmental $504,000.00 $0.00 $504,000.00 $43,226.24 $0.00 $528,466.36 ($24,466.36) 105% $486,184.08


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk totals: $587,400.00 $0.00 $587,400.00 $48,598.97 $0.00 $587,400.00 $0.00 100% $565,350.00


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $214.22 $0.00 $2,962.99 $1,037.01 74% $3,224.02


4720 Office Equipment $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $1,155.43 $0.00 $3,926.43 $1,073.57 79% $3,982.78


4535 Law Library Materials $13,000.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $1,433.25 $0.00 $14,923.56 ($1,923.56) 115% $17,782.90


4510 Office Supplies $7,000.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 $3,692.49 $0.00 $5,977.52 $1,022.48 85% $5,888.82


4465 Jurors - Circuit Court $36,581.00 $0.00 $36,581.00 $739.00 $0.00 $12,730.03 $23,850.97 35% $12,073.16


4442 Psychiatric Services $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,625.00 $4,375.00 45% $8,434.00


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,917.44 $3,082.56 49% $6,435.49


4345 Interpreter $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $1,379.50 $0.00 $13,279.80 ($9,279.80) 332% $10,536.83


4335 Expert Witnesses $6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,982.19 $0.00 $8,665.08 ($2,665.08) 144% $4,585.00


4324 Appointed Attorneys $35,000.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 $7,944.55 $0.00 $49,689.65 ($14,689.65) 142% $47,120.55


4274 CASA $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 100% $0.00


4112 Judges Reimbursement $2,320.00 $0.00 $2,320.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,331.24 ($11.24) 100% $2,321.06


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury totals: $317,917.00 $0.00 $317,917.00 $36,878.65 $0.00 $308,127.10 $9,789.90 97% $302,982.45
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4530 Mapping $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $4,486.15 $0.00 $10,156.15 $4,843.85 68% $22,930.00


4510 Office Supplies $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $1,015.30 $0.00 $6,069.83 $5,930.17 51% $9,554.99


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $49.50 $0.00 $275.28 $1,724.72 14% $1,456.47


4420 Training Expenses $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $888.88 $1,111.12 44% $1,421.67


4412 Official Publications $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $1,930.98 $0.00 $2,038.98 $7,961.02 20% $9,978.81


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $188,000.00 $0.00 $188,000.00 $15,625.00 $0.00 $187,500.00 $500.00 100% $176,982.48


Department: 10 Assessment


4555 Animal Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4510 Office Supplies $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $1,494.65 $0.00 $4,152.68 $847.32 83% $4,998.56


4444 Medical Expense $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $942.40 $0.00 $1,560.03 $439.97 78% $1,995.46


4440 Personal Care & Hygiene $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $117.17 $0.00 $766.34 $233.66 77% $935.04


4435 Transportation of Detainees $13,000.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $398.63 $0.00 $11,324.64 $1,675.36 87% $12,984.54


4216 Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4140 Holiday Pay $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $140,000.00 $0.00 $140,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $139,803.73 $196.27 100% $129,966.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $760,026.00 $0.00 $760,026.00 $37,277.60 $0.00 $760,024.41 $1.59 100% $761,972.03


Department: 09 Focus House totals: $921,026.00 $0.00 $921,026.00 $40,230.45 $0.00 $917,631.83 $3,394.17 100% $912,851.63


Department: 09 Focus House


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4720 Office Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4510 Office Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4438 Juvenile Detention Fees $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $41,313.86 ($26,313.86) 275% $37,370.00


4250-70 Agency Allotments - Youth 
Service Bureau


$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4216 Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 100% $12,985.95


Department: 08 Probation totals: $698,808.00 $0.00 $698,808.00 $52,402.00 $0.00 $723,835.24 ($25,027.24) 104% $645,992.14
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4140 Holiday Pay $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $22,606.23 $0.00 $98,370.26 $1,629.74 98% $128,218.79


4130 Overtime $134,215.00 $0.00 $134,215.00 $4,005.17 $0.00 $121,399.84 $12,815.16 90% $250,016.82


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $20,826.00 $0.00 $20,826.00 $1,602.00 $0.00 $20,585.70 $240.30 99% $22,041.74


4111 Salaries- Merit Commission $8,870.00 $0.00 $8,870.00 $2,325.70 $0.00 $4,552.32 $4,317.68 51% $5,895.39


4108 Salaries- Bailiffs $202,601.00 $0.00 $202,601.00 $17,573.26 $0.00 $218,827.79 ($16,226.79) 108% $211,364.33


4100 Salaries- Departmental $2,013,130.00 $0.00 $2,013,130.00 $166,576.44 $0.00 $2,029,609.98 ($16,479.98) 101% $2,236,056.46


Department: 12 Sheriff


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $568.39 $431.61 57% $341.17


4720 Office Equipment $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $919.12 $80.88 92% $541.27


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $4,600.00 $0.00 $4,600.00 $74.00 $0.00 $767.37 $3,832.63 17% $1,794.76


4510 Office Supplies $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $294.26 $0.00 $4,750.13 $3,249.87 59% $6,232.70


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $404.25 $0.00 $4,888.51 $3,111.49 61% $5,219.71


4412 Official Publications $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,625.57 $1,874.43 58% $2,748.48


4146 Regional Planning Commission $3,300.00 $0.00 $3,300.00 $320.00 $0.00 $2,764.70 $535.30 84% $2,520.00


4145 Board of Appeals $7,500.00 $0.00 $7,500.00 $320.00 $0.00 $4,866.40 $2,633.60 65% $5,154.40


4100 Salaries- Departmental $139,828.00 $0.00 $139,828.00 $10,834.83 $0.00 $130,496.91 $9,331.09 93% $136,317.95


Department: 11 Zoning totals: $177,728.00 $0.00 $177,728.00 $12,247.34 $0.00 $152,647.10 $25,080.90 86% $160,870.44


Department: 11 Zoning


4510 Office Supplies $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $453.66 $0.00 $2,216.07 $783.93 74% $2,357.93


4412 Official Publications $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,029.70 $470.30 69% $1,367.75


4100 Salaries- Departmental $14,000.00 $0.00 $14,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,611.00 $389.00 97% $11,804.52


Sub-Department: 40 Board of Review 
totals:


$18,500.00 $0.00 $18,500.00 $453.66 $0.00 $16,856.77 $1,643.23 91% $15,530.20


Sub-Department: 40 Board of Review


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $349.50 $650.50 35% $399.45


4720 Office Equipment $5,500.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $425.00 $0.00 $5,100.00 $400.00 93% $5,100.00


4714 Software Maintenance $12,250.00 $0.00 $12,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,250.00 $0.00 100% $12,250.00


Department: 10 Assessment totals: $266,250.00 $0.00 $266,250.00 $23,985.59 $0.00 $241,485.39 $24,764.61 91% $255,604.07
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4585 Vehicle Maintenance $1,638.00 $0.00 $1,638.00 $248.45 $0.00 $291.07 $1,346.93 18% $3,073.39


4570 Uniforms $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $827.86 $372.14 69% $750.00


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$3,193.00 $0.00 $3,193.00 $37.95 $0.00 $3,086.18 $106.82 97% $4,908.13


4510 Office Supplies $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $509.19 $490.81 51% $599.15


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $818.11 $681.89 55% $814.09


4216-30 Telephone - Cell Phones & 
Pagers


$3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $983.49 $0.00 $3,112.92 $387.08 89% $4,228.10


4216 Telephone $14,000.00 $0.00 $14,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,043.85 $1,956.15 86% $10,454.04


Rollup Account 4216 Telephone totals: $17,500.00 $0.00 $17,500.00 $983.49 $0.00 $15,156.77 $2,343.23 87% $14,682.14


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $3,855.00 $0.00 $3,855.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,659.05 $2,195.95 43% $1,888.13


4100 Salaries- Departmental $58,364.00 $0.00 $58,364.00 $4,840.16 $0.00 $58,081.92 $282.08 100% $56,389.92


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA


4755 Vehicle Purchase $200,068.00 $0.00 $200,068.00 $0.00 $0.00 $185,737.14 $14,330.86 93% $245,606.65


4737 Maintainence of Radios $24,185.00 $0.00 $24,185.00 $740.00 $0.00 $1,220.00 $22,965.00 5% $85,922.49


4730-30 Equipment - New & Used - - 
Radio Equipment


$82,167.00 $0.00 $82,167.00 $0.00 $0.00 $62,280.20 $19,886.80 76% $105,475.50


4726 Furniture $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0% $1,015.78


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $487.04 $0.00 $6,178.66 $1,821.34 77% $8,208.74


4720 Office Equipment $26,485.00 $0.00 $26,485.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,320.33 $19,164.67 28% $7,135.52


4715 Computer Maintenance $21,500.00 $0.00 $21,500.00 $195.77 $0.00 $32,488.83 ($10,988.83) 151% $9,960.64


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $15,552.00 $0.00 $15,552.00 $4,125.73 $0.00 $24,003.16 ($8,451.16) 154% $21,522.26


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $116,320.00 $0.00 $116,320.00 $3,771.95 $0.00 $102,035.46 $14,284.54 88% $116,796.19


4575 Weapons & Ammunition $35,003.00 $0.00 $35,003.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,026.55 $9,976.45 71% $13,516.43


4570 Uniforms $43,915.00 $0.00 $43,915.00 $7,062.07 $0.00 $29,056.90 $14,858.10 66% $51,876.53


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$164,986.00 $0.00 $164,986.00 $38,432.32 $0.00 $154,214.86 $10,771.14 93% $145,954.99


4510 Office Supplies $32,625.00 $0.00 $32,625.00 $855.54 $0.00 $25,461.45 $7,163.55 78% $40,359.43


4424 Out-of-State Travel $2,763.00 $0.00 $2,763.00 $243.64 $0.00 $3,199.20 ($436.20) 116% $1,516.58


4420 Training Expenses $67,424.00 $0.00 $67,424.00 $5,285.50 $0.00 $42,882.20 $24,541.80 64% $41,717.35
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4420 Training Expenses $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,473.76 $1,026.24 59% $1,204.00


4355 Autopsy Fees $22,800.00 $0.00 $22,800.00 $3,500.00 $0.00 $29,666.60 ($6,866.60) 130% $26,194.01


4216 Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $37,014.00 $0.00 $37,014.00 $2,884.54 $0.00 $38,072.21 ($1,058.21) 103% $35,925.52


4100 Salaries- Departmental $78,239.00 $0.00 $78,239.00 $6,519.86 $0.00 $79,081.39 ($842.39) 101% $72,416.88


Department: 13 Coroner


4737 Maintainence of Radios $72,556.00 $0.00 $72,556.00 $21,275.40 $0.00 $59,957.76 $12,598.24 83% $0.00


4726 Furniture $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $509.29 ($509.29) +++ $0.00


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $800.00 20% $0.00


4715 Computer Maintenance $9,588.00 $0.00 $9,588.00 $991.14 $0.00 $27,013.11 ($17,425.11) 282% $0.00


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $43,136.00 $0.00 $43,136.00 $8,682.00 $0.00 $26,244.28 $16,891.72 61% $0.00


4570 Uniforms $2,880.00 $0.00 $2,880.00 $0.00 $0.00 $285.71 $2,594.29 10% $0.00


4500 Supplies $2,475.00 $0.00 $2,475.00 $1,702.94 $0.00 $4,402.87 ($1,927.87) 178% $0.00


4424 Out-of-State Travel $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4420 Training Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $68.75 $0.00 $860.11 ($860.11) +++ $0.00


4140 Holiday Pay $29,000.00 $0.00 $29,000.00 $6,080.44 $0.00 $27,717.95 $1,282.05 96% $0.00


4130 Overtime $36,000.00 $0.00 $36,000.00 $5,953.92 $0.00 $47,912.57 ($11,912.57) 133% $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $530,035.00 $0.00 $530,035.00 $42,758.64 $0.00 $522,538.08 $7,496.92 99% $0.00


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency 
Communications totals:


$726,670.00 $0.00 $726,670.00 $87,513.23 $0.00 $717,641.73 $9,028.27 99% $0.00


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency Communications


4755 Vehicle Purchase $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 100% $8,000.00


4737 Maintainence of Radios $1,514.00 $0.00 $1,514.00 $54.00 $0.00 $2,222.16 ($708.16) 147% $2,035.46


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $2,750.00 $0.00 $2,750.00 $172.86 $0.00 $2,109.72 $640.28 77% $2,195.15


4720 Office Equipment $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $49.87 $950.13 5% $652.30


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $7,765.00 $0.00 $7,765.00 $198.00 $0.00 $5,873.25 $1,891.75 76% $0.00


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA totals: $109,279.00 $0.00 $109,279.00 $6,534.91 $0.00 $98,685.15 $10,593.85 90% $95,987.86


Department: 12 Sheriff totals: $4,157,084.00 $0.00 $4,157,084.00 $369,936.50 $0.00 $4,010,777.71 $146,306.29 96% $3,846,166.47
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4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,192.01 $2,807.99 30% $3,721.65


4720 Office Equipment $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $158.49 $3,841.51 4% $2,820.98


4538 Legal Materials & Books $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $979.42 $0.00 $13,858.45 ($1,858.45) 115% $12,100.83


4510 Office Supplies $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $276.90 $0.00 $8,629.30 $6,370.70 58% $12,703.44


4450 Investigation Expense $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $569.95 $430.05 57% $643.71


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $558.18 $0.00 $10,398.12 $1,601.88 87% $10,796.47


4415-10 Printing - Appeals & 
Transcripts


$6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $290.00 $0.00 $8,201.71 ($2,201.71) 137% $5,003.70


4340 IL Appellate Prosecutor $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 100% $15,000.00


4335 Expert Witnesses $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $957.71 $0.00 $957.71 $4,042.29 19% $0.00


4274 CASA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 ($5,000.00) +++ $0.00


4216-30 Telephone - Cell Phones & 
Pagers


$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $800.00 $0.00 $4,520.50 $5,479.50 45% $4,030.00


4107 Salaries-Victim Witness 
Advocate


$33,259.00 $0.00 $33,259.00 $2,536.84 $0.00 $30,442.08 $2,816.92 92% $32,982.26


4100 Salaries- Departmental $577,443.00 $0.00 $577,443.00 $45,846.02 $0.00 $560,178.90 $17,264.10 97% $514,506.14


Department: 14 State's Attorney totals: $694,702.00 $0.00 $694,702.00 $52,245.07 $0.00 $659,107.22 $35,594.78 95% $614,309.18


Department: 14 State's Attorney


4755 Vehicle Purchase $4,782.00 $0.00 $4,782.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,781.07 $0.93 100% $4,782.00


4720 Office Equipment $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,090.90 $109.10 91% $914.00


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $112.54 $0.00 $2,950.72 ($450.72) 118% $2,287.64


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $215.92 $0.00 $2,098.89 $1,401.11 60% $3,977.02


4510 Office Supplies $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $93.95 $0.00 $3,902.14 $597.86 87% $4,535.95


4458 Coroner Lab Fees $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $540.00 $0.00 $8,104.90 $1,895.10 81% $8,449.21


4455 Coroner Jurors $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,712.60 $2,287.40 54% $3,837.80


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,425.00 $575.00 71% $1,831.13


Department: 13 Coroner totals: $174,035.00 $0.00 $174,035.00 $13,866.81 $0.00 $175,360.18 ($1,325.18) 101% $166,355.16
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4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $477.43 $0.00 $1,551.86 $448.14 78% $2,711.88


4100 Salaries- Departmental $65,200.00 $0.00 $65,200.00 $6,666.66 $0.00 $69,131.29 ($3,931.29) 106% $76,482.31


Sub-Department: 30 County Administrator


4770-20 Capital Improvements - - 
Ogle County Fair Assn


$5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 100% $5,000.00


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $1,657.53


4510 Office Supplies $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $353.55 $0.00 $3,080.72 ($1,580.72) 205% $2,320.42


4490 Contingencies $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $9,368.96 $0.00 $52,865.64 $47,134.36 53% $58,752.77


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$15,500.00 $0.00 $15,500.00 $2,169.91 $0.00 $15,321.05 $178.95 99% $21,305.41


4415-20 Printing - County Ordinances $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,360.00 ($860.00) 272% $180.00


4412 Official Publications $300.00 $0.00 $300.00 $26.80 $0.00 $368.13 ($68.13) 123% $300.60


4312 Auditing $57,950.00 $0.00 $57,950.00 $0.00 $0.00 $57,925.00 $25.00 100% $55,980.00


4250-30 Agency Allotments - 
Economic Development Dist. Dues


$11,679.00 $0.00 $11,679.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,678.64 $0.36 100% $11,678.64


4250-60 Agency Allotments - NW IL 
Criminal Justice


$2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,990.00 ($490.00) 120% $0.00


Rollup Account 4250 Agency 
Allotments  totals:


$14,179.00 $0.00 $14,179.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,668.64 ($489.64) 103% $11,678.64


4148 Administrative Hearing Officer $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0% $0.00


4144 Pay Grade Study $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 0% $11,904.23


4142 IT/ Network Administration $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.25


4100 Salaries- Departmental $70,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 $6,050.00 $0.00 $69,150.00 $850.00 99% $72,750.00


Department: 16 Finance


4159 Workman's Compensation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4157 Unemployment Compensation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4155 Health Insurance $1,406,300.00 $0.00 $1,406,300.00 $119,414.01 $0.00 $1,429,164.77 ($22,864.77) 102% $1,231,902.75


4150 Blanket Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 15 Insurance totals: $1,406,300.00 $0.00 $1,406,300.00 $119,414.01 $0.00 $1,429,164.77 ($22,864.77) 102% $1,231,902.75


Department: 15 Insurance
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4570 Uniforms $12,218.00 $0.00 $12,218.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,444.96 $3,773.04 69% $9,479.83


4550 Food for County Prisoners $172,699.00 $0.00 $172,699.00 $14,616.74 $0.00 $160,643.51 $12,055.49 93% $169,295.27


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$2,479.00 $0.00 $2,479.00 $116.55 $0.00 $1,759.41 $719.59 71% $2,384.61


4510 Office Supplies $32,646.00 $0.00 $32,646.00 $4,409.80 $0.00 $38,461.63 ($5,815.63) 118% $33,440.40


4446 Prisoner Mental Health $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 100% $15,000.00


4444 Medical Expense $78,155.00 $0.00 $78,155.00 $6,378.79 $0.00 $90,948.15 ($12,793.15) 116% $72,602.44


4424 Out-of-State Travel $7,985.00 $0.00 $7,985.00 $3,452.46 $0.00 $10,185.56 ($2,200.56) 128% $7,074.96


4420 Training Expenses $5,702.00 $0.00 $5,702.00 $446.30 $0.00 $9,979.90 ($4,277.90) 175% $5,964.45


4140 Holiday Pay $36,794.00 $0.00 $36,794.00 $11,095.95 $0.00 $42,604.52 ($5,810.52) 116% $50,498.59


4130 Overtime $102,483.00 $0.00 $102,483.00 $9,936.73 $0.00 $120,460.65 ($17,977.65) 118% $137,414.54


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $32,782.00 $0.00 $32,782.00 $1,750.82 $0.00 $23,862.59 $8,919.41 73% $27,425.57


4100 Salaries- Departmental $1,077,244.00 $0.00 $1,077,244.00 $98,362.27 $0.00 $1,077,064.21 $179.79 100% $1,000,213.24


Department: 22 Corrections


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $25,225.00 $0.00 $25,225.00 $47.98 $0.00 $24,811.12 $413.88 98% $16,923.23


4162 IMRF $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4160 FICA/ Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4155 Health Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4142 IT/ Network Administration $45,000.00 $0.00 $45,000.00 $2,555.00 $0.00 $37,233.00 $7,767.00 83% $50,604.26


4100 Salaries- Departmental $22,900.00 $0.00 $22,900.00 $1,768.16 $0.00 $21,217.92 $1,682.08 93% $20,599.92


Sub-Department: 35 Information 
Technology totals:


$93,125.00 $0.00 $93,125.00 $4,371.14 $0.00 $83,262.04 $9,862.96 89% $88,127.41


Sub-Department: 35 Information Technology


4740 Postage Meter & Rental $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,943.98 $1,056.02 74% $2,939.15


4512 Copy Paper $9,000.00 $0.00 $9,000.00 $1,199.60 $0.00 $10,275.92 ($1,275.92) 114% $7,491.37


4510 Office Supplies $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $82.31 $0.00 $785.79 ($285.79) 157% $540.29


4490 Contingencies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $140.00


Sub-Department: 30 County 
Administrator totals:


$80,700.00 $0.00 $80,700.00 $8,426.00 $0.00 $84,688.84 ($3,988.84) 105% $90,305.00


Department: 16 Finance totals: $448,254.00 $0.00 $448,254.00 $30,766.36 $0.00 $387,690.06 $60,563.94 86% $420,262.26
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4737 Maintainence of Radios $450.00 $0.00 $450.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $450.00 0% $0.00


4730-30 Equipment - New & Used - - 
Radio Equipment


$1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,050.95 $149.05 88% $4,800.60


4726 Furniture $700.00 $0.00 $700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $700.00 0% $0.00


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $2,750.00 $0.00 $2,750.00 $267.60 $0.00 $3,604.03 ($854.03) 131% $3,745.03


4720 Office Equipment $12,305.00 $0.00 $12,305.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,305.00 0% $0.00


4715 Computer Maintenance $23,742.00 $0.00 $23,742.00 $1,015.00 $0.00 $20,437.46 $3,304.54 86% $8,959.00


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $3,420.00 $0.00 $3,420.00 $659.29 $0.00 $1,077.29 $2,342.71 31% $0.00


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $3,730.00 $0.00 $3,730.00 $0.00 $0.00 $622.27 $3,107.73 17% $4,046.39


4575 Weapons & Ammunition $2,829.00 $0.00 $2,829.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,453.79 $375.21 87% $461.20


Department: 22 Corrections totals: $1,627,313.00 $0.00 $1,627,313.00 $152,508.30 $0.00 $1,628,660.88 ($1,347.88) 100% $1,552,806.12


Expenditure Totals: $13,443,119.00 $0.00 $13,443,119.00 $1,063,927.29 $0.00 $13,041,515.67 $401,603.33 97% $12,896,676.19


Revenue Totals: $13,118,236.00 $0.00 $13,118,236.00 $546,657.16 $0.00 $12,272,387.80 $845,848.20 94% $12,279,496.28


Fund Totals: General Fund ($324,883.00) $0.00 ($324,883.00) ($517,270.13) $0.00 ($769,127.87) $444,244.87 ($617,179.91)


Expenditure Grand Totals: $13,443,119.00 $0.00 $13,443,119.00 $1,063,927.29 $0.00 $13,041,515.67 $401,603.33 97% $12,896,676.19


Revenue Grand Totals: $13,118,236.00 $0.00 $13,118,236.00 $546,657.16 $0.00 $12,272,387.80 $845,848.20 94% $12,279,496.28


Grand Totals: ($324,883.00) $0.00 ($324,883.00) ($517,270.13) $0.00 ($769,127.87) $444,244.87 ($617,179.91)
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1000.002 Cash - AB - Solid Waste 288,617.56 1,525.76 43,683.94 246,459.38
1000.004 Cash - AB - County Highway 754,827.80 22,303.98 100,023.09 677,108.69
1000.006 Cash - AB - Treasurer 100,367.82 27,755.62 27,735.00 100,388.44
1000.010 Cash - BB - Insurance Reserve 78,412.61 38.58 3,815.40 74,635.79
1000.011 Cash - BB - Bond Fund 60,130.44 1,087,023.08 1,142,000.00 5,153.52
1000.012 Cash - BB - Probation Service Fee 60,110.76 6,572.90 7,682.83 59,000.83
1000.014 Cash - BB - County Bridge 679,299.30 391,239.81 349,716.06 720,823.05
1000.016 Cash - - BB - Document Storage 116,530.93 6,136.18 2,474.91 120,192.20
1000.018 Cash - BB - Long Range Planning 2,162,011.38 862,130.09 1,982,961.77 1,041,179.70
1000.020 Cash - FSB - TB Checking 22,752.10 778.69 3,010.40 20,520.39
1000.022 Cash - FSB - TB Money Market 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1000.024 Cash - FSB - 911 596,195.79 591,853.72 34,986.91 1,153,062.60
1000.030 Cash - HSB - Federal Aid Matching 244,381.81 182,834.96 101,150.59 326,066.18
1000.032 Cash - HSB - War Veterans Assistance 79,128.15 1,142.48 10,652.98 69,617.65
1000.034 Cash - HSB - Solid Waste 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1000.040 Cash - NBR - Treasurer 4,044,772.02 832,804.10 1,909,638.78 2,967,937.34
1000.042 Cash - NBR - Township MFT 547,310.84 80,575.14 0.00 627,885.98
1000.044 Cash - NBR - Engineering 23,314.87 6.74 0.00 23,321.61
1000.046 Cash - NBR - Vital Records 80,497.73 1,210.55 487.45 81,220.83
1000.048 Cash - NBR - GIS Fee Fund 134,137.89 12,366.91 0.00 146,504.80
1000.050 Cash - NBR - Marriage Fund 3,389.93 61.10 0.00 3,451.03
1000.055 Cash - Polo - Dependent Children's 41,926.99 168,107.16 78,717.05 131,317.10
1000.060 Cash - RRB - Animal Control 154,785.76 16,010.41 14,528.00 156,268.17
1000.062 Cash - RRB - Public Health 120,143.78 60,421.49 86,400.02 94,165.25
1000.064 Cash - RRB - Payroll Clearing (100.00) 1,235,457.43 1,235,407.43 (50.00)
1000.066 Cash - RRB - County MFT 233,917.00 58,033.75 147,033.47 144,917.28
1000.068 Cash - RRB - GIS Committee Fund 40,349.23 50,107.74 8,570.78 81,886.19
1000.070 Cash - RRB - County Orders 0.00 1,091,644.28 1,091,644.29 (0.01)
1000.072 Cash - RRB - A/P Clearing 0.00 2,286,701.13 2,286,701.13 0.00
1000.074 Cash - - RRB - County Indemnity 37,004.20 0.00 0.00 37,004.20
1000.076 Cash - RRB - Social Security 402,108.38 11,709.53 60,830.40 352,987.51
1000.078 Cash - RRB - Treasurer 116,186.12 15,894.97 10,000.00 122,081.09
1000.080 Cash - SV - Mental Health 497,388.72 11,841.84 50,295.05 458,935.51
1000.082 Cash - SV - Township Bridge 19,747.54 5.20 0.00 19,752.74
1000.084 Cash - SV - IMRF 920,752.61 188,881.31 271,409.85 838,224.07
1000.086 Cash - SV - County Automation 123,917.78 6,365.52 0.00 130,283.30
1000.088 Cash - SV - Recorder's Resolution 86,870.67 3,734.32 2,672.74 87,932.25
1000.090 Cash SV - Health Claims 0.00 97,391.95 97,391.95 0.00
1000.091 Cash - SV - Flex Spending 5,385.43 2,447.47 2,799.70 5,033.20
1000.099 Cash - Treasurer's Cash 1,909.63 0.00 0.00 1,909.63
1002.002 Investments - RRB Insurance Reserve 344,876.70 1,277.11 0.00 346,153.81
1002.004 Investments - Insurance Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.006 Investments - RRB County MFT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.007 Investments - SV Township Bridge 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
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1002.008 Investments - HSB -FAM 400,000.00 0.00 0.00 400,000.00
1002.009 Investments - BB -Thorpe Road


Overpass
276,633.00 0.00 0.00 276,633.00


1002.010 Investments - NBR Township MFT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.012 Investments - NBR Engineering 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.013 Investments - RRB- GIS Committee 125,000.00 75,000.00 125,000.00 75,000.00
1002.014 Investments - Storm Water


Management
44,790.46 0.00 0.00 44,790.46


1002.015 Investments - NBR - FAM 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.016 Investments - FSB -911 724,327.42 0.00 524,389.18 199,938.24
1002.018 Investments - RRB -911 1,143,423.80 0.00 0.00 1,143,423.80
1002.020 Investments - RRB Indemnity 224,875.72 833.05 0.00 225,708.77
1002.021 Investments - FSB-Solid Waste 405,010.88 0.00 405,010.88 0.00
1002.022 Investments - HSB Solid Waste 800,000.00 0.00 0.00 800,000.00
1002.024 Investments - LSB Solid Waste 1,177,576.18 0.00 0.00 1,177,576.18
1002.026 Investments - NBB Solid Waste 1,056,619.06 0.00 0.00 1,056,619.06
1002.027 Investments - Polo - Solid Waste 0.00 405,010.88 0.00 405,010.88
1002.028 Investments - HSB Long Range Capital


Imp
3,387,660.71 9,526.80 0.00 3,397,187.51


1002.029 Investments - FSB - Long Range
Capital Improve


1,274,572.67 1,145.49 519,884.00 755,834.16


1002.030 Investments - Long Range Capital Imp 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.031 Investments - NBR County General 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.032 Investments - BB Long Range Capital


Imp
2,542,977.24 3,027.63 860,981.29 1,685,023.58


1002.033 Investments - SV - Long Range Capital 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.034 Investments - TB 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.036 Investments - Public Health 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.038 Investments - FSB Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.040 Investments - Polo Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.042 Investments - HSB - Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.043 Investments - RRB - Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.049 Investments - SF- GIS Committee 200,152.33 0.00 0.00 200,152.33
1002.068 Investments - Polo - Long Range


Capital
528,321.02 524,811.14 0.00 1,053,132.16


1002.069 Investments - NBR- Long Range
Capital


630,550.97 0.00 0.00 630,550.97


1002.079 Investments - BB- Bond Fund 872,000.00 1,142,000.00 0.00 2,014,000.00
1004 Postage 5,650.88 0.00 0.00 5,650.88
1010 Municipal Bond 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1100 Accounts Receivable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1101 Due From 0.00 3,522,158.56 3,522,158.56 0.00


Grand Total: 79 Account(s) $29,043,502.61 $15,097,906.55 $17,121,845.88 $27,019,563.28


Ogle County


Bank Balances
From Date: 11/01/2009 - To Date: 11/30/2009


Summary Listing


Account Account Description Beginning Balance Total Debits Total Credits Ending Balance


.
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100 General Fund 100 General Fund (56,950.11) 1,638,301.44 2,155,571.57 (574,220.24)
120 AP Clearing 120 AP Clearing 0.00 4,573,402.26 4,573,402.26 0.00
130 County Payroll Clearing 130 County Payroll Clearing (100.00) 2,470,914.86 2,470,864.86 (50.00)
140 County OfficersFund 120 AP Clearing 970,379.20 64,076.72 0.00 1,034,455.92
150 Social Security 120 AP Clearing 402,108.38 11,709.53 60,830.40 352,987.51
160 IMRF 120 AP Clearing 920,752.61 188,881.31 271,409.85 838,224.07
170 Capital Improvement Fund 120 AP Clearing 43.87 0.00 0.00 43.87
180 Long Range Capital Improvemnt 120 AP Clearing 10,526,093.99 1,400,641.15 3,363,827.06 8,562,908.08
182 Judicial Facility Project Fund 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
183 Justice Project Fund II 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
185 Bond Fund 120 AP Clearing 932,130.44 2,229,023.08 1,142,000.00 2,019,153.52
200 County Highway 120 AP Clearing 754,827.80 22,303.98 100,023.09 677,108.69
210 County Bridge Fund 120 AP Clearing 679,299.30 391,239.81 349,716.06 720,823.05
212 Thorpe Road Overpass 120 AP Clearing 276,633.00 0.00 0.00 276,633.00
220 County Motor Fuel Tax Fund 120 AP Clearing 233,917.00 58,033.75 147,033.47 144,917.28
230 County Highway Engineering 120 AP Clearing 23,314.87 6.74 0.00 23,321.61
240 Federal Aid Matching 120 AP Clearing 644,381.81 182,834.96 101,150.59 726,066.18
250 Township Roads - Motor Fuel Tax 120 AP Clearing 547,310.84 80,575.14 0.00 627,885.98
260 Township Bridge Fund 120 AP Clearing 19,747.54 5.20 0.00 19,752.74
270 GIS Committee Fund 120 AP Clearing 365,501.56 125,107.74 133,570.78 357,038.52
280 Storm Water Management 120 AP Clearing 44,790.46 0.00 0.00 44,790.46
300 Insurance - Hospital & Medical 120 AP Clearing 1,657,971.08 310,913.77 230,596.37 1,738,288.48
310 Insurance Premium Levy 120 AP Clearing 722,736.26 7,652.47 121,849.50 608,539.23
320 Self Insurance Reserve 120 AP Clearing 423,289.31 1,315.69 3,815.40 420,789.60
350 County Ordinance 120 AP Clearing 60,502.00 3,193.23 13,866.34 49,828.89
360 Marriage Fund 120 AP Clearing 3,389.93 61.10 0.00 3,451.03
370 Law Library 120 AP Clearing 12,211.47 1,640.00 0.00 13,851.47
400 Public Health 120 AP Clearing 120,143.78 60,421.49 86,400.02 94,165.25
410 TB Fund 120 AP Clearing 22,752.10 778.69 3,010.40 20,520.39
420 Animal Control 120 AP Clearing 110,875.77 14,117.41 11,863.00 113,130.18
425 Pet Population Control 120 AP Clearing 43,909.99 1,893.00 2,665.00 43,137.99
430 Solid Waste 120 AP Clearing 3,727,823.68 406,536.64 448,694.82 3,685,665.50
450 Inheritance Tax Fund 120 AP Clearing 267,875.00 19,226.00 267,875.00 19,226.00
455 Trust Deposits 120 AP Clearing 1,537.72 419.00 0.00 1,956.72
460 Condemnation Fund 120 AP Clearing 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
465 Hotel/ MotelTax 120 AP Clearing 7,514.87 5,266.75 0.00 12,781.62
470 Cooperative Extension Service 120 AP Clearing 147,095.50 2,287.22 0.00 149,382.72
475 Mental Health 120 AP Clearing 497,388.72 11,841.84 50,295.05 458,935.51
480 Senior Social Services 120 AP Clearing 108,799.94 3,400.14 111,511.50 688.58
485 War Veterans Assisstance 120 AP Clearing 79,128.15 1,142.48 10,652.98 69,617.65
500 Recorder's Automation 120 AP Clearing 86,870.67 3,734.32 2,672.74 87,932.25
510 GIS Fee Fund 120 AP Clearing 134,137.89 12,366.91 0.00 146,504.80
520 Recorder's GIS Fund 120 AP Clearing 71,393.36 901.00 487.45 71,806.91
530 Vital Records 120 AP Clearing 9,104.37 309.55 0.00 9,413.92


Ogle County


Fund Balances
From Date: 11/01/2009 - To Date: 11/30/2009
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Fund Description Paying Fund Description Beginning Balance Total Debits Total Credits Ending Balance
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550 Document Storage Fee Fund 120 AP Clearing 116,530.93 6,136.18 2,474.91 120,192.20
555 County Automation -Circuit Clerk 120 AP Clearing 123,917.78 6,365.52 0.00 130,283.30
560 Dependant Children 120 AP Clearing 36,839.82 165,737.86 77,159.35 125,418.33
565 Dependant Children Medicaid 120 AP Clearing 99.21 0.00 0.00 99.21
570 Probation Services 120 AP Clearing 60,110.76 6,572.90 7,682.83 59,000.83
572 Victim Impact 120 AP Clearing 1,421.00 130.00 0.00 1,551.00
575 Juvenile Restitution Fund 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
580 Alts to Detention IPCSA/IJJ 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
585 JAIBG Equipment #59087 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
590 ICJIC Probation Grant 500053 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
595 Juvenile Diversion 120 AP Clearing 4,987.96 2,369.30 1,557.70 5,799.56
600 Drug Assistance Forfeiture 120 AP Clearing 14,487.96 0.00 0.00 14,487.96
605 Bad Check Restitution 120 AP Clearing 6,014.66 0.00 0.00 6,014.66
610 OEMA 120 AP Clearing 119,139.13 0.00 83,046.17 36,092.96
611 EOC 120 AP Clearing 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00
615 Take Bond Fee 120 AP Clearing 58,992.30 780.00 59,000.00 772.30
620 Sheriff's Petty Cash 120 AP Clearing 6,509.60 165.00 136.90 6,537.70
625 DUI Equipment 120 AP Clearing 6,203.34 2,694.00 0.00 8,897.34
630 Arrestee's Medical Cost 120 AP Clearing 15,948.58 767.00 10,403.64 6,311.94
635 Drug Traffic Prevention 120 AP Clearing 5,180.00 82.50 292.93 4,969.57
640 911 Emergency 120 AP Clearing 953,437.97 41,782.35 15,527.30 979,693.02
645 911 Wireless 120 AP Clearing 1,510,509.04 550,071.37 543,848.79 1,516,731.62
650 Out of County Medical 120 AP Clearing 6,345.80 0.00 0.00 6,345.80
660 Federal/ State Grants 120 AP Clearing 0.00 2,063.00 0.00 2,063.00
665 Fed/State Reimb/Overtime 120 AP Clearing 85,988.61 4,880.15 85,059.80 5,808.96
700 Tax Sale Automation 120 AP Clearing 22,324.12 0.00 0.00 22,324.12
710 Indemnity Cost Fund 120 AP Clearing 261,879.92 833.05 0.00 262,712.97


Grand Total: 71 Fund(s) $29,043,502.61 $15,097,906.55 $17,121,845.88 $27,019,563.28
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RESOLUTION  2009-1205 
     


2009 General Fund Budget Amendment 
     
WHEREAS, it is necessary to transfer funds from certain accounts to other accounts in order to 
conduct the County business in an orderly fashion, 
     
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the sums be transferred as follows. 
     


$25,030.00   from 100.16.4490 to 100.08.4438  
  Finance - Contingencies Probation - Juvenile Detention  
     


$22,100.00   from 100.16.4490  to 100.15.4155  
  Finance - Contingencies Insurance - Health Insurance  
     


$800.00   from 100.16.4100  to 100.15.4155  
  Finance - Salaries Insurance - Health Insurance  
     


$1,330.00   from 100.16.4144 to 100.13.4355  
  Finance - Pay Grade Study Coroner - Autopsy Fees  
     


$1,350.00   to 100.12.4130 to 100.22.4130  
  Sheriff - Overtime Corrections - Overtime  
     
     
APPROVED this 15th day of December, 2009   
OGLE COUNTY FINANCE COMMITTEE   
     
     
_________________________________ __________________________________ 
Lyle Hopkins, Chairman W. Ed Rice  
     
     
_________________________________ __________________________________ 
Ben Diehl   Pat Saunders  
     
     
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Rich Gronewold  Paul White  
     
     
__________________________________   
John "Skip" Kenney   
     
     
     


 





